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9

ITEM NO.1:

(C.C. 06-31 and 06-49)

FY 2007 BUDGET

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

I'd like to call to order the

12

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting

13

for Thursday, March 23rd,

2006.

14

we have Members present:

Committee Members

15

Carroll, Mateo, Molina,

Pontanilla, Kane.

Good morning, Members.

16
17

being here.

18

ready to go.

19

For the record,

Thank

YO'l'

for

It's a little after nine and we're

Today, we're going to be discussing the

20

EP expansion requests by the various

21

departments.

22

and then going through with Prosecuting

23

Attorney's Office, Corporation Counsel, Civil

24

Defense,

25

Concerns.

We will be starting off with Fire

Finance,

and Housing and Human

We will move at the pace that you
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folks are comfortable with, and the Chair will

2

not try to push you as far as time.

3

aware of the time, but we'll be just moving

4

along at the pace that you folks want to move.
A couple of notes, Members,

5

So just be

any time we

6

have handouts, we will be putting it on your

7

chair so it doesn't get lost in the shuffle of

8

what's on your desk, but you will be responsible

9

for that once it gets there.

If you do take it

10

away, make sure that you bring it back, or we

11

can try to make efforts to get that information

12

to you again, but again, we will be making sure

13

that all information is distributed on your

14

chair so it won't get lost in the shuffle.

15

This morning, we have with us our fire

16

chief,

17

want to thank you, gentlemen,

18

our deputy and our assistant chief.

I

for being here.

Mr. Ginoza, why don't you provide us

19

with some opening remarks and then we'll go from

20

there?

21

MR. GINOZA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair, Members.

Today,

22

we will be discussing,

23

the expansion positions for the various

24

departments.

25

listing of all the expansion positions by

as the Chair mentioned,

I have provided as a handout a

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

5
BF 3/23/06
1

departments,

and that indicates the amount of

2

pay,

3

position,

4

which includes a computer and other equipment.

5

I

the cost -- the related costs of the
like the B accounts,

the C accounts,

--

In the limited space on that schedule,

6
7

could not indicate the page reference to

8

detailed pages in the detailed budget, but if

9

needed,

I

I can provide that as we go along.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Ginoza.

11

MR. GINOZA:

So we have the Fire Department here to

12

present their justifications for their expansion

13

requests,

14

Mr. Chair.

15
16

CHAIR KANE:

so I'd like to defer to Chief,

Thank you.
Good morning, Chief Kaupalolo.

If you

17

can, please identify yourself as well as the

18

gentlemen sitting next to you before we begin

19

with your opening remarks.

20

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you, Chair.

I appreciate that

21

opportunity to do that.

22

myself I also have up on the podium Deputy Fire

23

Chief Neal Bal.

24

Alan Cordeiro who takes care of our fire

25

operations.

Also,

This morning with

I have Assistant Chief

Back in the gallery,

I have
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Assistant Chief Alan Pascua who also handles and

2

manages our support services and administration

3

portion of the department.

4

resource Fire Fighter III Greg Jenkins with our

5

Special Operations Bureau,

6

who will be assisting us this budget session.

7

Excuse me,

Chair,

Also,

I have for

and Cindy Kawashima

once again,

I'd like

8

to say good morning to the Chair and good

9

morning to the Budget Committee Members.

This

10

morning we are pleased to come before this

11

committee to ask for your continued commitment

12

and foresight to assist the department in its

13

forward progression to meet its mission

14

statement to protect and preserve life,

15

environment and property,

16

provide quality fire rescue emergency services

17

for the people of our island,

18

visitors that visit Maui.

19

Last year,

and to continue to

community,

and the

the department came before

20

you to request two administrative management

21

level positions,

22

operation that now has the overall

23

responsibility for management of fire rescue

24

operations response.

25

was the administrative support services division

a division chief of fire rescue

Also,

the other position
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chief that also has the overall responsibility

2

for the management of all activities that

3

support the operations of the department.

4

Through your concerted efforts and

5

foresight,

the department was assured the

6

ability to provide operational direction to

7

ensure readiness for emergency fire rescue

8

operation, the development and implementation of

9

new projects and initiative following the

10

strategic direction of the department's goals

11

and objectives of the strategic plan.

12

positions were filled and are now a very

13

integral component as we continue to reorganize

14

the department.

15

These two

In this fiscal year, proposal '07

16

budget, we are requesting,

17

Section 1 expansion position request A account,

18

a request for three fire battalion chief EM-5

19

positions for Second Division, a projected

20

eight-month salary of $158,736, other costs,

21

listed as B amounts of $8,000 for CBA meals,

22

physical exams, uniform allowances and

23

maintenance,

24

for $55,000 for personal protection equipment,

25

cell phone, office equipment,

as submitted,

and other costs listed as C amounts

computer hardware
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1

and an emergency response vehicle for a total

2

request of $221,736.
We also have for document,

3

the expansion

4

position justification for Fiscal Year 2006-

5

2007.

6

benefit and how it meets the strategic plan

7

goals number 8,

8

effective organization from page 32; and the

9

Objective 8-G, develop a long-range staffing

Fund type general describes the service

and develop and support an

10

plan to ensure the delivery of quality services;

11

page 34, to identify and propose budget requests

12

to address staffing needs based on service

13

delivery and projected workload.

14

objective, Objective 8-N,

15

supervision of station level personnel and

16

provide supervisor training to station captains.

17

The other

improve the

The justification we present to you is

18

as we analyze the current fire operation

19

organization structure, and, particularly the

20

current battalion chief position, a number of

21

issues emerged.

22

standard used and recognized by fire service

23

industries throughout the nation that typically

24

recommend -- recommended,

25

control ratio as one in five personnel.

They include span of control, a

excuse me,

span of
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other words,

no more than five subordinates to

2

each supervisor.

3

The span of control for the department's

4

current battalion chief is a ratio of one in 17.

5

Translated,

6

captains -- a ratio that significantly exceeds

7

the recognized standards of the industry.

8

Given this number and the overall

9

one battalion chief to manage 17

responsibility to manage daily operation and

10

respond and perform as command function chiefs

11

of a fire rescue emergency operation and the

12

increase in alarms and emergencies leaves the

13

on-duty battalion chief in a precarious and

14

sometimes potentially unsafe predicament to

15

adequately address the 24-hour-a-day operation

16

of the platoon.
Also,

17

given the geographical diversity

18

of the personnel they supervise on three main

19

islands can be an unmanageable situation.

20

their workload,

21

the captains they supervise once every several

22

months,

23

distribution of the captain's work locations

24

providing effective communication,

25

and supervision is a serious challenge for the

Given

they are only able to meet with

as well as the degree of the demographic

interaction
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This infrequency is enough to cause

1

department.

2

substantial communication and performance

3

management issues of the greatest concern is the

4

degree to which fire captains operate without

5

frequent and meaningful contact with management.
The geographical diversity of the

6
7

department service area requires an organization

8

structure that provides for sufficient resource

9

to allow greater interaction between station

10

captain personnel and the battalion chief.

11

As a resolution, we are proposing for

12

three additional battalion chief expansion

13

positions in fire operations to address the

14

concerns as stated above.

15

the Committee favorably consider this expansion

16

request,

17

would be divided into two fire battalions, each

18

with an assigned battalion chief on duty

19

24 hours per day.

20

of control from one

21

one in eight or one in nine of personnel or one

22

in seven on stations as we have 14 stations.

23

In particular,

should

the geographic division for Maui County

This would address the span
excuse me,

one in 17 to

This would significantly reduce and

24

minimize safety concerns of the platoon,

25

battalion chiefs and allow for a more manageable
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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situation and greater interaction between

2

station captain personnel and their supervisors.

3

And lastly,

4

continue to meet the goals and objectives of our

5

strategic plan.

6
7

8
9

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

this would allow the department to

Thank you,

Chair.

Thank you,

Chief.

Any additional

comments from your deputy or your assistant?
MR. KAUPALOLO:

Chair,

thank you for the opportunity.

I'd like to ask Assistant Chief Alan Cordeiro.
MR. CORDEIRO:

Good morning,

Budget Chair, Members.

12

Pretty much,

13

things that we are very concerned with being

14

the -- I used to be a BC,

15

We're faced with many problems in major

16

incidence,

17

basically,got into a bottleneck in the mid

18

management level because we have grown,

19

to your support and the Administration's

20

support,

21

so we can provide the quality services.

22

Chief covered a whole bunch of

a battalion chief.

let alone daily operations.

And we

thanks

where we need to expand these positions

I was going to read the same things

23

pretty much that the Chief covered and our

24

concerns are meeting the NIMs,

25

National Incident Management guidelines that we

which is the
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need to fulfill for budget constraints.

2

get money from federal government.

3

do it, we'll be subject to refusal of budget --

4

or funding.

5

have a minimum of -- a maximum of five to six

6

personnel under a scope,

7

captains that would be assigned to a battalion

8

chief for the second.

We can

If we don't

And that states that you need to

so that would be

We're still falling far behind, as we're

9

We have 17 now companies,

10

saying.

11

breaking it down to eight and nine but it's at

12

least taking away that triple of what is

13

considered -- what is the safe and operational

14

concern.

15

and then

And this would help with the management

16

getting feedback and also monitoring the

17

personnel prior to emergencies but we'll see if

18

the training has been going okay,

19

problems they might have at the station might be

20

a small leak or a small problem versus then

21

growing into a larger and more expensive

22

problem.

23

liability of not -- of missing a major alarm or

24

a major call that came in because we're at --

25

we're concentrating on another major alarm,

And of course,

and the

the concern of
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so -- and we do respond out with -- as it grows,

2

with more personnel as administration comes in,

3

but that's a major concern is providing a good

4

managerial service to our community and to our

5

personnel.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Assistant Chief.
Chief, we're going to go ahead and open

7

8

up unless Deputy,

you have some additional

9

comments?

Thank you.

10

Okay.

Members,

we'll open it up.

11

from this side, Mr. Molina,

12

right down.

13

Mr.

14
15

Pontanilla,

We'll start

and we'll just move

any comments this

morning or questions?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

16

This morning,

Thank you,

Chair.

the Chief had given us

17

information regards to existing span of control,

18

which is presently one to 17.

19

to five.

20

were looking at when you say that you want to

21

reduce it to one to five?

22

23

You mentioned one

Is that the strat plan number that you

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Chair, may I answer that?

Councilman Pontanilla,

I was referring

24

to the national recognized standards in the fire

25

industry.

They recognize that as the sp2n of
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control is within a one to five supervisory kind

2

of capacity.

3

issues of concern of being able to adequately

4

manage the personnel at hand,

5

the norm that we would like to follow also in

6

being consistent with national or recognized

7

practices.

8
9

To exceed that would cause some

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

so one in five is

Chief Cordeiro mentioned

that in regards to funding from -- special

10

funding from,

11

the norm is one to six or one to seven.

12

know,

your proposal is one to eight and one

13

to

or one to nine,

14

17 companies into two -- two areas.

15

that jeopardize funding from the federal

16

government or any grants or,

17

five or one to six is the so-called national

18

standard?

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

MR. KAUPALOLO:

21

I guess,

the federal government,

you know,

You

splitting the
How will

you know,

if one to

Chief?
Councilmember Pontanilla,

I'm going

to have Chief Cordeiro expand on that for you.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

MR. CORDEIRO:

Thank you.

This would show that we're striving to

24

meet their standards and addressing the issue

25

that we know exist and by showing that we would
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be hard-pressed to ask you for six at this time.

2

In the future budget, we would request more, but

3

at this time trying to meet the standard that we

4

have and with the funding that's available,

5

we're seeking this to show in good faith that

6

we're trying.

7

something to address it,

8

and allowed as we continue to keep moving on and

9

expanding what we need to do.

10

And as long as we're trying to do

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

it will be understood

Okay.

I know in this

11

particular budget process that for

12

looking at the possibility of acquiring land in

13

Haiku.

14

anticipate having a fire station out there?

15

MR. BAL:

'07 we're

Should that happen, when do you

I think in the last three or four budget

16

packages,

17

six-year plan that we have had -- or have asked

18

for land,

19

is -- now is the time that we'd like to at least

20

try to procure that land and then work with the

21

Council and Administration as to when that can

22

come about.

23

you have seen in our projected

for money,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

financing for Haiku.

It

So when do you foresee a

24

fire station up in Haiku?

And the reason why I

25

ask this question is coming back to the span of
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control, if one to six is the so-called national

2

standard, maybe at the time that when you do

3

build a fire station, then it would be the

4

18th company for Maui County, and to be with the

5

national standard at the time create another,

6

guess, battalion chief so that, you know,

7

within the national standards.

8
9

MR. BAL:

we are

And as far as your question as to the

building of this station,

if it was funded this

10

year,

11

would depend on how well the Administration

12

would look to funding this.

13
14
15

I

I would suspect three to five years.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

That

I couldn't say.

Thank you.

One more

question, Chair.
In regards to a dedicated HAZMAT team,

16

has the department taken a look at creating a

17

dedicated HAZMAT team to handle chemicals?

18

how do we do it today?

And

19

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you, Councilman Pontanilla.

20

You know,

21

have a dedicated so-called HAZMAT team.

22

try to manage the HAZMAT situations with fire

23

rescue personnel that are trained or we also

24

have our HAZMAT bureau that also is more or less

25

our technical people that have the support.

to be very frank with you, we do not
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We, at some point, have addressed that

1

2

in our strategic plans to address that

3

particular objective in a timely manner.

4

present time, though, we do the best that we can

5

to manage through our fire rescue operations to

6

address the HAZMAT situations or issues as they

7

arise.

8

9

So for this budget

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
go-around,

to create efficiency in the fire

10

department,

11

than the HAZMAT team?

12

At the

the battalion chief is more critical

Thank you, Councilman Pontanilla.

MR. KAUPALOLO:

13

Again if I can get -- they're actually very

14

intertwined components at some point because we

15

do operate with them.

16

or another,

17

you know,

something that if it could and could,

18

you know,

come together,

19

but we'd like to continue to pursue that

20

objective and to be able to address those kinds

21

of issues as best as we can.

22

For us to prioritize one

I think we'd like to look at it as,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

that would be great,

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

23
24

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Mr. Molina?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Good morning,

1

gentlemen.

I'd like to

2

start off my line of questioning first by

3

expressing my deep appreciation for your efforts

4

with the air ambulance tragedy.

5

put themselves at great risk and they prevented

6

further tragedy,

7

situation into the need for the battalion

8

chief's request that you have here.

Your personnel

and I'd like to tie that

9

Can you just help educate me on what the

10

role of the battalion chief would be in an event

11

such as that?

12

highlight any concerns from the response as to,

13

you know,

14

personnel,

15

you know,

16

again understand the request for the need for

17

additional battalion chiefs and what they

18

actually do.

19

a real life example for you to help with that.

20

MR. BAL:

And if you could also mention --

maybe the need for additional
equipment,

et cetera.

If you could,

just using that example to help me

I'm just trying to,

Thank you,

Councilman Molina.

you know, pose

Before I

21

hand this over to the assistant chief, Alan

22

Cordeiro,

23

difference between

24

that because we had a USR team there,

25

search and rescue group,

I'd just like to point out the
and also thank you for
an urban

that we had sent over
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1

to Kauai upon Civil Defense request to relieve

2

some of the people there and they asked for a

3

second group, which we can elaborate on a little

4

bit later, but I was -I was just doing some quick figuring

5
6

here at Oahu, where they have some 1400 people

7

in their department with 22 battalion chiefs.

8

That works out to 63 men under one battalion

9

chief compared to our switches,

There's quite a spread there.

10

battalion chief.

11

And as far as their duties,

12

to Assistant Chief Cordeiro.

13

MR. CORDEIRO:

100 men to one

I'll turn that over

Good morning, Councilmember Molina.

14

On that particular incident,

15

I will be responding to assist because of the

16

catastrophic end and the large size of it that

17

grows, because there is a bunch of interagency

18

relationships that we must do -- we do a unified

19

command -- but the initial call of it came in

20

and, unfortunately,

21

landed in -- not a populated area.

22

smaller plane.

23

it was a larger plane and landed in a more

24

populated area.

25

any major incident,

it was a plane crash that
And it was a

It could have been much worse if

But getting back to the facts of it is
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1

the initial call-out would be -- would send our

2

rescue engine,

3

Engine 1 from Wailuku,

4

Engine 2 from Paia, Engine 6 from Kihei to deal

5

with any of the ongoing fire spread as well as

6

if there is any victims.

7

size of the plane at that time so I

8

and dispatched those.

9

At that time,

the tanker and the water support
Engine 5 from Makawao,

We did not know the
jumped in

as you can see, we are now

10

left with a whole bunch of open area that we

11

need to be aware of, because now we have to send

12

people to do medical calls or if there is any

13

other emergencies.

14

the scene once he pulls up on scene, any of this

15

conflagration going,

16

off,

17

screaming to help people,

18

with the crowd and dealing with all the other

19

agencies that are coming in.

20

crash crew came in with two of their trucks,

21

applied the foam and contained the fire.

22

guys did a great job in maintaining it just to

23

that property.

24
25

And if the BC is tied up at

all the bludge fires going

cars are blowing up,

people are yelling and
and trying to deal

Fortunately,

the

The

It could have been a lot worse.

But while this is ongoing,

they are

still dealing with accountability on the scene,
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1

plus making sure that everybody is where they're

2

supposed to be,

3

with these people,

as well as the airport

4

manager coming in,

asking what's going on; AMR

5

coming in,

6

in,

coordinating the tacts, working

asking what's going on; police coming

asking what's going on.

7

And all this thing is just multiplying

8

and going until we can get there with the next

9

BC that we're looking at who could monitor and

10

start tracking,

"Okay.

We've got this district

11

wide open.

12

side now to cover central Kahului or Upcountry

13

because we have no units up there."

14

what the coordination would be.

15

to try and do this,

16

catastrophe,

17

and very crucial and it's very difficult.

We'll send a truck from the west

And that's

But for the BC

as well as manage this major

it's -- it's very,

very critical

18

And that's my concern being from there

19

and being in other major incidents and hearing

20

the alarms going off and,

21

these guys down?

22

at.

23

of this,

24

the second BC could come in and augment the

25

incident command and would help them with other

nOh, how can I move

Move this."

That's where it's

And this will help alleviate a whole bunch
as well as in an event we're not here,
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2

resources,

sort of calling back personnel.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So depending on the situation,

3

it can be overwhelming based on the amount of

4

BCs that you currently have,

5

manage --

6

Yes,

MR. CORDEIRO:

Katrina,

to coordinate and

just like any other -- like,

you

7

know,

any major emergency goes by we're

8

trying to deal with what we have now just on a

9

basic brush fire,

say,

and we're committed to

10

trying to protect the houses,

contain the fire,

11

working with air helicopters,

working with

12

forestry,

and we're at the scene in Lahaina,

13

instance,

and we're out there.

14

a building fire in Kahului or Upcountry and now

15

we move Makawao down to cover Kahului, because

16

we moved them out to some place else.

17

there is another call that Makawao had to go to

18

a medical in Kahului without realizing now where

19

nobody is available in the Central Valley

20

because you're dealing with the incident.

And then we have

And if

21

And that site of progress even from a

22

smaller incident that you're concentrating on

23

and trying to get control of,

24

a call, or you're talking to somebody and you

25

miss a call.

You know,

for

and you might miss

trucks blowing by and
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1

something happens here that you need to deal

2

with right away and you're going to miss that

3

call.

4

That's my concern.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

And I can

5

imagine other things were probably occurring,

6

not the same normal things --

7

MR. CORDEIRO:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

Right.
-- but,

you know,

you have to

manage everything while a catastrophic event

10

MR. CORDEIRO:

Right.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

MR. CORDEIRO:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

MR. CORDEIRO:

-- like the air ambulance

The world doesn't stop -Yeah.

-- because of one emergency.

It

15

continues on.

16

dodging the bullet to say and that is -- I'm

17

really concerned about my BCs because they have

18

to go out there in the middle of the night.

19

They have to drive all the way to Lahaina or

20

remote areas and then they have to drive back,

21

and deal with everyday things.

22

several times,

23

the side of the road and take a nap to make it

24

back to this side because you're just

25

overwhelmed and the adrenaline flows.

And fortunately,

we've been

And I've done it

and sometimes you have to pull on

And when
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you get out to that side and everything kicks

2

down and you're coming back,

3

good -- not a safe thing.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you,

5

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

you're not -- not a

Chairman.

Mr. Mateo?
Chairman,

thank you very much.

8

I guess the first question would be whether or

9

not the national standards,

the NIMs that you

10

referred to,

and your existing strategic plan,

11

whether they conflict with each other because I

12

don't know if your strategic plan actually dealt

13

with the reduction -- the need for additional

14

BCs.

15

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

Our strategic

16

plan basically is a guideline for the

17

department.

18

document,

19

with,

20

with the third party consultant to take c look

21

at those.

22

It's evolving -- it's a very fluid

so in 2002,

I believe,

we revisited the document

about 30 fire-fighters and also

And within the existing strategic plan,
the supervision

23

it does address so-called

24

part of it, which relates to the span of control

25

or whatever we think is comfortable at this
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point.

2

the fact about,

3

excuse me, Mr.

4

that we're,

5

think the thinking behind this is that we need

6

to see if we can address this issue as presented

7

by Assistant Chief Cordeiro.

I think Mr. Molina mentioned
you know,

where -- I mean,

Pontanilla mentioned the fact

like,

one in eight,

one in nine.

I

It may not be the best but I think we're

8
9

Earlier,

trying to balance it at this point and not

10

really get into a predicament where one in 17.

11

It's really something that we're struggling to

12

try to manage.

13

Mr. Molina mention that we did a great job at

14

the air ambulance incident,

15

loss of life there, but I think that just

16

paraphrases that we could probably achieve more

17

or do better with the additional,

18

battalion chief position.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And we're managing -- hearing

you know,

tragic

you know,

But I think when you look in

20

the lower numbers,

yeah,

one in eight or one in

21

nine,

22

Molokai together should require one BC,

23

you're spreading yourself out even thinner

24

because the demand now

25

the allocation process in terms of meeting your

and that means collectively Lanai and
so

not the demand, but
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numbers now looks at our two districts combined,

2

and that will give you the numbers you need to

3

assign aBC.

4

MR. KAUPALOLO:

You know,

we haven't really,

you

5

know,

really crunched the numbers and crunched

6

how we want to do it.

7

of how we'd like to approach it.

8

our first step is to come before you and try to

9

present to you our request.

I think we have an idea
And I think

And then if that

10

was a favorable consideration, then we would go

11

ahead and start to solidify and be a little more

12

concrete with the application on how the numbers

13

are going to work.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And Chief, can you tell me

15

where you're at with your strategic planning in

16

terms of have you reached your goals in -- based

17

on the timetable that you have set in the

18

strategic plan itself, where are you?

19

MR. KAUPALOLO:

20

CHAIR KANE:

If you'll give me a second.

Mr. Mateo,

that could be construed as a

21

very broad question.

22

area that you want to focus in on?

23

we're about EPs, but if you want to go beyond

24

that,

25

Is there any particular
And I

know

if you can -- if you can articulate that.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Well,

you can keep it on
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relative to EPs as well because it's just going

2

to take me to my next question,

3

with your secretary.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

5

MR. KAUPALOLO:

which has to do

Thank you.
I'd be glad to share with you.

Okay.

6

Our Fire Command Chief Officer, Chief DeCosta,

7

could not be here but he -- oh,

8

corrected on that by my chiefs.

9

Fire Command Chief Officer Mike DeCosta, who

I stand
I do have our

10

probably could share with you and give you an

11

update on where we are with our plan, if you'd

12

like him to do that.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

14

Chair -- you know,

15

wouldn't mind.

16

17

CHAIR KANE:
body?

Well, maybe as the

if the Chair doesn't mind,

No, not at all.

Any objection from the

No problem.

18

MR. KAUPALOLO:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

means.

Chief DeCosta?

Just to understand the request, by all

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

22

CHAIR KANE:

I

Okay.

Chief DeCosta, if you would?

Just to

23

make it simple, Chief,

if maybe you coula use

24

the podium and that might be a simpler way,

25

we don't have to play musical chairs.
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MR. DeCOSTA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Please identify yourself for the record,

3

please.

4

MR. DeCOSTA:

5
6

9

Good morning,

I'm Fire Command Chief

Mike DeCosta working out of Kahului station.
Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Mateo, do you want to just restate

7

8

Okay.

your question?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

10

I

Thank you.

just wanted to get an idea of where

11

you're at on the strategic plans in terms of

12

what your objectives and goals were for

13

personnel in -- I guess, management personnel

14

specifically?

15

MR. DeCOSTA:

Okay.

The strategic plan,

if you have

16

a copy in front of you or have read it,

17

know,

18

2002 when we first went into strategic planning.

19

In 2004, we revisited what we looked at as far

20

as what the goals of the department was and

21

where we're going to go.

22

you

was also backed by the Council back in

Since 2004,

the strategic plan continues

23

to operate, however,

24

break in some of the functions of it as far as,

25

you know,

you know,

there's been a

timelines, but going over the
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1

timelines right now,

2

lot of the goals is -- the initiatives to the

3

goals is very -- how would I

4

it's an ongoing process.

5

it's such a diversified initiative for each

6

objective.

7

acquisition of,

8

know,

9

organization.

say? -- it's a --

I mean it's like --

Like

Just to give you an example:
like,

it tells you,

say,

a HAZMAT team.

You

"We need to form this

We need to get a group of people.

10

We need to go through all these steps.

11

the last step,

12

approval and implement," okay?

13

it takes a couple of years to get everything

14

straightened away and then at the end to come in

15

and it takes another couple years or a year or

16

so to get budget.

17

And at

it says we need to get budget
Well,

you know,

Even though the timelines we constrain,

18

we push it into a timeline of,

19

year,

a year and a half to keep things trying to

20

move,

you know,

21

we try to revisit the strategic plan every

22

couple of years,

23

that we give it up,

24

that we go back to the strategic plan.

25

at the timelines and we say,

rolling.

like, normally a

Then what happens is

and the revisiting doesn't mean
what -- the revisiting means

"Okay.

We look

Well,
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where are we in these goals?

What kind of

2

initiatives are giving us problems?

3

the problems lying in these initiatives?

4

need more time?

5

initiatives further?"

Where is
Do we

What can we do to push these
We revisit everything.

Some of the initiatives and objectives

6
7

have been met.

We push it aside,

okay?

So

8

there is a lot of objectives that right now in

9

our current 2004 strategic plan has been met.

10

It doesn't mean it dies,

11

we've met what we tried to do.

12

push it to the side and just try to keep it and

13

maintain it at that level,

14

it just means that
Now, we need to

okay?

So what basically happens after that is

15

that now in this budget also,

16

asking for funds to,

17

strategic plan for the second -- the second time

18

we revisit it.

19

years,

20

point in time, where right now I'm planning to

21

look at a revisitation,

22

through,

23

again,

you know,

I'm

revisit our

It's a little longer than two

but it's just how time is working at this

if everything goes

some time in September,

October.

That pushes us a little behind schedule

24

as far as timeline, but it doesn't mean that our

25

strategic plan dies,

it just means that,
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know,

2

And again,

3

what we need to meet,

4

out in the community that needs to be addressed

5

by the department.

6

we just reevaluate at that point in time.
it's just meeting what has been met,

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

and is there new issues

Thank you.

And in the plan

7

itself, was there a priority ranking between BCs

8

versus HAZMAT?

9

MR. DeCOSTA:

No.

If you look at the strategic plan

10

and,

again you go to probably 8-G,

11

the best objective or initiative for that

12

Objective 8,

running a good department comes

13

under the

the matter where the chief -- you

14

know,

15

department to meet all of the needs in the

16

community, and this is where span of control

17

comes.

we look at how do we operate our

Span of control is a -- again,

18
19

Cordeiro said is

20

from NIMs,

21

industry out in the world.

22

that,

23

you say,

24

island."

25

it's probably

you know,

as Chief

comes sometimes

it comes from the standards of the

you know,
"Well,

And by looking at

you put all that together and
this is what we need here on the

It doesn't prioritize.

It doesn't say
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that,

2

We need battalion chief.

3

that."

4

chief,

5

getting the department to manage the objectives,

6

to manage the incidents that we have in the

7

community in the best possible way so that we

8

provide the best safety for the members.

9

you know,

you know,

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

11

questions.

14

15

I

that the

feels that it's comfortable in

Thank you.

Thank you,

just wanted to follow up with one last

question for the department.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Chief,

thank you very much for

your feedback.

16

MR. DeCOSTA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

19

you know,

We need

I'm done with asking the Captain

Chairman.

12

We need this.

It says the best way,

10

13

"We need a HAZMAT team first.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo, proceed.

Chief,

Thank you.
the request for the secretary,

20

your position -- for the commission secretary,

21

can you kind of like provide justification in

22

asking for a secretary if it's specifically just

23

to service the commission?

24
25

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Chair,

if I may?

I may have,

you

know, misunderstood myself that -- I was going
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to try and take one expansion position request

2

first,

3

read my supporting justification for a request

4

for the commission secretary.

but if the Chair would like,

Well,

I could also

5

CHAIR KANE:

go ahead and hang on to that,

6

Chief.

7

battalion chief requests and then we'll come

8

back to the secretary for the commission once we

9

go through the rdund of the battalion chiefs,

We'll go ahead and go through the

10

Mr. Mateo.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

12

MR. KAUPALOLO:

14

CHAIR KANE:

16

Thank you,

Chair.

13

15

Thank you, Chief.

Thank you, Chair.

Okay.

Any -- let's see.

Mr. Hokama,

questions at this time?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, more specific about the

17

battalion chiefs areas.

18

between a battalion chief and a chief fire

19

command chief,

20

same -- same skill?

21

battalion chiefs in pass appropriations and

22

approvals.

23

MR. KAUPALOLO:

What is the difference

is that the same position,

Chair,

You know,

we give you guys

if I may answer that?

The

24

battalion chief position is a -- what we will

25

classify as an EM-5.

He is an operational chief
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within -- if I could state it simply -- that

2

manages all of your fire companies out there.
The fire command chief is -- manages the

3
4

operations of the strategic plans for the

5

department and has other related duties.

6

particular EM is an EM-3.

7

position.

It's a lower

It was a battalion chief but when we --

8
9

His

when you allowed us to -- the Council allowed us

10

to reorganize our department with the assistant

11

chief,

12

titles, we retitled the battalion chief,

13

was an EM-3 in charge of managing the strategic

14

plan,

15

officer or fire command chief.

16

under advisement by our DPS people so we would

17

have a clear title distinction between battalion

18

chief and an existing battalion chief position

19

that we had, which is an EM-3, which is Chief

20

DeCosta's position right now.

21

rather than to have a conflicting type of
which

and retitled his title to a fire command

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And this was

Just for curiosity,

have you been

22

keeping our standing committee chairman,

23

Mr. Molina,

24

department so when we come to this stage of the

25

annual review,

abreast of the changes in the

which is about appropriations and
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funding,

2

is aware of what is going on in your department?

3

I hear the assistant chief mentioning in his

4

earlier comments the problems throughout the

5

year.

6

as our chairman,

7

impeding or restricting the department of

8

fulfilling its goals as we understood and we

9

provided the support for?

10

you know,

at least our committee chair

Has that been communicated to Mr. Molina,

MR. KAUPALOLO:

to be aware of what is either

Thank you,

Councilman Hokama.

Not

11

to,

12

you're answering, but I think,

13

to manage as best as we can and sometimes maybe

14

that's where the weakest link is in our

15

department that we try to manage rather than

16

really try to address issues.

17

you know, diverge from your question that
you know,

we try

We like to think that this is one of the

18

vehicles that we can come and address our

19

shortfalls during the budget session,

20

appreciate that opportunity.

21

that maybe a more -- I would guess more open

22

communication or more of a communication with

23

the Chair probably could have and should have

24

occurred.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well,

and we

I concur with you

that wasn't my -- an answer
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to my question,

2

members.

3

the front lines have responded admirably

4

throughout the year,

5

lost resident on Lanai and at that time I

6

it was Captain Pascua,

7

who ran a fabulous rescue operation in -- with

8

the personnel in our community.

9

incident with the plane crash,

10

Chief.

I

am like the other

I think your men -- men and women in

whether it was regarding a
think

although now he's Chief,

With your last
again your men

and women responded admirably and courageously.
Obviously,

11

I have a problem with

12

operations and administration of this

13

department.

14

like somebody say it's Christmas.

15

money.

16

give us a request and if you secure the funds,

17

then tell us you're going to develop the details

18

on how it is going to work out in the plan

19

regarding battalion chiefs?

How can you come before us

Put in a request.

it's

They've got

How can you come and

20

Don't you think that the details should

21

be forthcoming so that we can understand how it

22

fits into our restructuring of your operation to

23

provide better management and supervision,

24

address operational needs of the men and tell us

25

what it takes to secure that funding to make it
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happen?

2

you're going to work out the details.

3

I don't appropriate that way.

Not tell us after we grant you approval

I don't

4

know about the other members.

5

they have some concerns about appropriating

6

without knowing what they're giving funding for.
And I hope this is not going to be with

7

8
9

I would think

all the departments,
MR. KAUPALOLO:

Chair,

either, Mr.

Chairman.

I'd like to have Assistant

10

Chief Cordeiro respond to Councilmember Hokama's

11

question.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

MR. CORDEIRO:

Assistant Chief?
Mr. Hokama,

I'm sorry we didn't have

14

time to give you the detail of what we plan for

15

the battalion chief as far as the Second

16

Division.

17

geographically,

18

Councilmember Mateo,

19

have to deal with and a fourth now on Kahoolawe,

20

but three islands that we have to geographically

21

take care of.

22

We envision because of
as was brought forward by
we have three islands we

The second division what we're

23

envisioning and will be striving to is maybe

24

make it a west side command sort of where the BC

25

would be out of, maybe,

the Lahaina station and
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1

dealing with the west side and Lanai and

2

Molokai.

3

developed and looked at and would evaluate and

4

see how functional it is.

5

geographically that's the best we can do.

So that was part of the plan that we

And at this time

There's other issues that comes with it:

6
7

The amount of alarms,

the population sizes of

8

course that's always addressed, but we're trying

9

to make a balance of this on span of control and

10

coverage.

11

go to Molokai to deal with people there -- our

12

people there.

13

the fourth station be Lanai,

14

in Lahaina -- I'm correct,. three companies in

15

Lahaina.

16

And it takes the BC just one day to

There's three stations and then
and then the three

But that is what the vision we have --

17

that I have looked at in trying to work with my

18

BCs to see how we could manage this.

19

something that we're asking.

20

for it and we're sorry we did not get that to

21

portrayed to you.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's not

We do have plans

Chief, do you have something that

23

you could present to the committee that explains

24

the structural adjustments and your

25

conceptual -- how the conceptual
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1

responsibilities will be broken down so we can

2

have a good sense?
Because again,

3

I brought up earlier, we

4

granted a battalion chief position in the past.

5

You -- the personnel agreed and chose to

6

redescribe and restructure again,

7

disturbs me that I hear a strategic plan is not

8

reviewed annually,

9

is an annual budgeting process.

okay?

And it

especially when you know it

Because I was like the other members,

10
11

wanted to know where we are with the strategic

12

plan that you asked us to support.

13

understand it's fluid and it changes and

14

adjusts.

15

in a situation that determines that and has

16

impacted your plan implementation.

17

Well,

MR. KAUPALOLO:

I

We

let us know what is the changes

Mr. Hokama,

I thank you again for

18

your comments,

and I appreciate the fact that

19

you're willing to let us know some of our

20

shortfalls, but please understand that we

21

certainly by no way,

22

address those issues.

23

remiss in our communications to you folks to

24

update you.

25

Cordeiro mentioned, we do have a -- I will call

you know, don't try to
We may have been a little

We do -- as Assistant Chief

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

40
BF 3/23/06
1

it a flow chart of what and how the organization

2

would look.

3

information up to the members.

4

not having that information before you.

5

We can and will get that

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Excuse us for

Chief, within your battalion

6

chief request,

where does capital improvements

7

and upgrade of station projects fall under,

8

under a specific battalion chief or you believe

9

that is under assistant chief more

10

appropriately?

11

within this request?

12

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Where -- where does this fit

Currently we look at that to be under

13

our assistant chiefs of support services

14

division.

15

cascades directly down and will be involving our

16

battalion chiefs,

17

to fire operations chief also and his people,

18

but the primary would be our administrative

19

chiefs.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

It also falls in line because it

so it would be cascading down

A specific chief's position,

21

Chief Kaupalolo,

or

22

than one assistant chief?

23

Cordeiro and,

24

have joint responsibilities over CIP and station

25

projects for upgrades -- whether it would be

~t

would be shared with more
It might be Chief

you know, maybe Chief Pascua would
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1

updating the lockers for the fire-fighters,

2

changing equipment,

3

That's -- do you have that -- I'm just trying to

4

understand in your structure --

5

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Okay.

those kinds of projects?

And I'm trying to really

6

understand where -- what particular part of the

7

CIP you're trying -- me to respond to.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

MR. KAUPALOLO:

I

Okay.

just -- okay.

Just CIP,

Chief.

The overall CIP project that

10

we have -- the large project, we do have a

11

person or -- that's in charge of it.

12

day-to-day type of what we call the CIP requests

13

for the stations,

14

or forwarded down to the battalion chiefs and

15

they actually take on the responsibility and

16

ensure that we have these things done to the

17

building,

18

pick up or purchase a piece of equipment.

19

That's normally done by one of the three

20

battalion chiefs.

21
22
23

In our

that normally is addressed by

whether it's to repair a door or to

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Which is currently being done by

an assistant chief; is that correct or no?
MR. KAUPALOLO:

There is a point where we separate,

24

guess,

25

to get this thing where if it's in the station,

what is the actual work they need to do
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it will be much more easier for them to monitor

2

this as they go through the stations and talk to

3

the captains,

4

project doing?"

5

goes back to our administrative assistant chief

6

who manages and plans the entire CIP projects.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

"How are you doing?

What's your

The overall project management

I'm just trying to understand,

8

Chief,

that if some of the assistant chiefs'

9

responsibility is going to be given to the

10

battalion chiefs that is being requested,

11

fine,

12

will then the assistant chief do that now he can

13

delegate those responsibilities to the battalion

14

chiefs, or are we able to eliminate assistant

15

chiefs' positions?

16

that's

because then my only question will be what

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Mr. Hokama,

again, we appreciate last

17

year for you guys giving us this opportuDity to

18

move the department forward,

19

assistant chief's position is part of the

20

ongoing progression as the department has grown

21

tremendously in the last two and a half years

22

that I've been on board.

23

where we -- we are trying to catch up with some

24

of the inadequacy that needed to be addressed.

25

yeah, but the

And I

think that

And one of them is that we needed to
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have these division chiefs in there because the

2

workload that was there and the projected

3

workload out there for the department on

4

management side.

5

mainly working supervisors who actually work

6

directly with the 17 fire companies out there.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

give other

9

Chairman.

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

The battalion chiefs are

Chairman,

I will -- I'm happy to

my colleague her opportunity,
Thank you.

Thank you.
And before I recognize you, Ms. Johnson,

12

just for Chief and the department as well as

13

Mr. Ginoza regarding Mr. Hokama's points,

14

would ask you folks to take note of Section 7 of

15

the budget ordinance.

16

there that are required for us to give

17

consideration of the request,

18

part which reads,

19

showing the existing organization and the

20

proposed organization of the department with the

21

positions involved needs to be in front of us,

22

and we believe at this point that is lacking.

23

So prior to decision making, we would

I

There's two parts within

and the second

in part, organizational chart

24

urge you folks to consider Section 7 of the

25

general budget provisions in your budget
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ordinance and assist this committee in providing

2

that information to us, please.
Chief?

3

4

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Thank you.

Chair,

again,

that is

5

Section 7 in the budget ordinance and the other

6

one -- I'm sorry?

7

CHAIR KANE:

No,

that's under the general budget

8

provisions within the budget ordinance,

9

that's just something that you need to reference

10
11

so

to assist your efforts here with your requests.
MR. KAUPALOLO:

Okay.

And I believe we should be

12

able to do that for you.

13

those particular documents with us at the

14

present time.

15
16
17

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

We just do not have

Thank you.

Member Johnson,
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes,

you have the floor.
thanks very much for

18

your presentation and also to -- even for the

19

break-out and how the budget actually looks, how

20

it was put together this year.

21

One of the things that -- and,

you know,

22

if this is not the appropriate time to ask it,

23

Mr. Chair,

24

flooding that has been experienced and the

25

comment that was made also where you had to

just let me know, but because of the
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assist Civil Defense on Kauai with search and

2

rescue and some other operations, with the

3

battalion chiefs that we're looking at here,

4

with,

5

search and rescue,

6

but how is that actually going to be

7

accomplished,

8

that would be needed given the scope of some of

9

the duties that you're now asked,

10

I guess,

and

training that goes along with
we always think of just fire,

or is there additional training

you know,

to

perform?
Because if you look at search and

11

12

rescue,

13

them,

14

mean it's really a multitude of different kinds

15

of challenges that you have,

16

request that you have enable -- and I didn't

17

look at the portion of it, but will there also

18

be supplemental training or do you feel that

19

that is part of your ongoing training program

20

and that would not be a concern with the2e

21

people who would be put into these positions?

fire,

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. CORDEIRO:

24
25

chief?

flooding,

helping victims,

rescuing

also the incident with the plane,

and will the budget

Assistant Chief?
That's considered for the battalion
I'm sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I

Yes.
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1

The battalion chief would assist in

MR. CORDEIRO:

2

evaluating the training level of all companies

3

that's assigned to him,

4

17 companies, so with this division that we'd be

5

trying to implement, we'd allow the BC more time

6

to evaluate the people and get the time to do

7

it.

8

meeting that goal,

9

and it's what this second division will do.

10

and at this time we have

At this time it's very hard and they're not
and we're trying to get there

In addition,

they eliminate the workload

11

that's upon the BC at this time and it will be

12

just operations.

13

the training goals are met when they go out and

14

see -- talking to the people and seeing,

15

What else do we need?"

16

And they felt that they had enough training

17

until something happens and then we react.

18

we don't want to be reactive, we want to be

19

proactive.

20

And this is making sure that

"Okay.

Maybe they're missing.

And

And that's what this is.

And we've been trying to get these

21

positions for several years and,

you know,

22

hopefully we can gain it.

And as we grow, we'll

23

add on the other segments,

such as the HAZMAT

24

specialized, because that's another company

25

we're going to add on and add another burden to
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the BC at this time.
We're very concerned about it and we do

2

3

want it,

4

still go up -- myself,

5

and seminars to come back with knowledge and

6

pass it on,

7

work and network with other agencies and

8

departments and find out how they solve their

9

problems in their specific areas,

10

and we still strive for training.

We

I still go up to training

get our guys into a better program,

down the line.

and we train

And we do --

We'll train the BCs and that will be my

11
12

job to help educate and train them into the

13

managing of the rest of the department,

14

training the captains to manage their personnel

15

so we can meet these goals.

16

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I

and

totally

I think where my concern,

I

17

appreciate that.

18

guess,

19

duties that are put on the battalion chief.

20

You've got,

21

responsibility for others,

22

themselves trained,

23

and particularly with Molokai and Lanai and even

24

West Maui,

25

really important.

lies is because of the multitude of

as you noted,

the training and the
then getting

then the physical separation

the physical presence,

I think,
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One question that I would ask you is

1

2

have you considered,

even on a limited term

3

appointment,

4

guess testing the waters,

5

strategic plan,

6

"Okay.

7

the next stage."

8

at is that if you would look at or if you have

9

even considered maybe,

to see -- because I sense some,
if you will,

with your

seeing if it works and then,

If this is all right,

then we move to

But what I guess I'm getting

like,

a limited term

10

appointment, perhaps even in the area of

11

battalion chief,

12

Lanai,

13

that was workable.

one specifically assigned to

one specifically assigned to Molokai, if

And then if it did work,

14

I

you know,

where

15

you might change some of the description of,

16

guess,

17

duties,

18

are called to do when they're located in those

19

areas, but I'm just trying to figure out some

20

way that you may be able to put something in

21

that would give you enough latitude that even on

22

a temporary basis,

23

the concerns that are being raised here,

24

then also to see if it's workable.

25

I

the functions or -- I don't know what
you know, battalion chiefs specifically

you might be able to address

And if it's not,

then,

and

you know, maybe
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assistant chief or some other position might be

2

better, but I'm really concerned about just even

3

the physical act of getting to Molokai or Lanai

4

when you've maybe got a crisis going on in West

5

Maui.

6

reservoir breaks up above and you've got a

7

rescue,

8

sometimes occurring, particularly on Molokai,

9

what are your thoughts about trying to look at

Maybe there's flooding or,

you know,

a

and then you also have flooding
so

10

some,

11

to kind of address the concerns that you're also

12

bringing up?

13

I guess, more creative or interim measures

MR. CORDEIRO:

Well,

operationally, what we do,

we're

14

doing a mentoring program at this time.

15

bringing captains into the battalion chief's

16

office to train them in the different aspects of

17

not only the daily mundane duties, but also of

18

running the ICS and major emergencies,

19

case we have that,

20

and use Air One,

21

Air One for rescue.

22

to be the incident commander and help the

23

captains alleviate

24
25

We're

so in

we can send someone on duty

let's say,

if we're not using

We can send them to Molokai

Because to make you understand, when the
captain is incident commander until a chief
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officer arrives or a senior officer arrives,

and

2

that captain at that time is away from his crew

3

or managing his crew while running the incident.

4

When the BC or the chief officer gets there,

5

they're using operations and we're training

6

we're trying to maintain that training and

7

getting the people there.

8

put a BC on island -- on just Lanai would be

9

kind of difficult.

But to specifically

That would be a one to one

10

ratio and that would not work at this time.

11

mean if we grew a couple more stations there,

12

then it would be appropriate.

I

At this time we're working what we have

13
14

now and looking at the future.

15

to have as many BCs as we can and to cover and

16

give that type of thing,

17

(inaudible)

18

with and where we're growing,

19

prioritize, and this is where the priority is.

20

We start off with this one.

21

other people.

22

add on more personnel to cover what we need.

23

Yes, we'd love

but what the

that we have -- that we have to deal
we have to

We're training

And as we grow, we hopefully can

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And because of what

24

you just described with not having sufficient,

25

guess,

I

justification for a permanent position of
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battalion chief, have you ever considered

2

perhaps having floating positions where

3

know you described that West Maui might cover

4

Lanai, Molokai,

5

positions that were not assigned specifically to

6

a physical area but maybe have them as floaters

7

where they would be able to jump in where the

8

need arose if you had multiple situations that

9

occurred,

10

I

but have other -- you know,

have

or do you have that already?

MR. CORDEIRO:

We do have -- like we say,

the person

11

would be incident commander when there is a

12

major emergency and relaying back to the BC if

13

we can't get to them in a timely manner.

14

still manage the incident and we can manage from

15

a distance, but we still need to be there to

16

oversee it.

17

bringing in another chopper to get our people

18

there and taking resources over,

19

dealing from this side, but we do train with our

20

personnel.

21

to that level and we're trying to meet those

22

goals.

23

We

And we'll get either transport by

as well as

We're trying to train our captains

But the battalion chief,

to have a

24

floater,

25

a daily basis as well as being prepared for all

the type of -- what they need to do on
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these things, we'd like to have a dedicated --

2

and we were talking about dedicated personnel

3

and that's their sole goal and they'll do this.

4

And disseminating it and say,

5

your other duties as a captain,

6

these other things," and we're overwhelming

7

we're just pushing it down the ladder and we

8

shouldn't be doing that.

9

where it should be and work it that way.

"Okay.

Besides

you need to do

We should keep it
If we

10

can expand with the help of the Councilor any

11

funding we can find with budgeting and stuff or

12

grants, we try to do it that way.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I really appreciate it,

and

14

the only reason I'm posing the questions is

15

because I think that sometimes the situations

16

that you're describing have very unique,

17

know,

18

we're structured on a three-island community

19

or actually four

20

guess,

21

why I'm trying to ask or determine in my own

22

mind maybe there might be some other way that

23

you could meet the requirements under NIMs, but

24

also fulfill some of the goals and objectives

25

where you do have multiple demands,

you

characteristics and actually the way that

it requires some unique,

staffing and some duplication.

I

So that's

and then I
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1

guess redistributing the workload on people who

2

would then be able to step in.
But,

3

you know,

I obviously

you know,

4

you have a better handle on it than I do because

5

you deal with it on a daily basis, but just

6

trying to find some way to get through and try

7

to support your staff.

8

suggestions,

9

and we'll take another look at it.

I'll go get my strategic plan again

10

MR. CORDEIRO:

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

12

CHAIR KANE:

15

Thank you.
Thank you.

Thank you, Member Johnson.
Member Anderson, any questions at this

13

14

And if you have any

time?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Actually,

I would just

16

request that we get copies of job descriptions

17

for the commission secretary and the battalion

18

chief positions, if we could do that?

19

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

20

Chief, we could also use, maybe,

21

of your opening remarks since it is -- you have

22

it prepared and you read it into the record,

23

if -- without objection, we'd like to get that

24

as part of the record as well so we can use it

25

as a reference point in addition to Member
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1

Anderson's request, which we'll get a letter out

2

to you to provide us with that specific

3

information.

4

MR. KAUPALOLO:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

9

Thank you,

Thank you.
Chief.

Thank you, Member

Anderson.
Any additional questions on the

7

8

Okay.

battalion chief component?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Mr.

Thank you.

Pontanilla?
I don't know

10

if anybody asked the question with regards to

11

the department structure as existing in the

12

proposed structure should we approve the three

13

battalion chief.

14

CHAIR KANE:

We're requesting,

based on Section 7,

15

which is the point that Mr. Hokama brought up,

16

we're requesting the chief and the department to

17

provide us with a chart --

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah,

Now,

Organizational?

organizational chart.
Thank you.

there is one, Members,

if you note

22

in the program budget -- there is a chart there,

23

but it doesn't get specific enough to the

24

specific request that is being made,

25

asking the department for more specific chart

so we're
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for our consideration of this request.
Mr. Pontanilla, any further questions?

2
3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

No,

that's it.

Any further questions from

5

the members on the battalion chief area?

6

Hearing none, secretary request?

7

why don't you give us some opening remarks

8

there?

9

10

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Okay.

Chief,

Thank you.

Our second expansion position request,

11

the commission secretary, we're requesting as

12

submitted an expansion position request with an

13

A account position titled for commission

14

secretary for eight months salary of $18,512 and

15

other costs, and the C amount of $3,500 for

16

office equipment,

17

request of $22,012.

18

computer hardware.

Total

Also before you should be documents on

19

the expansion position justification for Fiscal

20

Year 2006, 2007.

21

service benefits and as it relates to the

22

strategic plan, goal 8, developing and

23

supporting effective organization.

24
25

Fund type general describe the

The proposed expansion request for
commission secretary is to relieve -- relieve
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1

the chief's private secretary, whose primary

2

work is to provide support to the fire chief.

3

Currently,

4

also as a commission secretary to support the

5

fire and public safety commission through

6

preparation of internal and external

7

communications,

8

reports, minutes at commission meetings,

9

maintains all records and files,

the chief's private secretary works

and monthly departmental

including

10

general clerical work, manages commissions,

11

budget expenses, plans and arrange commission

12

meetings and travel transportation schedules,

13

setting up of commission meeting areas and other

14

related duties as requested by the commission.

15

These are some of the duties currently done by

16

the chief's secretary.

17

Primarily,

the chief's secretary is to

18

support the fire chief taking messages,

19

answering the telephone, work with Finance

20

Department to monitor budget status and assist

21

with the annual budget development,

22

department's annual report and supports internal

23

and external communication, maintains business

24

records,

25

chiefs,

prepares the

schedules business meetings for the
arrange in and out -- in and out of
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1

state travel accommodations,

2

progress reports on developing strategic plans,

3

provides information with -- for the division

4

chiefs and bureaus,

5

support services,

6

and other general clerical work.

7

your consideration for this expansion request of

8

a commission secretary.

9

CHAIR KANE:

assists with

and prepares and maintains

records and stats as provided,

Thank you,

We ask for

Chief.

Members, before I open it up,

10

Chief, if

11

you can provide -- you've identified the duties

12

of the private secretary.

13

identify the work schedule that the proposed

14

position request is going to entail.

15

don't have that with you now,

16

get a copy of -- if this person is going to be

17

working a 40-hour work week,

18

showing it as a full-time personnel, and if

19

their duties are going to cross out of

20

commission work and into additional support for

21

your requirements,

22

that -- if you don't have anything now in

23

writing,

24

from you,

25

request out to you,

We need you to

And if you

then we'd like to

because we're

so if you can please provide

we'd like to get something in writing
and we'll make sure that we get that
Chief.
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1

MR. KAUPALOLO:

I could probably expand on that, but

2

I will go ahead and,

3

writing what it is,

4

CHAIR KANE:

I guess,

send you in

which you prefer.

Go ahead and you -- you can expound on

5

it now and then we'll open it up for questions

6

from the members.

7

MR. KAUPALOLO:

The commission secretary,

again,

8

would be on a 40-hour basis would be assigned to

9

do the administration -- administrative section

10

of the department.

And her primary -- or that

11

person's primary work would be to -- at least

12

40 percent of the work would be done as a

13

commission secretary.
And those works would involve,

14

as I

15

earlier stated,

16

external communications, and also to prepare the

17

communications for the commission and other

18

general clerical work as needed,

19

of the time would be allocated to assist in the

20

administrative section of the department.

21
22

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

to prepare the internal and

also the rest

Thank you.

And Members,

just before I open it,

23

the -- if you can also within that

24

communication,

25

the commission itself and their operation:

give us what the schedule is for
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1

meet once a month,

2

every day?

3

appreciate that.

8
9

If you can get that breakdown, we'd

Again, Mr.
you,

sir,

Pontanilla,

starting from

on the secretary request?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Presently,

as far as your

private secretary, when she goes on vacation or

10

sick leave,

11

work?

12

MR. KAUPALOLO:

who pinch hits to do the secretarial

Whenever she goes on vacation, we try

13

to TA someone to come in.

14

have a pool probably of two ladies:

15

prevention and one in training.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

information is, Chair,

18

just wait for that.

19
20
21
22

Any

questions?

6

7

once weekly,

Go ahead and open the floor.

4

5

twice a month,

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

We currently use

Okay.

One in

And the other

that you requested.

I'll

Thank you.

Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Chief,

Thank you,

Chairman.

the secretary position is

23

currently -- well,

first of all,

24

commission meets how often,

25

twice a month?

the fire

is it once a month,
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1
2
3

MR. KAUPALOLO:

That is correct.

They meet the first

Thursday of the month.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And so the request is

4

more,

5

secretary that you have who currently has to

6

staff the fire commission meetings;

7

guess,

8
9

I guess,

Okay.

to relieve the workload of the

is that,

I

the rationale for this?

MR. KAUPALOLO:
intents,

That would be one of the primary
correct.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

MR. KAUPALOLO:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo,

any questions on this area?

Chairman,

I ' l l wait until the

14

description comes in because I still look at the

15

position title and question whether that's an

16

appropriate title, because it's only 40 percent

17

of that responsibility and the larger part of

18

the employee will be doing administrative --

19

other administrative work,

so I ' l l wait until

20

the description comes in.

Thank you.

21
22
23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Hokama?

this area?

Ms. Johnson,

question in

Ms. Anderson?

24

Seeing no questions, Members,

25

questions for any of this area on the request

any
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for the -- further questions for battalion chief

2

or secretary?

3

from -- between now and at a later point,

4

feel free to bring that to the committee staff

5

and we'll go ahead and forward that request.
With that,

6
7

If you do generate any questions

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Chair,

any final comments,
I'd just like to,

please

Chief?

again,

8

reiterate -- I'd like to thank yourself and the

9

committee allowing us an opportunity to come

10

here and present our budget proposal for Fiscal

11

Year '07.

12

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Members, we're going to just take a very

13
14

brief recess.

15

very quickly and take care of something that

16

will take a couple of minutes,

17

five minutes.

18

15 minutes, but while we invite down the

19

Prosecuting Attorney and her resource personnel

20

to get settled, we'll take a recess and we'll

21

reconvene at 10:20, so about four minutes.

22

you can wander out but come right back if you

23

can,

folks,

The Chair just needs to step out

so I'll just take

We will have a morning recess for

10:20.

24

RECESS:

10:16 a.m.

25

RECONVENE:

10:23 a.m.

We're in recess.

So

(Gavel. )
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CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel. )

Thank you for that very brief
I

justed wanted to take care

2

recess, Members.

3

of some things there very quickly.
We'd like to welcome this morning our

4

5

Prosecuting Attorney, Ms. Davelyn Tengan,

6

you can, please,

7

record and who you have with you.

9

identify yourself for the

And before you begin,

8

Members,

and if

and forgive me,

as a matter of public testimony, we

10

have nobody signed up to testify,

so at this

11

time I'd like to ask if there is anybody here in

12

the chamber that wishes to testify.

13

opportunity to come forward.

14

And Members,

Now is your

seeing nobody approach,

15

this time without objections,

16

close public testimony for today's session in

17

chambers.

we'll go ahead and

18

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

close that up.

23

Thank you.

We'll go ahead and

Thank you.

Ms. Tengan,

21
22

Okay.

good morning.

Thank you for

being here.
MS. TENGAN:

at

Good morning,

Chairman Kane.

Davelyn

24

Tengan appearing for the Department of the

25

Prosecuting Attorney,

and with me also is
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1

Artemio Baxa, a long time member of our office

2

as well as a former circuit court judge in the

3

Second Circuit Court.

4

begin

This morning -- shall I

my--

5

CHAIR KANE:

Please proceed,

6

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

yes.

This morning I'm here to

7

talk with you about my EP request.

Basically,

8

have come to ask you for assistance for our

9

appellate division, which consists of three

10

attorneys.

11

attorney that I will be putting into the

12

appellate division,

13

I am asking for another full-time

and I will discuss that.

Also incidentally, and not on the list

14

that Mr. Ginoza gave you this morning,

15

I would just mention, we are also seeking

16

another expansion of a half position -- half an

17

EP, which is in the grant funded revenue,

18

will not be seeking county funds for that

19

because that position of the clerk for the

20

victim witness division will -- is fully funded

21

by federal VOCA SNAP grant funds.

22

it's not here,

23

caution,

24
25

I

I thought

so we

But because

I -- just out of an abundance of

I wanted to mention it.
I am seeking another attorney because

and I am seeking one for a 12-month period
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

64
BF 3/23/06
1

because I do believe I can promote immediately

2

when the fiscal year commences from within the

3

office.

4

is $66,228, as well as $1700 for a computer -- a

5

laptop.

6

Main suite of offices that we have there, and

7

I'll also be moving another appellate attorney

8

in the office to that suite of offices, because

9

we have one more office that we can put a couple

10
11

And that salary that I'll be requesting

This person will be located in the One

of people in and some equipment in.
The good news in this is that we are

12

winning cases and that's why we have to ask for

13

another person, because if we weren't, you know,

14

we wouldn't need another attorney.

15

The precise problem, which I'm going to

16

ask Judge Baxa to kind of describe a little bit

17

more as a person who's daily facing the issues

18

in the appellate area, is that the scope and the

19

nature of appellate work has become so complex,

20

we are now more involved in federal

21

law and federal habeas corpus cases, and this

22

involves some of our more serious cases.

23

federal

We had at least two over the last couple

24

of years which involved an attempted murder and

25

a murder, and they involve more complex types of
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1

procedures,

different types of deadlines and

2

constitutional law that we are not as familiar

3

with.

4

because that's just not -- the State law is what

5

we deal with on a day-by-day basis.

We have to spend more time researching

And the three people we have just simply

6
7

cannot keep up with the demands of what we are

8

now facing.

9

these attorneys do,

Basically,

the types of work that

which this new attorney will

10

do,

11

proceedings by persons who have been convicted

12

wishing to overturn their convictions;

13

habeas corpus petitions, which are petitions

14

filed by persons who have been convicted in

15

State court seeking a reversal of their

16

conviction on the grounds that their custody is,

17

for some reason,

18

proceeding is a writ of certiorari, which is an

19

application for review by the Supreme Court of

20

the State of Hawaii or even the Supreme Court of

21

the United States for review of another

22

appellate decision.

23

will be to handle post-conviction

illegal;

federal

and the third type of

The way that this problem has manifested

24

itself is simply that we have had to -- our

25

attorneys have had to seek extensions of time to
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1

complete their work.

2

court will give an extension of time of

3

approximately 30 days,

4

practice in prior years to simply have to seek

5

one.

6

that our attorneys are facing,

7

for them to seek three or four,

8

courts have been generous in giving, but they

9

have indicated that they are going to be less

10

Now,

Normally,

an appellate

and it's been our past

given the more complex proceedings
it's not unusual
and -- which

generous in the future.

11

And,

of course,

that's important because

12

everything in the issue of justice is you want

13

to be as speedy as you can in the disposing of

14

your cases in the interest of the defendant and

15

just in the interest of the expeditious handling

16

of legal matters generally.
We have tried alternate -- alternative

17

18

ways to cope with regard to the post-conviction

19

proceedings, which the appeals attorneys have

20

it's their job to do.

21

overwhelmed with the other work,

22

that from them and given those types of

23

proceedings to the circuit court attorneys to

24

do.

25

types of things that I mentioned,

Because they have been so
I've removed

They're a little simpler than the other two
and we've done
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that recently.
The second thing that we've done to try

2
3

to cope is that the first deputy also assists

4

and so he's kind of a fourth appellate attorney.

5

That's been a cope.

6

worker and I rely on him to do an awful lot of

7

things,

8

is when the legislature is going and he does a

9

lot of the appellate

But Ben is a very hard

especially in this period of time.

This

the research rather,

the

10

legislative research and testimony for pending

11

bills as well as many, many other things, but

12

those are the things -- those are the only

13

couple of things that we could do to try to cope

14

with this alternatively.

15

really,

you know,

And we're kind of

at our wits end with this.

And so if it's all right with the Chair,

16
17

I would ask to have Judge Baxa relate a little

18

bit more of what it's like to -- in trying to

19

deal with the issues that we're now facing.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

MR. BAXA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23
24
25

Thank you.

Judge Baxa.

Good morning.
You can adjust -- you can adjust your

microphone,
MR. BAXA:

Good morning,

Judge.

Good morning,

No problem.

Thank you.

Committee Chair Kane and

other Members of the Committee.

Again, my name

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

68
BF 3/23/06
I am one of the appellate

1

is Artemio Baxa.

2

attorneys in the office.

There are three of us.

3

Ms. Tengan has been doing her very best

4

to make the Maui Prosecutor's Office -- to make

5

and maintain it as one of the very best in the

6

State of Hawaii.

7

our office in the past and I hope that you will

8

continue to do so.
May I

9

I know that you have supported

just briefly outline to you how

10

the appellate section of the office works?

11

trial attorneys handle the trials of the

12

different cases from district court,

13

court and the felony level cases.

14

convictions of these cases,

15

happen.

16

are -- that have been obtained through

17

convictions are being appealed,

18

to the appellate process through the Hawaii

19

Intermediate Court of Appeals and the Hawaii

20

Supreme Court.

21

The

family

From the

several things

At this time, most of the cases that

so they would go

After the Hawaii Supreme Court or the

22

Intermediate Court of Appeals decide those

23

cases,

that is not the end of the case in most

24

cases.

Comes the post-conviction proceedings,

25

which go back again to the circuit court level.
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From the post-conviction proceedings,

1

2

again some defendants -- some appellants are not

3

contented.

4

rights as citizen of this country have been

5

violated,

6

you see how there is not only one proceedings

7

that we are attending to,

8

appellate proceedings before the Hawaii Supreme

9

Court,

If they feel that their federal

then they go into federal court.

So

we are attending to

then back to post-conviction proceedings

10

in the trial court level,

11

federal level.

then again to the

In working out appeals to the

12
13

Intermediate Court of Appeals or the Hawaii

14

Supreme Court,

15

defend the convictions to the very limit because

16

we know that the trial attorneys have worked so

17

hard,

18

do the very best to defend these convictions up

19

to the very limit at all the stages of

20

proceedings?

21

we do as appellate attorneys?

22

it is our job as attorneys to

and what would happen if we do not try to

So when comes the appeal, what do

Appellate attorneys have not been the
We have to examine the entire

23

trial attorneys.

24

record of the case at trial.

25

of the document -- all documents,

From the beginning
all police

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

70
BF 3/23/06
1

reports,

all documents that have been processed

2

in circuit court or district court or family

3

court,

4

be that have been committed in the trial level.

5

While the judges and the attorneys that

then we try to analyze whatever else may

6

handled the cases at the trial level try their

7

very best, unfortunately errors do occur

8

sometimes and we have no control of those.

9

is our job as appellate attorneys to sustain the

10

convictions.

11

been committed, we try to analyze the case,

12

cases to show that even if errors have been

13

committed,

14

to being able to overturn those convictions.

15

It

We know that even if errors have

those errors, in fact,

find

do not amount

So that is why in the appellate section,

16

it is so much involved.

17

study what happened at the trial level, we try

18

to study all the insights,

19

been entered into.

20

appellate level, we try again to reconceive

21

whatever study we can make to sustain the

22

conviction.

23

We not only try to

the studies that have

And so when we work at the

So it is not just a question of trying

24

to do some paperwork -- arranging paperwork, but

25

even in the arranging of paperwork,

that takes
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so much time because sometimes we could not --

2

sometimes records are missing,

3

to go back to original resources to find those

4

documents.
Okay.

5

That is

so we have again

we are through with

6

convictions.

But that is not the only case.

7

do not only deal with convictions,

8

feel that there have been errors committed at

9

the trial level,

sometimes we

so even if the defendant had

10

not been convicted,

11

been dismissed because something happened

12

allegedly that was wrong and we feel that that

13

was not correct, we ourselves appeal the case,

14

even if the defendant have not been convicted.

15

We

if we find that the case had

We have done this and we have also

16

succeeded.

17

that we have done this as well.

18

would just deal with conviction cases.

19

And it is a credit to the office
Normally,

we

While it may be that in working on

20

appellate cases, we will be able to generate

21

briefs,

22

fashion that we could reach deadline,

23

appellate level think that the way how we do our

24

job is that -- it's not just to submit briefs,

25

we try to do the best that we can.

submit to the Hawaii Superior Court in a
we at the

We are not
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contended -- if we do not submit the very best,

2

knowing that the product of our work are being

3

examined by the best legal minds in the state.
What makes our present work now much

4

5

harder is,

as Ms.

Tengan has indicated,

we are

6

now dealing also -- we have been dealing in the

7

past but more so now with federal cases.

8

us,

9

here,

And

you know, when we go to the trial level
we are mostly concerned about our state

10

law,

the State of Hawaii,

11

reaches the federal level,

12

becomes more complex, very much complicated

13

because there is a tension

14

between the state and federal law.

15

but when the case
the analysis of cases

there is a tension

So there goes deep serious and complex

16

analysis of cases.

17

federal cases, we again have to go back to the

18

entire record of the case,

19

trial level but at the post-conviction

20

proceedings which we have to account at the

21

federal level.

22

And in federal law

in

not only now at the

Just to give you how complex it is,

23

said,

24

office of three.

25

Ms. Arelene Watanabe,

I

as I

am one of the appellate attorneys in the
The lead appellate attorney,
who is probably one of the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Of c : ( 808) 524 - 2090
Fax: ( 808) 524 - 2596

73
BF 3/23/06
1

most knowledgeable appellate attorneys in the

2

State, and Mr. Peter Hanano.

3

federal habeas corpus case that he worked on,

4

had to submit a one -- more than a 100-page

5

submission to the federal court, which contained

6

a whole box of documents.

7

to refer to the entire -- I mean exhibits to the

8

entire submission of documents along with the

9

brief.

Mr. Hanano,

in one

In that brief, he had

So you can just imagine the writing of

10

it is not just the writing of the brief:

11

the

12

The analysis of cases, the analysis of the facts

13

of the case, what documents to attach to it, how

14

to prepare them in a very logical order.

15

federal court, even color coding is very

16

important.

17

instance.

18

It's very complex.

In

So that is one

And unfortunately, Ms. Watanabe could

19

not be here because yesterday she also filed a

20

federal habeas corpus case, and for the last

21

four days she had to spend more than 60 hours

22

not last night but the other night, she was at

23

the office until 3:30 in the morning.

24

unfortunately, Ms. Tengan could not bring her

25

along with me and so Mr. Hanano

And

because Ms.
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Watanabe had fallen sick,

and Mr. Hanano is

2

submitting today another document.
And in my case for the last four weeks,

3
4

I have been working seven days a week and I hope

5

that you can understand the plight that we have.

6

As I have indicated to you, Ms. Tengan has been

7

working so hard to help us doing the very best

8

she can to help us, but we need your help and we

9

hope that you understand the plight that we are

10

in.

11

We are not there to earn money, we are there to

12

serve the public in the same way that you serve

13

the public.

14
15

We're trying to do the very best we can.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you,

Members,

Judge.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

Director.

any questions?

16

19

Thank you,

Mr.

Question.

Pontanilla?

Thank you,

Thank you,

Judge Baxa,

Chair.

for explaining

the duties when you do go to appellate court.

21

Ms. Tengan,

is one attorney enough to

22

handle all the cases?

23

to Mr.

24

your staff is overworked.

25

attorney will -- I

-- Judge Baxa,

You know,
you know,

just listening
it seems like

I don't know if one

know it's going to provide
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some relief, but how much relief do you need?

2

MS. TENGAN:

If I may answer?

3

CHAIR KANE:

Please proceed.

4

MS. TENGAN:

You know,

I think one attorney at this

5

point and what -- Artemio is an example of the

6

attorneys in our office, of which I'm very

7

proud, people who work very tirelessly.

8

sure there's many in all the departments of the

9

County.

10

And I'm

I mean we all know that County work is

11

not about money,

it's about the motivation to do

12

something positive for the community.

13

example.

14

always use more but I'm going to just -- I'm

15

just asking for one, but thank you.

So -- but yes,

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

I

you know,

Thank you,

He's an
we can

Chair.

Thank you.
Mr. Molina?

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

MS. TENGAN:

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Mr. Mateo?
No.

Mr. Hokama?
Good morning.

Good morning.
Can you help us by maybe giving

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

76

BF 3/23/06
1

us some histories of how the caseload has

2

increased, Prosecuting Attorney Tengan, so we

3

can have a sense of -- obviously appeals grow

4

when you have more convictions and you've

5

already shared that you are able to get greater

6

convictions --

7

MS. TENGAN:

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Yes.

your office.

-- because of the good work of
So if you can help us get a better

10

feel of how the amount of appeals have grown

11

over the past few years and that will support

12

the request, please.

13

MS. TENGAN:

Yes,

sir.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

15

MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

If I may answer?

Over -- during the year 2002 to

16

2003, the appellate division responded to three

17

petitions to vacate -- conviction or judgment

18

which increased to 12 for 400 percent increase

19

for the year 2003 to 2004.

20

increased -- excuse me,

21

13 for the year 2004 to 2005.

22

And this again

this again increased to

And federal writs of habeas corpus have

23

also been increasing.

During the year 2002 to

24

2003, the appellate division responded to or

25

filed five federal writs of habeas corpus and
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writs of certiorari during 2003 to 2004.

2

number increased to 12 percent for a 140 percent

3

increase.

4

this number also remained high at the time of

5

the writing of this at nine.

6

some time ago and that was our justification

7

looking at the numbers.

9

And during the year 2004 to 2005,

The numbers,

8

appeals,

This

So we wrote this

though,

in the area of

they're very different.

For example,

10

in some of the other areas in,

11

domestic violence, we'll have, like, 1200,

12

1500 cases a year.

That's a very different

13

thing.

the number does not tell the

14

story, as Artemio indicated, because of the

15

complexity and the work that is involved.

16
17

MR. BAXA:

In appeals,

Councilmember Hokama,

for example,

if I could add to

that?

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

MR. BAXA:

Please,

Judge.

The numbers do not exactly tell the amount

20

of work that is being done.

21

one appeal.

22

might involve more than 15,000 pages of trial

23

testimony,

24

see how the amount of work that's involved?

25

Let us say there is

In one appeal -- one appeal alone

so it may be just one case, but you

A true appellate attorney is going to
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read 15,000 pages of trial testimony,

if he is

2

an appellate attorney.

3

One case -- maybe one case, but it goes to the

4

appellate court.

5

been decided but in the Intermediate Court of

6

Appeals,

7

that we have a strong basis to say that the

8

Immediate Court of Appeals committed grave abuse

9

in their judgment,

He's going to do that.

If we say that the case has

they decide against us,

and we feel

then we go to the Supreme

10

Court and try to say that they were in error and

11

try to maintain the conviction.

12

In federal habeas corpus cases as well,

13

there may be one case, but the -- but in federal

14

cases,

15

will say the preliminary cause,

16

preliminary answer.

17

on yesterday, they asked me to submit a

18

supplemental answer,

19

not be the end of that case.

20

another briefing that will be done,

21

numbers do not exactly tell the amount of work

22

that is being done.

23

the first document that the federal court
you make the

And the one that I worked

so I prepared one that may

And as I said,

There might be
so the

I do not want to repeat

24

it, but the exhaustion,

25

sometimes we feel mental block.

the fatigue and
And there are
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times when I am at home seeming to be sleeping

2

but I'm not sleeping,

3

case.

4

working at night.

5

I'm thinking about the

And so even if you are at home,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

you are

We can appreciate that comment,

6

Judge Baxa,

7

Members at times don't sleep either because

8

there's issues before us -- decisions to be

9

made,

10
11

I'm sure.

We have -- you know,

the

and we can appreciate your situation,

Judge.
We're just trying to get a feel and

12

understanding of this appellate division.

13

obviously the amount of cases may not be a good

14

number or factor of how we make decisions.

15

think one of the things that you shared is

16

obviously to do 15,000 pages,

17

hours involved for an attorney to do detailed

18

review and take notation to prepare for a case.

19

So

I

there's a lot of

Have you -- is it -- during appeals

20

Ms. Tengan, maybe you can help us, during

21

specific appeals,

22

nature at times that would it be easier for you

23

to go and contract for a specific case a

24

specialized attorney, or you feel right now the

25

best way to approach this need of your division

is it of such a technical
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is through another deputy prosecutor?

2

MS. TENGAN:

Yes,

if I may answer?

3

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

4

MS. TENGAN:

Yes,

I do believe that having another

5

attorney assigned to the office is the W&y to go

6

because I did forget to mention that the appeals

7

attorneys also serve two other functions.

8

is that they assist the trial attorneys in

9

reviewing jury instructions.
In appeals litigation,

10

One

the single

11

largest area of cases being reversed is not

12

necessarily the conduct of the attorney or what

13

witnesses testify to was somehow wrong or the

14

weight of the evidence,

15

which is the reading of the law by the court to

16

the jury at the end of the case.

17

whole area of jury instructions is the most

18

fertile area of appellate litigation,

19

the area where we really -- one of theI areas

20

where trial attorneys have to be very careful.

21

it is jury instructions,

And so this

and it's

And the law changes rapidly with

22

appeals.

Sometimes -- and very many times we

23

have gone into court with what is a standard

24

jury instruction;

25

which was ostensibly approved by the court,

that is something that --
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reviewed -- reviewed by the appeals court many

2

times without,

3

there was a problem.

4

case,

5

will make a creative argument or make an

6

argument regarding how that instruction is

7

inadequate,

8

then we're taking a new look at it suddenly.

9

So,

10

you know,

a -- you know,

any indication that

And then suddenly in a
the lawyer for the defense

insufficient or legally wrong,

and

it's difficult to rely on what we are

relying on.

11

So for that reason,

as well as many

12

others,

13

litigation.

14

attorneys, before they go into their circuit

15

court trials, work with the appeals attorneys

16

and have them review them and see,

17

there something wrong,

18

anything.

19

attorney for that purpose as well.

20

jury instructions is a fertile area of
And for that reason, many of our

you know,

you know,

is

do you see

So we need to have the appeals

And another function is

of the

21

appeals attorneys is -- Are1ene Watanabe,

22

example,

23

amount of time that she can spend in the office

24

on appeals and habeas corpus petitions and writs

25

of certiorari is that she is a member of the

for

one of her duties which affects the
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State Jury Instruction Committee,

2

Committee and also an appellate task force that

3

is looking at redesigning the structure of the

4

appellate system in Hawaii.

5

other functions as well.

6

you know,

7

them in the office and they do other things and

8

that also impacts,

9

the actual writing of appeals.

10

Penal Rules

So they perform

So for that reason,

we need to -- we'd like to -- we have

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

you know,

their -- you know,

And you can maybe help us in

11

future reviews by maybe having a specific

12

section that has an appellate measurements, per

13

se,

you know?

14

MS. TENGAN:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Oh,

yes.
We have under you felony,

16

misdemeanor,

17

juveniles,

18

division and yet,

19

information that we're provided doesn't have a

20

specific program description and some

21

information regarding your appellate program.

22

And I would ask that that could be helpful for

23

us --

family court adult,

family court

and you speak about the appellate

24

MS. TENGAN:

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

you know,

for us,

the

Thank you.
-- in the future.
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1

MS. TENGAN:

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

5

Mr. Chairman.

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Ms.

4

Thank you,

Thank you.

Johnson,

questions?

Thank you very much for being

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

here.

One of the questions I have is because

7

some of the cases that have been -- I guess the

8

sting operations that have been going on

9

recently,

are you involved at any level,

10

with appeals,

11

there were several federal operations that came

12

in and they did,

13

arrest them.

14

point in time something that you may be

15

eventually involved in with appeals,

16

something that is then taken off the island and

17

those individuals would be extradited?

18

MS. TENGAN:

on cases where -- I

even

I

guess,

know that

seize these people,

Are those proceedings at some

Generally speaking,

or is that

the larger sting

19

operations,

the ones that you read about that

20

have joint task forces with DEA and other local

21

police task forces as well DEA,

22

narcotics agencies are generally cases which are

23

going to go federally,

24

involved,

25

necessarily.

FBI and State

which we will not be

although that is not the case
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1

2

couple of years ago where actually some of the

3

persons that were arrested in connection with

4

that larger sting were not individually taken

5

federally but were tried,

6

a couple of them.

you know,

locally.

So

It doesn't happen frequently.

And there are some times -- not some

7

8

times,

9

terms of the amount of drugs that is recovered,

10

where generally the feds will take that type of

11

case and we will not.

12

we are going to be involved with those larger

13

stings but it can occur.

14

there are federal thresholds that is in

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So,

it's not usual that

And the reason I

ask this is

15

sometimes when there is a global operation,

if

16

you will,

17

community is part of,

18

effort to at least bring these people to

19

justice,

20

out,

21

individuals drop out at the local level,

22

the costs that are associated with the overall

23

operation I

24

cooperating but it's sort of like an unintended

25

expense that we are now faced with at the County

what my feeling is that because our
you know,

a cooperctive

that sometimes those people that drop

you know,

they're arrested,

feel in some way,

if those

yes,

then

we're
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level to try and support the overall operation.

2

So I just was curious if there was ever

3

any money involved where those people that,

4

let's say, didn't meet the federal threshold,

5

there were grants or other things that you could

6

also apply for or that we could inquire about to

7

actually take care of some of the costs that

8

would be associated with the larger operation?

9

MS. TENGAN:

If I may answer that?
In the area of drugs,

10

if

typically there

11

will be various types of grants,

12

federal grants available.

13

year,

14

determined -- Hawaii Community Foundation had --

15

was giving grants to various counties and were

16

looking at giving us a grant,

17

which would have gone toward methamphetamine

18

prosecution in some way, pay for another

19

attorney for maybe a year or so,

20

associated with meth prosecution, which

21

ultimately we were not able --

22

in fact,

including

And over the last

there was one that we

which would

various things

I was trying to get, but we had some

23

people

24

and so we had a vacancy issue, so,

25

couldn't put people into,

a few of the attorneys left the office

you know,

you know,

we

that special
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grant area when,

you know,

I needed to fill the

2

people in the courtroom.

3

types of grants that are available which we

4

continue to look to.

But there are those

5

But just at this point in time,

the way

6

I'm handling the drug issue is by my drug team,

7

which consists of three dedicated persons who

8

are not grant funded,

9

drugs.

who are handling strictly

But that seems to be working out very

10

well in terms of the partnership with the --

11

with the police and as well with the functioning

12

of the other attorneys in the office,

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well,

so --

I appreciate that.

And

14

I guess we're -- I'm looking too because of the

15

areas,

16

involved,

like Hawaii Tourism Authority or the,

17

you know,

economic development at the State

18

level should be very concerned, particularly

19

about property crimes or crimes dealing with

20

drugs,

21

employee theft,

22

the sectors of business that are

and also even their employees, with
that type of thing.

So I guess what I'm trying to lead up to

23

is that perhaps we need to also approach those

24

agencies or those entities, whether it's

25

business,

whether it's the departments at the
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State level, who will be impacted should we fail

2

or should you not have proper staffing to really

3

get tough on crime,

4

areas that may not be traditional.

so I'm looking in other

One final question, Mr. Chair,

5

and that

6

is from what I'm hearing,

there seems to be

7

almost a level of burn-out in the burden that's

8

happening,

9

think to piggy-back on Mr.

I guess, with your staffing.

And I

Pontanilla's

10

question,

while you're only asking for OGe

11

position,

are there other, maybe,

12

assistants,

13

counsel, but other people that could be support

14

staff that could help gather some of the

15

information to lighten the load for those

16

individuals that seem to be carrying the burden?

17
18

MS. TENGAN:

19

MR. BAXA:

20

MS. TENGAN:

not necessarily a corporation

Yes,

asked for,

legal

there are.

I guess,

I mean we could have

a para

Paralegal.
Paralegal who just does research and

21

that would assist.

That would help.

But I

22

didn't,

23

historically we just have never had paralegals.

24

We have three summer law clerks which are .3 EP

25

positions and we have them for 90 days,

and the reason I didn't is because

and
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that's what we've done for years and years and

2

years.

3

something that we could have done that would

4

assist and,

5

future.

6

And,

you know -- but that is also

you know, maybe I can do that in the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah.

Well,

even if you

7

could provide us with the cost for what that

8

paralegal would be because it seems that,

9

know,

you

if people having an overabundance of work

10

and not enough hours in the day to accomplish

11

it,

12

knowing what the costs associated with a

13

paralegal would be.

I would be very interested, Mr. Chair, in

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16

Okay.

Thank you.

17

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

Ms. Anderson?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Ms. Tengan.

21

MS. TENGAN:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Good morning.

23

technicians.

24

paralegal?

25

To help prevent burn-out.

MS. TENGAN:

No,

I see you have several law

Would they be the same thing as a

they are secretaries.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MS. TENGAN:

What is a legal clerk then?

That is a person who does less than --

3

the law techs are the highest level of

4

secretaries and they can -- they handle

5

they're like the lead secretaries in the

6

courtroom and they're trusted to handle,

7

know, motions and more documents, but they don't

8

do legal research.

9

persons who do things like filing,

10

typing,

11

thing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

no paralegal
MS. TENGAN:

And the legal clerks are

I see.

So you really have

any kind of law assistant?

Only in the summer and that's what the

15

appeals attorneys wait for,

16

come in and work.

17

helpful.

18

strictly

some messengering and that type of

12

14

you

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

the law clerks that

And they are always very

So you mentioned that you

19

felt you wanted 12 months funding for this

20

because you could -- you could promote within

21

the department and you'd have someone take this

22

position,

right away?

23

MS. TENGAN:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

Yes.
And if you could explain to

me what -- I see that you have a whole range of
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salaries for deputy prosecuting attorneys and

2

all kinds of various increases, percent

3

increases, and,

4

the footnote for these positions says that

5

incumbents allocated salary per ordinance number

6

3283, would you be able to explain that to us?

7

MS. TENGAN:

Yes.

in fact,

some decreases.

And

Every -- I guess while the Council
has been giving our attorneys

8

is giving

9

raises in accordance with -- has been amending

10

the budget ordinance for our deputy prosecutors,

11

and so presently -- I think there was one

12

recently and there may be another that the

13

Corporation Counsel and I will submit.

14

Every time that the salary of the

15

Prosecutor and the Corporation Counsel and their

16

deputies are raised,

17

period of time we can submit to the Council an

18

amended ordinance to elevate the raises --

19

elevate the salaries of the deputy prosecutors

20

in accordance with that.

21

in a way that I'm not exactly clear on, but I'm

22

sure the Council attorneys are clear on.

23

somehow tied to an incremental increase in other

24

areas of the civil service system,

25

what the differences are.

we are -- within a certain

And it's somehow tied

It's

and so that's
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well,

I mean,

I understand

2

what you're saying, but why is there such a

3

range of percentage increases?

4

on the type of prosecuting attorney they are

5

or -- I'm looking in the detailed budget 15

6

dash 4.

7

MS. TENGAN:

Yes,

Does it depend

it depends on the level.

Our steps

8

are from zero years to nine plus years,

and

9

that's what the -- so they have allocated

10

amounts and we generally put the allocated

11

amounts there.

12

Sometimes it's --

It changes in a funny kind of way

13

because sometimes a person leaves.

14

very recently a very high level attorney left to

15

do other things in life, and smell the roses and

16

smell the coffee and all that,

17

person that we had to come in was,

18

lower level person so then there's a difference

19

in what the allocated amounts are going to be

20

when we put it into the budget.

21

differences are due to the years of licensing of

22

the attorneys,

23

nine plus.

24
25

which,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

as I

say,

For example,

and -- but yet a
you know,

a

But the

go from zero to

So you have one deputy

prosecuting attorney whose salary last year was
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29,000 and this year the request is 85,000.

2

That's 194 percent increase.

3

MS. TENGAN:

That was -- if I may answer,

I believe

4

that was for -- we had given -- we were given

5

six months funding.

6

another attorney for our -- I asked for two new

7

attorneys,

8

family court, and we were given half -- six

9

months on one.

10

I asked for a half

one for district court and one for

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I see.

Thanks.

Okay.

So

11

I'm just trying to really get an idea of why you

12

specified this salary amount.

13

see it lining up with anything so --

14

MS. TENGAN:

I can't really

66,000 was -- is about the three,

15

four-year experience range.

Three ,

16

five-year experience range.

And it's about the

17

three,

18

four,

four,

five-year allocated salary.

Over the past three years,

I've tried to

19

basically pay -- used more of my salary money

20

for salaries and not build a surplus and use it

21

for other things,

22

more toward allocated -- what have been the

23

allocated amounts and kind of

it's been a

24

kind of gradual process because,

like,

25

you can't give somebody,

so I've tended to try to give

you know,

like, three raises a
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year.

That makes them not value -- you know,

2

their value their money any more,

3

been a slow process.
But at the three,

4

four,

so it's just

five-year range,

5

66,000 would be approximately the salary for

6

that person,

7

of the district court and family court appeals

8

and some of the less complicated appeals while,

9

you know,

and they would probably handle more

higher or more senior people, like

10

Arelene Watanabe and some of the other persons

11

and persons of the judge's caliber, would handle

12

more of the more complex stuff.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So then would that mean that

14

some of these salary allocations that have been

15

reduced are due to new people coming in?

16

MS. TENGAN:

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

Exactly.
And replacing someone who

had -- had more experience?

19

MS. TENGAN:

Exactly.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So if this person is

21

promoted within, then their position is going to

22

be open,

23

would be filled immediately or

and do you feel that that position

24

MS. TENGAN:

If I may answer that?

25

CHAIR KANE:

Please.
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MS. TENGAN:

Yes,

I can.

What we do every -- I try

2

to do every year is send out a wish list to the

3

attorneys and say,

4

you could work in or what you would like to do."

5

And very few people pick appeals because it's a

6

tough -- it's a tough job, but some people have,

7

and so I

8

move into appeals.

"Tell me what three positions

know at least three people that I can

And one person is currently earning less

9

10

than the 66,000, but I think would be a very

11

good match,

12

some interviews,

13

couple of people,

at least,

14

to -- if I moved,

for example,

15

person into this position, we already have

16

conducted a few interviews and have -- will

17

conduct another couple before July.

18

and we've already been conducting

So that,

so we do have a list of a
that I could hire
a lower level

you know, people have been

19

coming in even from out of state within a month

20

or two,

21

quickly.

so I believe that I could fill that very

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you.

Members,

I

know we haven't taken our

morning break and it's already after eleven, and
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so in view of the time,

2

of very brief notes.

I want to make a couple

The Chair's intent has always been to

3
4

try and focus in on the issue that's before us

5

with respects to the EP count.

6

questions or comments that you'd like to make

7

that go beyond that,

8

it too far out because you take up the time and

9

compromise the schedule of people who are

If there are

that's fine,

but don't take

10

waiting to come forward and provide us with

11

their prepared comments in the context of EP,

12

an example.

as

13

I make that so that we try to do our

14

best to stay within the context of why we're

15

here.

16

outside of that,

17

provide you every opportunity to post those

18

questions in writing and we can send them to the

19

prosecutor or any of the other departments so

20

that they can adequately respond with

21

information that they can support their response

22

with.

23

And if you have questions that are
again,

I

So again, Members,

reiterate that we

I'm trying to be very

24

respectful of all of you and your -- you know,

25

your needs to get information to help you make
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decisions, but I'm asking you to assist the

2

Chair and the program that we're putting forward

3

to make it a lot simpler for everybody since

4

that's what the administration has prepared

5

themselves for.
With that,

6
7

questions,

8

appreciate it.

if we can keep them brief,

Mr. Molina,

9

10

if you have any other

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I

another question?

Yeah,

thank you, Mr. Chairman.

11

I have just one brief question to tie into the

12

EP count and it was related to equipment,

13

that may be permissible

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

if

Yes.
just one question?

Good

morning, Ms. Tengan.

17

MS. TENGAN:

Good morning.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Judge Baxa.

Just for the

19

record, you're not making any requests for

20

equipment for this upcoming fiscal year;

21

correct?

22

MS. TENGAN:

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24

MS. TENGAN:

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

is that

For this EP?
Uh-huh.

Just for a laptop of $1700.
Oh, okay.

Okay.

All right.
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Because I note here under the FY '07 request,

2

it's zero,

3

strictly for the additional position you're

4

requesting?

so this is just -- the laptop is just

5

MS. TENGAN:

That's right.

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Anything more?

Because

7

I know how complex and the workload and that is

8

sufficient for the whole office as well,

9

just this one computer?

10

MS. TENGAN:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

Any other needs that

you foresee for the office?

11

13

Related to this EP?
Well, not only to this EP but

for the other personnel.
MS. TENGAN:

Actually, we have requests for,

15

know,

16

which I guess would come in another day.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

18

MS. TENGAN:

20

you

other types of equipment in other areas

17

19

I mean

Okay.

But just for this EP,

it's only the

computer.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

The laptop.

Okay.

No

21

software, no additional software or anything

22

like that?

23

MS. TENGAN:

Well, we have existing software which is

24

Research Premise Research software, and we have

25

a subscription to West Law so our computer
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research and the laptop is all that person

2

needs.

3

printers and so forth.

4

up at One Main where that person will be located

5

and equipment to service everybody.

6
7

And,

you know,

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

MS. TENGAN:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
MS. TENGAN:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

Just trying to look for

Okay.

10

13

We have printers already

ways to make your

8

12

Okay.

I think we have the

-- job a little easier.

Thank you very much.
Thank you.

Thank you,

Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any further questions,

Members?

15

Hearing none, Ms. Tengan,

Judge Baxa,

16

thank you very much for your presence this

17

morning.

18

we'll make sure it gets forwarded to you for

19

timely response.

And if there are any other questions,

20

MS. TENGAN:

Thank you very much.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

22

Members, we'll go ahead and take our

23

morning break.

24

recess until 11:23.

25

(Gavel. )

It's 11:10.
11:23.

We'll go ahead and
We are in recess.
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RECESS:

11:10 a.m.

2

RECONVENE:

11:26 a.m.

3

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

All right, Members.

We are

4

reconvened.

5

session for the Budget and Finance Committee.

6

We've completed the EP count discussion for Fire

7

and Prosecuting Attorneys.
We will now be speaking with Corporate

8
9

This is the March 22nd morning

Counsel.

Mr. Ginoza,

I'm hoping that Mr. Moto

10

is on his way down, and if not,

11

Civil Defense here, and why don't we go ahead

12

and have Civil Defense move to the front of the

13

line at this point?

14

Mr. Iinuma?

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

Oh,

right here.

20

Mr. Moto doesn't need ...

I'm sorry, Mr. Iinuma.

Mr. Moto is

Yeah.

Good morning, Mr. Moto.

18
19

then I de see

MR. MOTO:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members of

the Budget Committee.

21

My name is Brian Moto, Corporation
In front of you should be documents

22

Counsel.

23

relating to the equivalent personnel count

24

matters relating to our department,

25

Department of the Corporation Counsel.

the
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In brief, Mr. Chairman,

for Fiscal Year

2

2007, the Department of Corporation Counsel

3

proposes and requests that it be authorized to

4

increase its equivalent personnel count by

5

2.5 positions, 2.5.

6

Let me break that down for you.

The 2.5

7

represents one full-time equivalent position for

8

an attorney.

9

for our litigation section.

That attorney is anticipated to be
Our litigation

10

section currently consists of six full-time

11

attorneys devoted exclusively to all manners of

12

litigation:

13

rights lawsuits, administrative appeals and

14

other matters.

15

Personal injury lawsuits, civil

The remaining 1.5 equivalent positions

16

that are proposed includes one full-time Law

17

Technician I position.

18

position, as was described to you by the

19

prosecuting attorney, is essentially a legal

20

secretary position.

21

The Law Technician I

Currently, a number of our secretaries

22

have more than one attorney to serve, and in

23

conjunction with the expansion position for the

24

attorneys, we also need the support staff to

25

help with that attorney position.
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1
2

expansion represents the conversion of one of

3

our half-time paralegal positions.

4

they're not called paralegals.

5

the civil service job classification scheme,

6

their title is actually legal assistant,

7

all practical purposes,

8

people would call paralegals.

9

We have -- currently,

Technically,

If you look in

but for

they're typically what

we have two

10

half-time paralegals, and there's more than

11

enough work to keep at least one of them

12

occupied full-time,

13

but at least one of them has indicated a

14

willingness to work full-time,

15

to convert that position to full-time status.

and that -- not only that,

and we would like

So adding those three matters up,

16
17

comes out to 2.5 equivalent positions.

18

concludes my remarks.

19
20

CHAIR KANE:

Members,

any questions for Mr. Moto in

this area?

Mr.

Pontanilla followed by

22

Mr. Mateo.

Oh,

I'm sorry.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

That

Thank you, Mr. Moto.

21

24

it

Mr. Moto,

Mr. Mateo?

Thank you, Chairman.
how does one deputy

corporation counsel position address your
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2

department's need in terms of demand?
MR. MOTO:

Let me back up and say that for this

3

fiscal year,

2006, we were authorized an

4

expansion position, which we just filled that

5

was for our advice and counselling section,

6

that person is being trained as we speak.

and

That should help us a lot in terms of

7
8

our advice and counselling section.

It probably

9

won't eliminate all the issues associated with

10

that, but it's what we can handle now in terms

11

of acclimating that person and providing space

12

for that person.
Right now, we're in the midst of our

13
14

office renovation and relocation project.

15

anticipate that some time in May the furniture

16

and fixtures will be installed on the third

17

floor,

18

and counselling section, half of our office,

19

down in the third floor.

20

all of the advice and counselling section

21

attorneys, including the new person that we just

22

hired,

23

we have also been authorized to hire.

24
25

We

and we will be moving our entire advice

as well as,

That will accommodate

we hope,

a new secretary that

We would very much like to bolster our
litigation section.

That seems to be our next
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priority because the reports I'm getting from

2

all my litigators is that they have all very

3

full caseloads ranging on a wide variety of

4

subjects.

5

And also -- I don't mean to take up too

6

much time, but the County is facing increasing

7

litigation, and, probably in the long-term, will

8

continue to do so regardless of who's

9

corporation counsel.

And one reason is the

10

changing nature of insurance and the insurance

11

industry.

12

This goes to the issue of the fact that

13

insurance premiums for liability have increased

14

a great deal, and now it is either very

15

expensive or very difficult to obtain insurance

16

policies for the County of Maui at a reasonable

17

price for personal injury and property damage

18

kinds of claims and lawsuits.

19

What's essentially happening is because

20

insurance policies provide two main benefits,

21

one is coverage in the event that you get -- you

22

lose and must pay damages, but the second main

23

benefit is that of insurance defense.

24

insurance companies are increasingly reluctant

25

to issue policies with low self-insurance

Because
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retention amounts,

the SIRs, what sometimes

2

are -- sometimes are called deductibles,

3

though technically they're not exactly

4

deductibles.

even

What's essentially happening is that the

5
6

burden and the cost and the labor of defending

7

these types of lawsuits is being shifted to the

8

insured.

9

unless there are changes in the insurance

And that's a trend,

I think,

that,

10

industry and the nature of coverage, probably

11

will continue in the future.
So what will eventually end up happening

12
13

is that entities like the County of Maui, which

14

are large, which own many properties, engage in

15

many different types of activities and,

16

therefore, have a high risk of exposure to

17

lawsuits, will find themselves having to develop

18

and maintain large defense litigation staffs,

19

because increasingly they will do the kinds of

20

legal work that used to be performed more by the

21

insurance companies' attorneys.
Those companies are increasingly turning

22

23

to the insured and saying,

"You know,

we have a

24

high insured -- self-insured retention amount

25

here.

Why don't you insured handle the defense
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of this case, and we'll step in" -- meaning the

2

insurance company.

3

only when you reach or surpass your self-insured

4

retention amount."

5

bare the half million dollars or million dollars

6

worth of legal work that is entailed in

7

defending these lawsuits.

8

aspect is now very important and my prediction

9

will be so in future.

"We'll step in only until --

So they now expect us to

So the litigation

10

I also

11

quite frankly,

12

whoever is corporation counsel,

13

strong a foundation for the department as

14

possible,

15

of litigation.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Mr. Moto,

18

information.

22
23
24
25

All of that.

CHAIR KANE:

or

there is as

Thank you,

you were so gracious for all that

Thank you,

19

21

so that if I'm not here,

especially when it comes to the topic

17

20

I am trying to arrange things,

Chair.

Thank you.
Mr. Hokama?

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

response by Mr. Moto,

That was a thorough

so thank you.

You know, Mr. Moto,

I was listening to

your response to Mr. Mateo, my colleague from
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Molokai, but yet,

you were one of our advisors

2

that requested us to raise the threshold from

3

half a million to one million regarding

4

liability.

5

there in the policy to the County, but on the

6

other flip side, now you're asking us for more

7

personnel and whatnot,

8

are we better off, going back and lowering the

9

threshold so that the insurance company does

And of course, there was a savings

so financially,

10

now, you know,

11

participate responsibly on our behalf?

12

comment please, Mr. Moto.

13

MR. MOTO:

Yes.

which way

their due diligence and
A

Mr. Chairman, my -- I don't know

14

if -- my endorsement,

15

too strong a word of the proposal to change the

16

self-insured retention amount was more out of a

17

practical concern that I was being informed by

18

our Risk Management Division and the Department

19

of Finance, which actually procures the

20

insurance.

21

insurance brokers, they're the ones who review

22

these insurance coverages.

23

time to time -- yeah,

24
25

I don't know maybe that's

They're the ones who hire the

They consult us from

from time to time.

And according to information I was
given, as a practical matter,

it was proving
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difficult for the Finance Department to even get

2

sometimes these quotes for the self-insured

3

retention amounts that were specified in the

4

ordinance.

5

going to be able to comply with the law?

6

So my concern was, was Finance even

I mean if the law says you shall not

7

get -- exceed a self-insured retention amount of

8

$500,000 in an insurance policy, but all that

9

they cannot get reasonably is something higher

10

than that,

11

of having to violate -- to be in violation of an

12

ordinance.

13

then they would be in the tough spot

Yes,

the self-insured retention amount

14

was increased in the ordinance, but the County

15

still has the option, of course,

16

to purchase and negotiate lower amounts with

17

insurance brokers and companies,

18

we can afford it and can find people who are

19

willing to issue such policies.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And I

of attempting

assuming that

just bring it up because I

21

think in an earlier response,

you tried to tie

22

in that because the ceiling is higher,

23

amount of cases or claims against the County has

24

a potential of -- you predict an increased

25

workload and that helps justify your position

the
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request this morning before us.
And our Chairman is well aware that in

2
3

the past we've had former members that had

4

concerns that we hired special counsels for

5

specialized work and yet -- and,

6

had their points why they took that position,

7

and,

8

department to get the experience from those

9

special counsels' participations whereby we

therefore,

you know,

they

they supported increasin9 your

10

developed an expertise within house so that we

11

can reduce the need for special counsels in the

12

future because of the experience and knowledge

13

of your deputies.

14

Is this still in that same direction

15

that we

16

much decided the road to go into,

17

continues to assist your department to get that

18

experience and be able to concentrate on

19

specific areas of liabilities for the County?

20

MR. MOTO:

whether we knew or not, we pretty

Yes, Mr. Chairman,

and this

the -- the attorneys in

21

the Department of the Corporation Counsel, both

22

on the litigation and advice and counselling

23

section sides, have a tough task because they're

24

called upon to be jack-of-all trades

25

generalists.

They have to -- anyone particular
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1

attorney is often called upon to work on cases

2

that are in very different areas of law, much

3

more so than perhaps would occur in private

4

practice, because in private practice, attorneys

5

have the luxury of saying,

6

this case," or "Maybe you should find yourself

7

another lawyer," or "I'm too busy."
Our County attorneys don't have that

8
9

"I don't want to take

luxury.

We have to work on all the stuff that's

10

given us or find somebody who can.

11

tried very hard to avoid unnecessarily retaining

12

special counsel, and I think we have done a good

13

job in trying to limit such special counsel.
However, having said that,

14

We have

there will

15

always be occasions when special counsel is

16

appropriate.

17

or issues involved are complex or often in

18

nature where special skills or expertise would

19

be advantageous to the County and clients,

20

including the Council.

21

of situations coming up where that may very well

22

happen.

23

For example, when the area of law

I

can think of a couple

We recently appeared before you

24

regarding eminent domain actions.

Now,

25

typically that would be done in-house, and some
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Of c : ( 808) 524 - 2090 Fax: ( 808) 524 - 2596

110
BF 3/23/06
1

of the smaller eminent domain actions have been

2

done in-house, but,

3

who used to do it on a regular basis retired

4

several years ago.

5

recently and,

6

currently on staff have any experience in that

7

area.

8

people were willing to pay the full cost of such

9

attorneys,

Also,

for example,

one attorney

There haven't been any

therefore,

none of the attorneys

it was a situation where other

or at least a part of the costs,

and

10

so we thought of it as an opportunity to train

11

and learn from outside attorneys on these

12

particular cases.

13

That continues to be the direction I'd

14

like to -- an approach I'd like to take where we

15

use special counsel when it is to the County's

16

advantage,

17

when the cases are complex,

18

opportunities to hone the skills and expertise

19

of these attorneys on staff.

20

when special skills are involved,

As it is,

or

and to also use such

I think the attorneys on staff

21

do work on a large range of issues; many of

22

which -- and they're forced to learn and are

23

required to learn many areas of practice that

24

are new to them that they don't necessarily

25

practice every day.
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And one last thing, which is that it is

1

2

difficult because even if they do get a case

3

that requires them to learn new areas of law,

4

may only corne up once in a while,

5

be large gaps of time or,

6

do one case and maybe a couple years go by and

7

then maybe they confront a similar issue again.

8

Well,

9

do it on a regular basis means that it's hard to

in the meantime,

it

so there may

you know,

where they

the fact that they don't

10

retain sometimes that experience and

11

So there's always a continual need for training

12

and sometimes outside assistance.

13
14
15
16

this point.
CHAIR KANE:

I'm done at

Chairman.

Thank you.

Further questions?

Any questions from

the Members in this area?

17
18

Thank you,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

exp~rtise.

Any final comments, Mr. Moto?
MR. MOTO:

I just want to thank the Chairman and the

19

Members for your kind support in the past and

20

your willingness to act in the best interest of

21

our department.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23
24
25

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Moto.
Members, Mr. Moto is done.

We will

now -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman,

one very quickly,
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1

please.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama?

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Did we hear correctly you've

4

were you able to fill the two expansions we

5

granted from last budget?

6

there an increase from '05 to '06?

7

two additional positions.

8

those two positions, Mr. Moto?

9

MR. MOTO:

I think -- wasn't
We gave you

Were you able to fill

We have filled the attorney position.

We

10

are in the process of arranging interviews for

11

the second position,

12

position.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

MR. MOTO:

15
16
17
18

which is the law technician

Okay.

We just got a certification of eliaibles

from the Department of Personnel Services.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And your current request is for

one more law technician?
MR. MOTO:

That is correct.

And Mr. Chairman,

if I

19

may add one thing about that,

20

office is also going to be physically divided

21

now onto two different floors also,

22

practical issues with that because now it makes

23

it a little bit more difficult for there to be a

24

sharing of the common secretarial pool.

25

Now,

the fact that our

there's some

with a cleaner and more physical
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1

separation between the advice and counselling

2

section and litigation sections,

3

forced to operate somewhat semi-independently of

4

the other.

5

but each needs to have the resources necessary

6

to be able to support their own function.

7

each one is now

I mean we're still one department

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

But I'm assuming you're

8

going to get an increase -- I don't know if

9

productivity is the right word, Mr. Moto.

10

may not be the right word at all but,

11

our sense,

12

certain things to move up in the ability of

13

performance.

you know,

Yes, Mr. Chairman.

14

MR. MOTO:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

we expect,

That

you know,

you know,

That's understood.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Moto,

before you leave,

just so we

18

can understand

19

six months for the two expansions last year,

20

I'm not mistaken?

21

MR. MOTO:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. MOTO:

24
25

because I think we provided

Three months.
Three months?
So that's why the hiring occurred in this

last quarter.
CHAIR KANE:

if

Okay.

So thank you for that
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In this case,

you're requesting

1

clarification.

2

for 12 months,

3

ready to go July 1; is that basically what your

4

intent is?

5

MR. MOTO:

so are you going to have people

I am very -- I am optimistic that we would

6

be able to fill the attorney position fairly

7

quickly,

8

through a very extensive recruitment process and

9

publishing ads,

and the reason is because we went

and we had a surprising number

10

of people interview, much more than frankly I

11

expected.

12

one or two people who showed great promise as

13

litigators.

14

CHAIR KANE:

And in that process, we identified

Thank you very much.
Okay.

15

Members,

any other questions, we

16

can have it forwarded to committee and it will

17

be forwarded to Mr. Moto for response.

18

Thank you, Mr. Moto.

19

Members,

if you can direct your

20

attention to the request from our Civil Defense

21

coordinator.

Good morning,

22
23

Mr. Gen Iinuma is coming up.

MR.

IINUMA:

sir.

Good morning, Mr.

Chair and Members of

24

the Council.

My name is Gen Iinuma.

I serve as

25

the administrator for Maui Civil Defense Agency.
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1

I'm here this morning with requests for

2

two expansion positions for the upcoming fiscal

3

year.

4

technician,

5

second position is a secretary position,

6

for eight months also.

The positions I am requesting are a radio
one EP for eight months,

and the
one EP

7

The current status of the Maui County

8

Civil Defense Agency is we have four staff --

9

four current staff:

Administrative position,

10

plans and operations officer,

11

staff specialist position,

12

technician position.

13

support at this point,

14

right now.

a

a civil defense

and a civil defense

We have no clerical
and that's where we're at

If I can begin with the radio technician

15
16

position,

it's basically to take on some of the

17

issues related to our warning signal sirEn,

18

to take on issues related to communications

19

which we're trying to develop into a very robust

20

system of operation to coordinate activities

21

where we have statewide communication coming in

22

to us,

23

that ultimately we'd like to have to ensure that

24

we have a comparable and effective system for

25

operations.

and

and to look at the kinds of technology
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The secretary position,

1

it just goes

2

without saying.

3

and clerical support,

4

in their area are doing their own filing and

5

management in that area,

6

would be a great addition to have someone to

7

provide us with that kind of support.

and we feel that it

be open now for your comments.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr.
Members,

11

Iinuma.

questions for Mr.

Civil Defense coordinator?

12
13

each of the professionals

I ' l l be open for your questions -- I ' l l

8

10

Without current administrative

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

our

Ms. Anderson?

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr.

14

Iinumc,

Iinuma.

Can you tell me

15

are any of the job duties for this new position

16

currently being done by somebody now,

17

would that be,

18

MR.

IINUMA:

and who

and what position would that be?

Are you asking specifically if there are

19

secretarial duties being done by a person or a

20

radio technician?

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm asking about the

radio technician.

22
23

No,

MR.

IINUMA:

Oh,

okay.

The warning siren system is a

24

State system; however,

because of some of the

25

kinds of issues we faced in the past and
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1

currently, we felt that it was appropriate for

2

us to seek our own position here on island to

3

expedite repairs and ensure that the capacity of

4

our warning siren system would be efficient and

5

appropriate.
So the State has,

6

I believe,

five

7

positions of which three to four have remained

8

vacant for some time now,

9

serviced Maui County has been sending a

and how they have

10

technician over maybe once a quarter.

11

due to their lack of individuals or people to

12

fill their positions, we've had a gap in

13

service,

14

to be able to shore up.

15

Sometimes

and so this is one area that we'd like

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So if I understand,

there's

16

nobody currently under the County payroll who

17

fulfills these job duties?

18

MR.

IINUMA:

No.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

depending on the State --

20
21

MR.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

IINUMA:

Yeah.

23

duties,

24

responsibility?

25

And that we have been

MR.

IINUMA:

-- to fulfill these job

and is it essentially their

It is -- it is under the system.
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1

is a Memorandum of Agreement.

Within the

2

warning siren system,

3

kinds of systems:

4

and the other is based on mechanical.

They're

5

phasing out the old mechanical system,

some of

6

which has been around since World War II into

7

electronic mode.

there are two different

One is an electrical system

And the Memorandum of Agreement that we

8
9

have is that the County will repair, maintain

10

and try to service the mechanical portions of

11

it.

12

is not able to assist us in an area,

13

contract with on island services to purchase of

14

service to take care of those needs.

15

currently we -- you're correct, we don't have

16

any person taking that on,

17

ultimately responsible for the electronic side

18

of it.

19

How we've done it is to -- when the State

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

is to

But

and the State is

So this radio technician

20

would be responsible for taking care of the

21

electronic side?

22

MR. IINUMA:

Well, what we're -- we're hoping to do

23

is -- and it's pretty specialized is to have the

24

individual at the very least be able to help us

25

trouble-shoot and then work very closely with
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1

State, with their technicians to be able to find

2

the best solution for repair and to bring our

3

system up to efficiency.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So I mean of course

~e

5

you know,

6

this County,

7

these positions -- how long have they been

8

vacant?

9

positions?

10

MR. IINUMA:

the ultimate protection in place for
and if the State is not fulfilling

You said there were three vacant

Yeah.

And that's due to attrition,

11

retirement and such.

12

ability,

13

least 11 months,

14

three positions open.

15

couple, but then as they filled a couple

16

positions,

17

of a cyclical effect.

I

19

so to speak?

20

MR.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

they've had about

They just filled a

Mr. Chair,

23

responsibility.

so it's kind

Leaving us to hold the bag,

We've had our challenges,

22

25

think,

another person retired,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

My -- to the best of my

I think it's somewhere around -- at

18

IINUMA:

want,

yes.

So it looks like once again,

the County is picking up a State

Would it be possible for you to share
the Memorandum of Agreement with this committee?
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Certainly.

1

MR. IINUMA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

3
4

5

Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

I'll make the request in writing to get

that.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

And before I recognize anybody else,

8

Mr.

Iinuma, with the radio technician,

is there

9

going to be an existing schedule of maintenance

10

or will your office be creating a schedule of

11

maintenance for the three or four islands that

12

are within the network,

13

and related equipment maintenance?

14

MR. IINUMA:

if you will, of sirens

I would prevail upon State Civil Defense

15

to assist us in that scheduling so that we don't

16

duplicate efforts and we do it as efficiently

17

and as appropriately as possible.

18

The ones that -- the siren systems that

19

we have that have shown to be problematic, we'd

20

like to,

of course, have those priority taken

21

care of,

so all of the systems -- and there's

22

some other new systems that are coming to the

23

County.

24

some moneys that the governor released and so

25

there may be an additional -- between eight to

Understand that State Civil Defense had
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12 new siren systems being placed in our county,

2

and I envision this individual spending a great

3

deal of time looking at that also.
And of course,

4

you know,

as I said

5

previously,

6

position and so there's going to be a learning

7

curve that goes with it.

8

CHAIR KANE:

No,

that it's a real specialized

I appreciate your response.

Now,

9

with that, with that funding being released and

10

new systems being incorporated into the current

11

system, do you -- are you aware of how that's

12

going to be spread out among the islands within

13

the County?

14

get another one or is Molokai going to get two

15

more?

16

point?

17

MR. IINUMA:

18

sorry,

19

correctly as to the exact placement of them all.

20

We sent out a list of -- according to population

21

and demographics so we prioritized accordingly

22

by that means.

23

would be having some.

24
25

In other words,

is Lanai going to

Are you -- do you have an idea at this

They sent out a priority list and,

I'm

right now my memory doesn't serve me

And I believe Molokai and Lanai

And then also too, now,

some of the

systems are not the traditional sirens that you
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1

see, but they're also called simulators and they

2

reside in hotels or resorts where high density,

3

high population areas.

4

into our warning siren system but they really

5

stay maybe in a place that's manned 24 hours,

6

such as security or switchboard and the

7

(inaudible)

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

And they're incorporated

system, too.

The reason the question

by going to

this question for the technician's

10

responsibility of service and maintenance,

11

you're basing it off of the State's system,

12

which I think you mentioned earlier, and you can

13

correct me, if they're doing it quarterly,

14

that something that you would view, as our

15

administrator, as adequate, and,

16

this person, without putting ourselves in an

17

exposure or liability issue on taking on a State

18

responsibility, as Member Anderson has talked

19

about -- I guess that's where we're going to

20

have to start understanding that --

if not,

if

is

would

21

MR. IINUMA:

Yeah.

22

CHAIR KANE:

-- and I don't want to get too far into

23

What--

that --

24

MR. IINUMA:

Okay.

25

CHAIR KANE:

-- because I know we're just talking
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1

about the position itself.

2

MR. IINUMA:

Sure.

3

CHAIR KANE:

But just to understand the function of

4

5

that.
MR. IINUMA:

Well, I would say that we like to take

6

on our end of the Memorandum of Agreement, which

7

is the mechanical functions and to be able to

8

point out the kind of areas and to assist the

9

State in fulfilling their obligation.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Very good.

11

MR. IINUMA:

That's all I did.

But also too, Chair,

12

excuse me, but this position,

I envision that it

13

would be incorporating it into ultimately

14

assisting the Maui Police Department in the

15

entire communications network, which is the

16

backbone for our communications throughout the

17

County.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

19

MR. IINUMA:

And I would like them to work very hand

20
21

in hand and very closely in a partnership.
CHAIR KANE:

22

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla?

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

24

MR. IINUMA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Good morning.

Good morning.
In regards to -- I see you
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1

2

have one technician already in place?
MR. IINUMA:

I

do not, no.

have a civil defense

I

3

technician, yes, and that position is a

4

semi-professional position that provides the

5

kind of assistance we need in our department,

6

which is -- in our agency, which is at this

7

point considerable in latitude.

8

And what I mean by that is over the past

9

few decades, the Civil Defense Agency's role has

10

moved from one of natural disaster issues, of

11

course, you know,

12

tsunamis, high wind, high surf and what-have-you

13

into the area of Homeland Security, which has

14

taken a considerable amount of time.

15

floods,

fires,

hurricanes,

And Homeland Security, of course, would

16

take on issues of terrorism and the weapons of

17

mass destruction topics of chemical, biological,

18

radiological, nuclear and explosive.

19

role in which we have of coordinating

20

mitigation, prevention,

21

efforts related to protecting life and property

22

has put our agency in a very

23

position because we have to be -- we're

24

stretched real thin.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And the

response and recovery

compromisin~

So this technician doesn't
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1

2

handle any kind -MR. IINUMA:

No,

this is really a -- for lack of

3

better word,

4

mechanic,

5

than -- rather than a program developer or

6

I believe more of,

kind of,

a

so to speak, or electronics rather

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

You say I envision a radio

7

technician as a person that will handle,

8

know,

9

regards to repair, maintenance as well as

10

you

electronic equipment in your department in

installation.
Now,

11

you mentioned the police

12

department.

13

the 800 megahertz radio system that we currently

14

have for the police department?

15

to have your technician work closely with the

16

police department,

17

going to be involved in a mega -- you know,

18

megahertz radio.

19

Is the technician going to support

I'm sure,

The other thing that,

If you're going

you know,

he's

you know,

kind of

20

puzzles me is that will this technician be

21

required to have an FCC license?

22

MR. IINUMA:

Frankly speaking,

800

I don't know that

23

answer about the FCC license.

24

previous question about working with the

25

800 megahertz rebanding,

yes,

But to your

they would have to
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1

work closely because all the comm systems are

2

very integrated, yeah.

3

out.

4

I

The FCC one,

I can find

--

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Yeah, and the last

5

question I have is that,

you know,

I've seen

6

Mr. Delima at times,

7

he's overworked.

8

call or will he be on a rotation as far as being

9

on call for the department?

you know, it seems like

Will this technician be on

In other words,

I

10

know at ope time there was only two persons that

11

were basically 24 seven.

12

one more on the particular on-call schedule will

13

give some of you people or some of the

14

department personnel some time off.
You know,

15

You know,

to include

having spoken to and visiting

16

your operations,

17

during hurricane season and,

18

tsunami warnings that we've been having the last

19

couple of months,

20

are,

21

it seems like -- especially
you know,

the

that it seems likes you guys

you know, walking zombies.

MR. IINUMA:

Yeah,

I've been here since three this

22

morning so -- well,

the -- the technician ought

23

to be on call 24 seven, but specifically to take

24

on the issues related to radio technology or

25

communications technology.

The rest of the
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1

staff is on 24 seven call, not on standby, but

2

on call.

3

pretty much on standby, and there's a real

4

distinction between being on standby as being on

5

call, as you're aware.

6

the short answer to your question is that I

7

would envision that it would on 24 seven call,

8

but the standby issue has to be resolved another

9

time.

When I'm -- when I'm on duty, I'm on

10

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

MR. IINUMA:

12
13

Thank you.

By certainly, it's real different from

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

And we'll forward the FCC question -Yeah.

-- Mr. Pontanilla, for timely response.
Any additional questions, Ms. Anderson?

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20
21

the answer

what the professional end does.

14

19

So yeah,

Thank you.

Mr. Iinuma, would it be possible to get
a copy of the job description for this position?

22

MR. IINUMA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

24

CHAIR KANE:

Final questions before we

25

Certainly.

Thank you.

wrap it up, Members?
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Hearing none, any additional remarks

1

2
3

from you, Mr. Iinuma?
MR. IINUMA:

Thank you very much for allowing me to
I appreciate your support and

4

come before you.

5

hope to work with you again.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you very much.

Members, it's five after twelve.

7

8

take our lunch recess at this time.

9

coming back with the Finance Department

We'll

We'll be
~ith

10

Mr. Kalbert Young and we'll see how that goes.

11

We may have to -- we'll watch our time for the

12

end time, and if time permits, we'll start with

13

Housing, but in all likelihood we may not be

14

able to get through both Finance and Housing

15

this afternoon.

16

adjustments possibly, okay?

17

on how we proceed through our agenda.

So we're going to start making
So it depends again

So Members, why don't we go ahead and

18

19

take our lunch recess and we will reconvene back

20

here -- Members, 1:30 is fine or do you need a

21

little extra time?

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

Okay.

until 1:30.
RECESS:

1:30.

1:30, Members.

We are recessed

(Gavel.)

12:05 p.m.
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1

RECONVENE:

1:33 p.m.

2

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

All right.

Let's go ahead and

3

reconvene the Budget the Finance Committee

4

meeting for March 23rd,

5

our afternoon session.

2006.

Members,

this is

For the record, we have in attendance

6
7

for this afternoon meeting, we have Members

8

Anderson,

9

Kane.

10

Johnson, Mateo, Molina,

Pontanilla,

Members, we have our director of Finance

11

here with us this afternoon to go over the

12

requests for the department's expansions.

13

believe we have a total of 12, if I'm not

14

mistaken,

15

through that.

16

I

so we'll allow our director to go

And before we do that, Mr. Young,

17

Mr. Ginoza,

18

afternoon's session that you'd like to give a

19

heads-up to the committee?

20
21

MR. GINOZA:

Yes,

are there any comments for this

thank you, Mr. Chair.

I'd like to point out on the EP counts

22

that there were some transfers of positions

23

that's being requested,

24

not -- you know, may not jive with the total

25

that's been discussed today.

so your EP count may
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For example,

1

for finance today, we have

2

12 EP counts, that's expansion positions but

3

there was one transfer of the safety specialist

4

position from the Police to the Finance

5

Department.

6

any department that has transfers, I'd like to

7

point that out so everybody is aware of the

8

transfers.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So what I'd like to do is prior to

So again,

just one more time if

10

you can denote on the 12 transfers that impacts

11

that number directly?

12

MR. GINOZA:

If you look at the '06 EP count and '07

13

EP count,

it increased by 13, but actually,

14

there's expansion positions of only 12.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

16

MR. GINOZA:

And if you look on page 5 dash 3, I

17

believe, there's a transfer of

18

Management Division -- this is on the detailed

19

budget proposal.

under Risk

20

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

21

MR. GINOZA:

If you look at the last position under

22

Risk Management, there's a safety specialist

23

position with a note that this is transferred

24

from the Police Department, I believe.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

The footnote is what you're
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referencing now?

2

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So Members,

4

of that,

5

have footnotes,

6

additional information.

just take note,

as well as the overall

yeah,

whenever we

there's for you to get

7

MR. GINOZA:

May I make another comment, please?

8

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

9

MR. GINOZA:

On the schedule that I submitted this

Go for it.

10

morning,

11

equipment and the other costs yet, but I'd just

12

like to point out that if you do want to try to

13

tie in the equipment,

14

included in the individual department's budget

15

but are included in the MIS's equipment budget,

16

so if you have any questions,

17

referrals to you.

18
19

CHAIR KANE:

I know we're not evaluating the

the computers are not

I can make those

Thank you.
The other question -- I

know in your

20

opening remarks yesterday, Mr. Ginoza -- before

21

we give you the mike, Mr. Young -- that you

22

talked about the number of months requested

23

varying between eight -- six and eight months

24

actually,

yesterday you said eight to six months

25

in light,

I guess,

of our discussion from last
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year when we,

2

most cases the amount of time to get hiring

3

accomplished, going through that process.

4

yet we're noticing on this handout that you gave

5

us this morning that it's virtually all

6

eight-month requests with a few exceptions to

7

12-month where we've already identified that

8

they can be hired immediately.

9

some comment there, please?

10

MR. GINOZA:

Yeah.

I think, Members, we cut back in

I

And

Can you provide

may have misspoke yesterday

11

after looking at the summaries that I

12

and I

13

that, like, Corporation Counsel and Prosecuting

14

Attorney's Office did request the 12-month where

15

they were confident that they could try to

16

recruit,

17

of the year.

18

CHAIR KANE:

did notice -- and I

you know,

Okay.

I

did today,

should have remembered

employment at the beginning

think more of the concern,

19

though, would lie with last year's discussion

20

where it was determined because of the

21

historical data that was provided to the

22

committee,

23

to about six months before people were actually

24

coming online.

25

adjustment last year for the amount of money

that hiring was taking

it was up

And so that's why we made an
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1

going to the programs with respects to time for

2

expansions.
And yet this year we're seeing back to

3
4

the eight-month, which means that you are going

5

to be able to, based on your proposal, complete

6

your hiring process and have people online

7

within four months of the start of the fiscal

8

year.

9

arriving at the -- you know, how that

So we need to understand how you are

10

determination is in contrast to what historical

11

information has shown us that you folks haven't

12

been able to achieve hiring in a four-month

13

period.

14

MR. GINOZA:

And I apologize for that because I

15

wasn't really aware of the previous discussions

16

on the six months, but as I understood as to how

17

this was -- this year's budget was constructed,

18

it was primarily,

19

departments to kind of look at what the -- their

20

time requirements are.

21

wasn't aware of the discussion of six months,

22

I apologize.

23

CHAIR KANE:

I guess,

requesting the

And like I said,

I
so

What we'll do is if we can have maybe a

24

status on last year and I believe Mr. Young,

25

would recall, we requested specific information
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to show us which,

2

determination to go to the six month.

3

is a possibility that we can extract that

4

response that we got back last year and then do

5

an update status on that to see if within the

6

past year something has changed to where you

7

folks have been able to hire quicker,

8

back to a four-month timeframe versus what you

9

folks are requesting, which is the four month.

10

If there

you know,

We want to see if you can justify that.
Mr. Young?

11

12

basically helped us make a

MR. YOUNG:

You know, Mr. Chair, in my experience for

13

the Department of Finance and as well as what

14

I've observed in some of the other departments

15

that had position requests,

16

the Council had appropriated for FY '06 budget

17

has, by the most part, worked out to be

18

appropriate, because the recruitment process for

19

a lot of -- a number of those positions has

20

taken very much close to that six months.

21

the six months that

There are a few exceptions,

and it seems

22

that -- for positions that already have existing

23

lists,

24

continuous recruitment positions,

25

or lower level entry level positions that

you know,

these -- you know,

like

for instance,
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have -- that always seem to be in recruitment

2

and they haven't established lists to pull from,

3

those do move through the process a lot quicker,

4

so the eight months is -- is realistic.

5

So,

I'll get into it

for instance

6

later, but when you look at the Department of

7

Finance requests,

8

that you'll commonly see us

9

recruiting for,

there's a number of positions
the County

and those have existing lists,

10

so it's very realistic that a four-month process

11

is quite generous,

12

positions where the County doesn't recruit as

13

much or they're new positions that have to get

14

created and have to get leveled -- that's the

15

big chunk of time is when DPS has to level them

16

and compare them to other government ageucy

17

positions,

18

actually.

But on some other

that's where it does take long.

And in those instances,

19

very reasonable.

20

of Finance,

21

a six-month position for FY '06 and we have

22

still yet unable to get the recruitment.

23

In some cases,

six months is
like Department

it's how -- Council had appropriated

So the six month,

I think,

is very

24

reasonable if you established it as a blanket.

25

But just for your knowledge,

there are instances
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2

where less and more are appropriate as well.
CHAIR KANE:

No,

I appreciate your comments.

And in

3

light of your comments, maybe you can also

4

inject into the equation,

5

that we have current vacancy positions which are

6

also getting funded,

7

they will be filled and don't get filled.

the fact

you know, anticipating that

So that's an additional pot because it's

8
9

if you will,

a program budget.

That's some place you can

10

draw on to cover for the -- in the circuwstance

11

that you described,

12

additional two months that may be needed because

13

it's a quicker hire than anticipated.

14

MR. YOUNG:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Yes,

to cover the

certainly, Mr. Chair.

Okay.

16

you know,

Thank you very much.

Members, we'll go ahead and provide

17

Mr. Young with opening remarks specific to

18

Finance.

19

general stuff out of the way and then we'll go

20

with Q&A after that.

21
22

I just wanted to get some of the

Mr. Young,
MR. YOUNG:

thank you.

Thank you.

23

Good afternoon,

Chair Kane and Committee

24

Members.

25

requesting a substantial number of expansion

The Department of Finance is
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1

positions for your Fiscal Year 2007 budget

2

consideration.

3

requested in Finance,

4

Division,

5

Vehicles and Licensing.

6

There are 12 new positions
two in the Accounts

and ten in the division of Motor

As the director,

I

recognize the largess

7

of these requests;

however, please know that I

8

do not make this request to the Council lightly.

9

Careful evaluation and consideration was given

10

to the growth in the size of government and

11

overhead costs.

12

The responsibility of the Department of

13

Finance is a support services function.

14

the diverse areas of these responsibilities, our

15

direct customers are members of the public as

16

well as County departments and its employees.

17

Given

In my one and a half years as the

18

director,

19

areas within the department that either have

20

high levels or the potential for deficiencies.

21

Some of these areas Council members could argue

22

that they have already witnessed.

23

I

I've assessed a number of service

reiterate that great care and

24

consideration was given before asking the Mayor

25

and now the Council to consider allowing the
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expansion of Finance.

2

position,

3

front line non-managerial operational staff.

4

Each position has been evaluated as important

5

enough to be considered to further increase the

6

service capabilities in both the accounts

7

division and at the DMVL.

9

all of these positions requested are

Mr. Ty Yoshimi,

8

Manager,

With the exception of one

the Accounts Division

and Mr. Lito Vila,

the DMVL

10

Administrator,

11

specifics as to how these positions will fit

12

into the current operations and how they will

13

improve upon service delivery.

14

their presence is warranted and appropriate

15

because these positions, being non-managerial,

16

you will be able to get a good grasp and

17

understanding of how they will improve service.

18

are both here to provide

I

And with that, Mr. Chair,

feel that

it's your

19

discretion as to how you would like for me to

20

proceed, by which division or by the individual

21

positions themselves.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Director.

23

Members, before we invite any of the

24

director's resource persons to come forward,

25

would ask if you have at this point any general
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questions regarding the requests to have a clear

2

understanding of what the reasons for the

3

request.

4

can get into that,

5

folks'

6

opportunity to get just general information so

7

we avoid going allover the place within the

8

requests.

need.

11

you know, based on your

But I'd like to provide you that

Ms. Anderson?

9

10

And then as far as the specifics, we

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

I hope

this is considered general.

12

Are any of these positions going to

13

require expansion as far as where they'll be

14

located?

15

existing facilities right now?

In other words,

Yes,

will they fit in

16

MR. YOUNG:

they will fit in.

17

know,

18

physical space with the two new DMVL satellites,

19

for instance, as well as made some office moves

20

in this building and at the service center,

21

there is adequate physical space for them,

this year we've already expanded the

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

We have -- as you

Okay.

so
yes.

Thank you.

Any further questions, Mr. Molina?
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Without getting into specifics,

I guess I'll
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wait until maybe Mr. Vila or Mr. Yoshimi comes

2

down here.
In terms of the DMVL positions, at this

3
4

point, where are you targeting?

5

sort of dove-tailing Member Anderson's

6

questions.

7

they be more at the Kahului Service Center?

8

9

MR. YOUNG:

I guess I'm

Are the majority of them -- will

Perhaps Mr. Vila can provide the more

detail, but in general the prospect for these

10

positions is to expand the services offered at

11

the satellite -- all the satellite operations,

12

so Lahaina, Kihei, Upcountry,

13

whatever capabilities we can expand upon in

14

Hana,

15

as well as

Lanai and Molokai.
I don't believe that for some of those,

16

these positions will not be specifically the

17

positions that will be reassigned, but having

18

these positions, if they are located at Kahului

19

Service Center,

20

opportunity to relocate someone who is currently

21

at Kahului Service Center to a satellite

22

location.

23

for instance, may afford us the

And the reason for that benefit is that

24

the Kahului Service Center right now has,

25

know, people with more years of experience,
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skill sets are larger,

2

satellite operations where they have to work at

3

large part autonomously,

4

sense.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

so to deploy them to

that would make more

And one more question,

6

Mr. Chair,

7

in the accounts program, these positions,

8

presume, will assist with auditing of the

9

various departments within Finance, will that be

10
11

and for the two expansion positions

part of their role,
MR. YOUNG:

Well,

I

I can presume?

for this one, Mr. Yoshimi can

12

provide a little more details, but in general

13

what I've noticed is that for our accounts

14

division,

15

responsibilities that could definitely need

16

additional support in the areas of,

17

financial reporting,

18

inquiries, as well as audit procedures and

19

internal control items.

20

we have a number of functions and

say,

report generations,

My reference in my opening statement

21

to -- I know Council has been made aware of a

22

number of instances just in this year -- in this

23

past year alone, in which there's been items

24

that,

25

more critical double checks, better internal

you know,

could have benefitted from,
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control procedures, as well as timeliness of

2

reports that could have benefitted from having a

3

more focused staff.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

5
6

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla?

7

8

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

In regards to the positions in the DMV

9

10

area, are those positions part of the

11

recommendation made by the task force that

12

looked into the operations as a whole?

13

MR. YOUNG:

Thank you very much for asking that

14

question, Mr. Pontanilla.

15

in large part, taken from consideration of the

16

task force.

17

These positions were,

We have

We're still evaluating a lot of the task

18

force recommendations in terms of what can be

19

accomplished on what timeframe.

20

force recommendations was to reduce the wait

21

times at the service center and we've expanded

22

that to be -- to look at the wait times and

23

service capabilities at the satellites as well.

24

So these additional

25

One of the task

The service representative positions
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specifically go towards a reduction in wait

2

times throughout the entire DMVL system, not

3

only at the service center.
And another component that the service

4
5

center task force did not publish, but discussed

6

at length, was the long wait list of getting a

7

road examination and the difficulty in getting a

8

day-to-day road examination time.

9

the positions that are requested here are

And three of

10

specifically for driver's license examiners that

11

are looked -- build up the road examination

12

capabilities at the satellite locations,

13

thus, diminishing the need for citizens to focus

14

solely on Central Maui for their road test

15

appointments.

16

But yes,

and

I would tell you that these

17

these request did,

18

consideration requests from the service center

19

task force.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

21
22

in large part,

take into

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

I apologize.

You had any

23

additional in this area?

24

questions?

25

have either Mr. Vila come down or Mr. Yoshimi?

Any additional

Is there any member that wishes to
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Is there a preference for who we can start with

2

because they both cover different areas.
Ms. Anderson, you have a request?

3

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

follow up --

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

9
10
11

12

Well,

I just wanted to

Please.
-- with one question with

Mr. Young.
CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Was that task force report

ever transmitted to the Council?
MR. YOUNG:

I believe it was transmitted to the

13

Council because I recall that -- I think we

14

had -- I think we had met and discussed the

15

report with the managing director and some of

16

the members of the task force.

17

when,

18

have even been in 2005, December or January of

19

2006.

though, it might have been

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah,

I can't recall
it might

they've got a copy.

Yeah, it was transmitted October 21st,

22

2005, and it is currently in the committee,

23

Ms. Anderson.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

CHAIR KANE:

In which committee?

It's in the Budget and Finance
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Committee, I believe.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

Give me one second.

34.
Members,

for your information.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

And we did have a meeting, by the way,

if you recall,

we -- and you may not --

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

you gave me the

Budget and Finance, item number 34,

7

9

No,

one that didn't show the committee.

5
6

Under BF-l?

I don't recall --

-- have been at that meeting,

yeah.

-- so I guess I may have

missed it.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Additional questions, Ms. Anderson?

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'm just -- I'm not sure

16

which of the two staff people would answer what

17

areas.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Well, we'll bring them both down.

You

19

know what?

Mr. Vila, why don't you go ahead and

20

come down?

We'll start off with you,

21
22
23
24
25

sir.

And we'll provide them both with opening
remarks and then we can go from there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah,

they may answer the

questions.
CHAIR KANE:

And I know Mr. Vila,

as well as the
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1

others -- know opening remarks and Q&A, we try

2

to be as concise in our responses and not get

3

too far off onto the complexities of your

4

day-to-day operations, which we know you folks

5

deal with on a day-to-day basis,
Mr. Vila,

6
7

8

MR. VILA:

so thank you.

you have the floor.

Good afternoon, Mr. Chair,

thank you,

good afternoon, Council members.
I believe Mr. Young has provided a good

9

10

overall coverage of our request -- our

11

division's request for expansion positions.

12

I'm here -- hopefully I'll be able to answer

13

all, if not most,

14

have at this point in time.

15

and

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Vila,

And

of the questions that you may
Thank you.

is there any particular area

16

that you will be able to answer in detail versus

17

what Mr. Yoshima -- Yoshimi has to offer as far

18

as detail?

19

MR. VILA:

As far as the details,

I ' l l be able to

20

answer strictly on the DMVL related positions,

21

believe,

22

Mr. Yoshimi will be answering those.

23

CHAIR KANE:

for the ten, and the other positions,

Okay.

Mr. Yoshimi's one would be for

24

the first two, preaudit clerk as well as the

25

accountant; is that correct?
RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

I

147
BF 3/23/06
1

MR. YOUNG:

2

CHAIR KANE:

That is correct, Mr. Chair.
Okay.

So Members,

the ten items that

3

are located on there from 5-17 and the rest on

4

5-16 in your details,

5

well as the driver's license examiners, the

6

three positions as well as the service reps,

7

of those level 1 and four level 2.

8

Mr. Vila's details can corne in handy for us.

two

That's where

Ms. Anderson, go ahead.

9

10

assistant MVL manager as

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

If maybe Mr. Vila could just

11

give us an overview of where these driver's

12

license examiners will be utilized and how it's

13

going to upgrade the system.

14

And I'm just going to premise that with

15

the letter to the editor the other day from

16

someone who was, again,

17

through to get an appointment.

18

with my son ten years ago,

19

like anything has changed, even with this

20

fabulous service center,

21

tell us that things will change with these three

22

new examiners.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. VILA:

25

daily trying to get
And I did this

so it doesn't seem

so I'm hoping you can

Mr. Vila?
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Things will definitely change with these
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three additional -- with these additional

2

positions,

3

are earmarked, number one,

4

offices, and with the addition of these three

5

positions

6

requested for two Service Rep I positions.

7

that,

8

revamp our appointment system.

9

specifically because these positions
for the satellite

and you'll note that I have also
With

the overall plan and concept is we need to

And part of the duties of those two will

10

be to take the road test appointments ana,

11

approved,

12

that system so it's going to be easier for

13

our -- the applicants wishing to get a road test

14

to make a road test appointment.

15

if

we will then be prepared to modify

And we can have the best appointment

16

system that we have,

17

to provide the capacity, as far as the volume of

18

road test appointment slots,

19

continue to face the same type of demand

20

supply shortage versus the demand,

21

root of most of the complaints that I receive

22

these days is,

23

been trying for days and weeks."

24

And fortunately,

25

however,

unless we are able

then we will

which is the

"I cannot get a road test.

this year,

the

administration had supported Saturday road
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testing and -- however,

2

So I hope that answers the question.

3

MR. YOUNG:

Ms. Anderson,

that is at a premium.

I ' l l also add just for your

4

information that right now we have -- the

5

Council did approve two road examiners positions

6

-- additional road examiner positions for Fiscal

7

Year '06,

8

testing at Lahaina.

9

examin~tions

and we have added them to provide road
So there currently is road

going on at Lahaina right now as

10

well as in Kihei.

11

are only open four days a week,

12

exams being conducted out there four days a

13

week.

14

And both of those satellites
so there's road

These positions will help to get

15

established road examinations in Upcountry at

16

that satellite as well as a potential to be

17

deployed where we can have more than one road

18

examiner at the satellite locations because,

19

again,

20

want to deploy services closer to the community

21

so they would benefit there.

22

it is my belief that,

you know,

we would

It also would allow Mr. Vila to increase

23

capacities at Molokai and Lanai and Hana,

24

currently Molokai is fortunate that Wanda,

25

is the service representative there,

where
who

can provide
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But as for

1

road exams on an as-needed basis.

2

Lanai and Hana, we actually have to fly someone

3

in there so they're -- those communities get

4

very sporadic service for road exams.
So that's ultimately the reason for

5
6

these additional positions.

So the crux of it

7

is that yes, your question -- it goes directly

8

to your question, are these going to be deployed

9

out to satellites or to help the satellites or

10

in some way in general to overall change and

11

reduce the number of the wait list, and we

12

believe that these will specifically for those

13

reasons.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So the three positions, one

15

would go Upcountry, the other one would go to

16

Lanai and the other one would go to Hana?
MR. VILA:

One position would be for Upcountry, one

18

for Kihei and one for Lahaina.

19

okay.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And as far as --

Would that allow Kihei and

21

Lahaina's satellite offices to be open five days

22

a week, rather than four?

23

MR. YOUNG:

Well, not the presence of the road

24

examiners, but the presence of the service

25

representative positions. yes.
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2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And those would be the

Service Rep I or --

3

MR. VILA:

Those would be the Service Rep lIs.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. VILA:

lIs.

And in addition to opening five days a

6

week,

7

presently close during the lunch period and this

8

would also allow the office to open the full

9

range for the whole day from eight to 3:30.

10
11

if you'll note,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

the satellite offices

Okay.

That's great.

So I

just had one more question, Mr. Chair.
I

12

know you addressed this, Mr. Vila, but

13

maybe I

14

Reps I are going to help with the appointment

15

system; is that correct?

16

MR. VILA:

just didn't understand.

That is correct.

The Service

The concept there is --

17

as you know,

18

the War Memorial Stadium to service our central

19

road testing facility.

20

that facility was open to -- to minimize the

21

foot traffic going into the service center and

22

locate the testing facility where the core of

23

our testing begins and ends,

24

CDL, motorcycle.

25

site there.

we presently have the trailer at

The -- that office --

and that's for the

We have the parallel parking
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Last year,

1

this Council approved for a

2

portable office to be placed over there, and the

3

concept for that to tie this into -- into that

4

appropriation is that when an applicant is ready

5

to take the road test, and those taking it at

6

the central facility -- within a central area,

7

would report to the War Memorial Stadium at that

8

point.

9

their driver's license at the satellite -- at

Once they pass, they will be issued

In addition, they will be able

10

that location.

11

to pay for their road test exam fees at that

12

specific location compared to what it is now.
The road test appointments are

13
14

administered at the War Memorial Stadium,

15

however, we are still requiring the customers to

16

come to the service center or to one of the

17

satellite offices to prepay for that road test,

18

because the road test examiners' main function

19

at the central facility is to administer the

20

test.

21

And once -- since I do have those two

22

positions, if they're intact and if this body

23

approves it, one of their functions will be to

24

accept road test appointments, not only for the

25

central road testing facility, but also
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coordinate the road test appointments for the

2

satellite offices.
I say coordinate because at this point

3
4

if these positions are approved,

I'm hoping to

5

do some sort of -- perhaps an online type of

6

road test appointment system combined with a

7

call-in.

8

first build up the capacity and then we can

9

develop the appropriate road test system,

10

appointment system that we have in place.

We're not quite sure yet.

However,

I'm currently looking for and speaking

11

12

to various vendors who are able to provine.

13

I've had some initial conversations with our MIS

14

staff to see what type of alternatives or things

15

we could put into place.

16

down to being able to provide a capacity to

17

accommodate those demands.

18

MR. YOUNG:

However,

it all comes

And Mr. Chair, I would add that the

19

online functionality,

20

that,

21

recommendation that was included in the service

22

center task force.

23

the ability to establish

the online functionality was a

Getting back to Mr. Pontanilla or

24

Mr. Molina's earlier question, again these

25

positions are -- well,

they're not directly
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specified in the service center task force.

2

They will enable the ability to create some of

3

the recommendations that the task force had.
And to the Chair's earlier comment that

4
5

preceded this presentation, these two types of

6

classification of positions, Service

7

Representative I's and Service

8

Representative lIs,

9

because these are constantly being recruited.

there are existing lists --

10

There are existing lists from which Mr. Vila can

11

pull from,

12

Mr. Ginoza has included in the budget is

13

reasonable and appropriate.

14

MR. VILA:

so I believe that eight months that

And if I may add to that eight-month list,

15

Mr. Chair, last year when we had additional

16

staff positions, even though it was actually

17

funded for,

18

to Mr. Young -- we did go ahead and bring in

19

those recruits early -- the recruitment early

20

and activate it, primarily because it's not just

21

bringing a person on board.

22

I think,

six months,

that -- thanks

Once that person comes on board,

we're

23

hiring them from the outside.

We then need to

24

train them on various facets:

The driver's

25

licensing aspect as well as the motor vehicles
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registration aspect,

2

be a -- well,

3

program before they can actually be deployed to

4

be a full service representative for us.

it is a rather lengthy training

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

and those two combined can

Ms. Anderson?
Thank you.

I appreciate all that information, but

8

what I'm trying to get at -- and it sounds to me

9

like you don't really have a plan yet in place

10

to improve the appointment system.

And I

11

understand it doesn't do any good to increase

12

your ability to take appointments unless you

13

have the capacity to serve them,

14

is that citizens are being required to waste an

15

awful lot of time for nothing.

16

In other words,

but my concern

the way the system is

17

set up now,

18

morning and call,

19

45 minutes in hopes that you can hopefully get

20

someone to answer the phone.

21

you don't happen to get your call in -- and I'm

22

assuming there is only one person answering the

23

calls right now -- then you've wasted 45 minutes

24

of your morning,

25

you repeat that every day in hopes that your

you're obligated to get up in the
like,

speed dial for

And if you -- if

to an hour of your morning,
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going to get lucky in the lottery.
And it just seems to me -- and that's

2
3

why people get so frustrated.

4

person taking the appointments hears an awful

5

lot of anger from the person that finally gets

6

through.

7

better system to alleviate that.

And I

And I'm sure the

just think there should be a

8

And I'm not sure that online is going to

9

solve that because not everybody has a computer,
you know,

I

10

so I would like to see something

11

mean for 45 minutes in the morning, maybe you

12

can reallocate some staff so that more calls get

13

answered so that at least the person knows that

14

somebody at the other end cares about the

15

service they're trying to get and could easily

16

say,

17

weeks.

18

"I'm sorry.

We're booked for the next two

We can book you" -I mean it seems to me that you should be

19

booking far in advance so that people aren't

20

tied to having to scramble, you know, with no

21

no assurance that they'll ever get anything out

22

of their effort.
Do you follow what I'm saying?

23
24
25

MR. YOUNG:

I don't disagree with anything that

you've said, Council member.

In fact, Mr. Vila
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1

and I -- I know we share your sentiments and we

2

get as many calls stating the same as you do,

3

and we believe -- again,

4

only one component to get to a better calling

5

system, because right now

6

expound, but right now there is only one person

7

answering these calls and that person is the

8

supervisor of the road examiners.

I believe that this is

Mr. Vila will

And so there is no service

9

10

representative support for that function.

11

There's one person answering the calls.

12

only two phone lines that come into the single

13

phone to answer for these calls-in.

14

that is also included in the budget for

15

improvements on this call-in.
But as you pOinted out,

16

There's

And all of

frequently the

17

complaints are that even if people do get

18

through,

19

so limited in the number of appointment times,

20

that they don't have any

21

appointment times to give, and it's -- you know,

22

it's like both edges of the sword, basically.

23

You know,

24

time system but we also want to be able to

25

afford greater capacity where we can increase

they're -- they're so many -- they're

we don't have any

we're trying to fix the appointment
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So

1

the number of appointment times to give out.

2

it's a two-prong approach.

3

know, can add if there is anything that I missed

4

on that.

5

MR. VILA:

Yes.

And Mr. Vila,

you

Perhaps I misexplained when I

6

mentioned an online appointment system.

I have

7

to recall back when the City and County

8

implemented their online road test appointment

9

system, everybody said,

"Wow," at that point.

10

said -- my thoughts were unless we have the --

11

unless we have the capacity, that appointment

12

will bog out real quickly.

13

it is bogged down.

14

believe they're accepting appointments --

15

they're all booked through probably May,

16

believe, and that's an awfully long time for

17

somebody to be waiting and can't get on.

I

And 10 and behold,

The last I checked, I

I

18

As far as the system -- appointment

19

system, our present appointment system with

20

these two additional staff representatives will

21

allow for the public to be able to call in

22

perhaps throughout the day and be able to book

23

those road test appointments at the locations

24

that they prefer.

25

those locations, those two staff members will be

Unless I have the capacity at
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1

fielding complaints about lack of availability,

2

which we had experienced in the past.
We've had appointments that went for two

3
4

weeks in advance for the satellite offices;

5

however,

6

road test failure,

7

waiting day period.

8

appointment system, we found that the staff

9

that the applicants were double-booking,

our experience has been since after a
there is a minimum seven-day
When we looked at the

So, you know,

so they
we

10

were taking those things.

11

finally figured out yes,

12

just in the event that they don't pass, but

13

that's clogging up the system, too.

14

say they pass the road test exam on the first

15

try, well, do they cancel?

16

being a no show where we could have given it to

17

somebody else.

18

they are double-booking

No.

And then

So it ends up

So therefore, we eventually cut it back

19

to one week so that -- to eliminate the

20

double-booking because we did not have an

21

appointment system that eliminates the

22

double-booking.

23

Honolulu has eliminates that double-booking.

24

But bottom line, we need to have the

25

capacity,

Well,

the Internet system that

whether we accept appointments via
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telephone, walk in or via another mechanism,

2

such as the Internet or a combination of the

3

three.

4

provide and have the capacity to accommodate,

5

otherwise we will be fielding

6

will be fielding and I will -- and I will

7

continue to field the calls of,

8

a road test?"

9
10

CHAIR KANE:

To be successful,

we have to be able to

or the staff

"Why can't I get

Ms. Anderson?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah,

I appreciate your

11

talking about expanding the capacity.

12

think there's anybody in this chambers that's

13

not going to agree with that,

14

that we need more driver examiners.

15

I don't

and we all know

Again, my concern is the way the

16

appointments are being done and,

17

don't blame people for double-booking because it

18

takes you hours,

19

appointment.

20

that if you're a first-time driver,

21

you're not a first-time driver,

22

fail your first test.

23

And,

sometimes days,

And,

you know,

you know,

frankly,

I

to get an

the standard is
or even if

you're going to

I hate to see people

24

forced to drive illegally because our system

25

can't accommodate them,

so I wish you could give
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1

us some expectation of how you're going to

2

change the program.

3

ideas on how you might do it, but I

4

that,

5

$260,000 plus in new positions that hopefully

6

will address this issue.

7

you would have a better idea on how you can

8

improve the system.

9

you know,

Again,

I

know you've given us some
would think

you're looking at another

I

So I

would hope that

don't think it's -- I

don't

10

think it's adequate service to our community to

11

put them through the ordeal of -- that they have

12

to go through to try to get an appointment and,

13

you know,

14

get through and then to find out all the

15

appointments next week are taken.

16

they have to go back and do the same thing again

17

when you open up appointments for the next week.

18

you spend two or three days trying to

That means

There just should be a way that people

19

can get an appointment once they get through.

20

And if that means it's two weeks down the road

21

or three weeks down the road,

22

your doctor's office isn't going to treat you

23

like that.

24

appointment you try to make,

25

available on the week that the procedure -- the

I

so be it.

I

mean

don't know of any other
if it's not
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next week,

that you've got to come back and get

2

in line again to try to get an appointment for

3

the following week.

It's like Russian roulette.

4

And I just think that there can be a

5

better system, that we can do something now.

6

And yes,

7

taking calls, but it seems to me that these

8

calls all -- unless I'm, you know -- my

9

experience was ten years ago.

I know you only have one person but

Unless you've

10

changed things, don't most of these appointments

11

happen during a specific time period in the

12

morning when they accept these calls, or have

13

you extended that in any way?

14

MR. YOUNG:

Well,

right now, there's only a short

15

window to call in to schedule an appointment

16

because the supervisor is the one taking these

17

appointments, so he has to take these

18

appointments before the

19

there's any operations begin in the morning.

20

the call-in time is, like, 7:45 in the morning

21

until 8:30, so the supervisor has to take these

22

calls and then he -- the reason why we don't

23

have it all day long is because he's got to do

24

other stuff

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

you know, before
So

Mr. Young, that's my point.
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Why do you have the supervisor doing this?

2

Why

3

that --

4

MR. YOUNG:

why can't we allocate staff to do this so

Exactly, Ms. Anderson.

I totally agree,

5

and that is the reason why -- this process of

6

call-ins and stuff has been at least during my

7

tenure as finance director,

8

that's why I'm asking,

9

consideration in these positions because I

so that's why I'm --

you know,

for your folks'

10

believe that's exactly -- exactly what you are

11

saying is where I'm trying to get to.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So can you tell us which of

13

these pOSitions will be allocated to answering

14

the phones so that, you know,

15

broader period of time when people can call in,

16

that their chance of getting someone live on the

17

other end of the phone --

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

MR. YOUNG:

there can be a

The two Service Reps.
-- is greater?

Both of -- Mr. Vito

(sic)

is looking at

21

two Service Representative I pOSitions.

22

those are specifically identified for road

23

examination -- that function of road

24

examinations.

25

Right now where there is only a
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supervisor -- I mentioned only the supervisor

2

takes the time,

3

positions,

4

accepting these road examination times,

5

coordinating and setting up services related to

6

road exam functions.

7

these Service Representative I

two of them,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

answering the phone

9

answering the phone

10

MR. YOUNG:

Right,

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MR. YOUNG:

Yes.

are specifically for

You mean they'll be
there will be two people

exactly.
instead of one?

And also for your information, in

13

the operational portion of the budget,

14

moneys also requested for phone system

15

improvements at the service center.

16

also in part to go to increasing the number of

17

phone in lines -- of incoming lines, because as

18

I mentioned before,

19

has, like,

20

means we can take no more than two people at any

21

given time so that ...

22

there is

That is

there is a single phcne that

two lines on a single phone.

It is more comprehensive.

So that

Right now,

23

I'm only before you speaking on the expansion

24

position part of it, but I wanted you to be

25

assured that,

you know,

we are looking at this
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in its entirety in terms of looking at the

2

processes that are involved.
So yes,

3

specifically the two Service

4

Representative I positions that are requested

5

are only for road examination functions.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

examinations?

8
9

10

MR. YOUNG:

Appointments is only one portion of the

entire function,
MR. VILA:

For appointments for road

Yes.

but yes,

appointments.

And if I may add, Mr. Chair,

11

Service Rep I,

12

request from my last year's request, which was

13

not approved.

14

CHAIR KANE:

the two positions,

the

it's a repeat

Let's not forget that we didn't have the

15

space requirements available,

16

difference this year, Members, on that request.

17

Okay?

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

Thank you.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Any further questions in this

area for Mr. Vila?

22
23

Okay.

Okay.

so there is a

I have both of you.
by Mr.

Mr. Molina followed

Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

First of all,

I can support the idea of
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expansion but for me the question is how much.

2

This is a large request,

3

line is customer service.

4

you give us that this will improve things at the

5

service center and reduce the amount of

6

complaints?

and I guess the bottom
What assurances can

I'd just like to share with you,

7

last

8

night in Pukalani, we had a testifier come and

9

share his concerns with us.
I mean,

He noted there were

10

some safety issues,

you know,

employees

11

getting their cars keyed because of frustrated

12

customers.

13

comments about that?

14

for some kind of parking lot supervision to

15

prevent incidents like that?

16

to get your take and see if that is verified

17

incidents like that are happening at the service

18

center.

I mean can you add into your

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Is there possibly a need

I mean I

just want

Mr. Molina, before we go there -Okay.

-- that's kind of going outside because

22

that's more into the operational component.

23

We'll allow some brief, but I don't want you to

24

take a line of questioning on this

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I ' l l just ask --
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CHAIR KANE:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

7

Thank you.
on the --

Thank you.
positions there.

I think the director is ready to

respond.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, and I'll keep in line

8

with the position, because since FY '04 is

9

gradually the amount of expansions gradually

10

increased and right now the question is, has

11

this service improved and by just throwing more

12

personnel out there, is it necessarily going to

13

be better?

14

MR. YOUNG:

So I just wanted your take on it.

Well,

I like that question, Mr. Molina,

15

and I thank you for asking it and giving me an

16

opportunity to respond, because I would tell the

17

members that, again,

18

seeing the expansion of government because of

19

the costs that are involved, the perpetual cost

20

that is going to be involved,

21

having to sit

22

last year asking for a number of positions that

23

was considerable last year and to, again,

24

before you and asking for admittedly a very

25

considerable expansion again,

I have an aversion to

so, you know,

having to sit before you folks

come

I wanted you folks

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090 Fax: (808) 524-2596

168
BF 3/23/06
1

to be assured that the reason why,

you know,

2

asked for the positions last year,

I -- we

3

deliberately were very conservative in terms of

4

the director's office and the Mayor in what

5

positions we came forth to ask for,

6

didn't want to expand with a number of positions

7

that was far beyond what could have a cost

8

benefit evaluation that was realistic.
And I believe that,

9

I

because we

you know,

the

10

Council,

11

of positions that it did for Fiscal Year '06, we

12

have made -- we have -- by implementing those

13

positions,

14

difference with the service center in terms of

15

the wait times as well as the service

16

deliveries.

17

that have not come along to the level of which I

18

had anticipated.

19

you know, by appropriating the number

there has been some noticeable

However, there are still some areas

And I would like to tell you that I hope

20

I'm not here next year before you folks asking

21

for more positions in DMVL, but -- you know,

22

again,

23

my office when I evaluated the positions to ask

24

the Mayor to consider and now to ask for your

25

Council support is that these positions,

so

this year the same approach was used by
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will have direct value added benefits that are

2

measurable when they're implemented.

3

I don't think we're going to get to a

4

point where I can eliminate all complaints

5

100 percent, but I believe this level is --

6

while it is significant, it still is on the

7

conservative side that, when implemented, there

8

will be significant and marked improvements in

9

service delivery in the areas where we are

10

looking for,

11

service center, increased service capacities at

12

the satellites, and a diminishing of the need

13

for citizens to come into Central Maui and they

14

can have the services provided to them within

15

their communities.

16

and that would be wait times at the

And I believe that -- again, while I

17

totally agree that the amount requested is

18

large, it is still -- we're not going to get to

19

100 percent customer satisfaction but I believe

20

this level will get us close there.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you for your comments.

22

And, you know,

23

have to respond to a constituency out there who

24

may have concerns about government expansion.

25

And I know you hope to be here and I hope to be

I ask that question because we
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here next year as well, but the request for the

2

additional positions, these are -- this request

3

is in line with that of the findings of the task

4

force from the study that was done last October?

5

MR. YOUNG:

Well,

the task force did not -- did not

6

specify, like,

a number of staff positions to

7

request, nor did they say what was the target of

8

the service delivery -- you know,

9

like wait times.

for instance

The task force could not come

10

to a target wait time was 45 minutes

11

appropriate,

12

minutes,

30 minutes, no more than 15

you know,

et cetera.

So right now, we -- you know, Mr. Leto

13

14

(sic)

15

that is an approachable goal, which is no more

16

than

17

throughout the years.

18

been some improvements in this fiscal year to

19

the service center itself that,

20

wait times have gone down, but there still are a

21

significant number of days,

22

reasons, where wait times can balloon up well

23

beyond 45 minutes,

24

an hour, hour 30 minutes.

25

and I are targeting,

you know,

something

45 minutes wait time at any point
Right now,

you know,

there have

on average,

the

for whatever

still in excess of

But I think some of the,

you know,
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benchmarks that Mr. Vila and I are very proud of

2

is that there are a lot more days where wait

3

times are below the 45-minute threshold right

4

now for the service center in Kahului.

5

would like to see that applied at the satellites

6

and make the satellites more attractive in that

7

regards as well.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla?

11
12

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

9

10

And we

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

Just,

13

of course, my clarification, in regards to the

14

road examiners, you're going to increase

15

Upcountry, how many do you have right now

16

Upcountry, Kihei and Lahaina?

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Vila?

Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Young?

Well, Mr. Vila can add but right now we

19

don't have any road examinations being done in

20

Upcountry, we have one road examiner in Kihei,

21

and one road examiner in Lahaina, and they both

22

provide road exams only four days a week.

23

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So the three that's being

24

added, you're going to add one to Upcountry or

25

two?
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MR. YOUNG:

Well,

right now the plan is one for

2

Upcountry,

and another one at Lahaina, and

3

another one at Kihei,

4

will both have

so that Kihei and Lahaina

Two.

5

MR. VILA:

6

MR. YOUNG:

-- two, but understand that the

7

availability of these road examiners will also

8

allow us the flexibility to -- if with you need

9

it,

you know, we want to be able to increase

10

availability of examiners to Molokai, Lanai,

11

Hana,

12

done on,

13

to -- we want to -- just in general four road

14

examinations be able to build up capacity

15

county-wide.

16

for example.
you know,

And those right now could be
a fly-in basis, but we need

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

On this Service

17

Rep I that's going to be taking up all this

18

phone-ins for appointments, as far as making

19

appointments for the different areas, will they

20

offer appointments should appointments be

21

available for,

22

Maui and you have an appointment open at

23

Upcountry, give the person from Central Maui the

24

option to go Upcountry?

25

MR. VILA:

Yes, Mr.

like,

say a person from Central

Pontanilla.

Since it's going to
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be centrally located, whenever an applicant

2

calls in for a road test appointment,

3

pull up that person's record in front of them to

4

make sure, number one,

5

they have met all of the criteria,

6

know the location

7

will be given,

8

where the appointments are available,

9

like Kihei, Lahaina or Central?

10

they will

that they're eligible,
and they'll

their address.

And they

and are presently given,

if --

"Would you

We have

openings at this time."

11

That would continue to happen,

and that

12

could -- it is with our philosophy of if we want

13

to expand the satellite office,

14

provide those services in those communities, and

15

especially in Lahaina, Ms.

16

seen an increase in people wanting to take the

17

road tests over there and right now are saying,

18

"Well,

19

here."

20

geographical preference.

21

yes,

it's to

Johnson's area, we've

I ' l l wait for the next opening over
So there is a preference -- a

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

At least,

you know,

the

22

option is open to -- for other people here that

23

require and need licensing.

24
25

You know,
employees.

you talked about training new

How long does it take to train a new
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employee?

2

Service Rep I and II, probably that's entry

3

level jobs, you know.

4

that right?

5

MR. VILA:

I don't -- you know, when you look at

Not exactly.

I'm assuming that.

Service level

Is

Service

6

Representative I actually is able to

7

administer -- process most of the same items.

8

It's not as complex as the motor vehicle

9

registration systems -- we've elected to

for

10

the Service Rep I level because when we had the

11

split system, the driver license separated with

12

motor vehicles,

13

Representative I's --

14
15
16

those staff members were Service

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So it's not an entry level

position?
MR. VILA:

That's not an entry level.

17

Rep II is not an entry level.

18

the division is the Clerk III.

19

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

MR. VILA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

The Service

My entry level at

Clerk III?

That is correct.
How do you have it --

22

what's the turnover rates for Service Rep I

23

and II?

24
25

MR. VILA:

Service Reps I,

I presently have two on

staff stationed at the Mill Center.

I've never
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had a turnover there except last month when that

2

person retired.

3

turnover because of -- they left to get a

4

promotion,

5

property tax.

Service Rep II,

another one went back to real

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

MR. VILA:

So pretty stable?

That's -- that's pretty stable; however,

8

you know,

9

as customer volume-wise,

10

I had one

the demands of that position, as far

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

is quite tremendous.

Okay.

When the Service

11

Rep I or II get promoted,

12

service reps from going to whatever department

13

that they've been promoted to until you get a

14

person trained,

15

position?

16

MR. VILA:

do we hold back the

or you just let them go to that

It really depends.

If they're promoted --

17

well,

if they're promoted at another department

18

or division, we normally try to honor a two-week

19

period unless the employee is willing to stay on

20

and help out, because it is a void.

21

lag time in bringing somebody on board with the

22

concurrence of that division.

There is a

Now, when vacancies are intra-division

23
24

movements occur,

25

say,

"Look.

I do speak with that staff and

For example,

we have one that's
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1

that was being promoted.

2

this position while we backfill and bring that

3

person up?"

4

staffing level is at the point where if I'm

5

moving one person,

6

the back office, and the front office is -- the

7

demand is still great,

8

out to say,

9

the remaining staff?" or -- so we've been able

10

to work that out pretty much within internally

11

within the staff,

12

within.

13

Because at this point in time my

say,

from the front office to

I have to balance that

Do I let everything fallon

"Okay.

and I do try to promote from

I've had some recent promotions that

14

created a chain of -- a promotional chain

15

because at that point we do have several

16

stages -- several levels of employment within

17

the division itself.

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

MR. YOUNG:

One more question.

If I could just add,

getting back to your

20

previous question,

the reason why we don't hold

21

back these movements is because for Service

22

Representative lIs,

23

have DMVL transaction requirements,

24

period is quite extensive.

25

uncommon for it to take beyond two months before

the front lines where they
the training

You know,

it's not
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a service representative can actually get to the

2

front line and work independently.

3

that point,

4

enough with the majority of the transactions

5

where they can actually service anybody that

6

comes into the lobby.

7

process,

8

MR. VILA:

9

MR. YOUNG:

And even at

they don't -- they're not familiar

The entire training

I believe, is like --

Six months.
six months before anybody can,

you

10

know, work independently and handle 80 to

11

90 percent of any transaction that comes in.
So for that reason, if it's within -- if

12
13

this person is moving to another department

14

within the Department of Finance,

15

try and see if the managers can coordinate

16

holding off taking this person away until

17

Mr. Vila can find a replacement and train them;

18

however,

19

within the County or just -- just exiting the

20

County employment all together,

21

afforded about the two weeks.

22

you know,

I do

if they're moving to another department

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

we're only

Last question,

In regards to whenever you create a plan

23

Chair.

24

to improve the operations at DMVL, how often do

25

you review that plan and if changes are needed,
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2

do you make the change to improve the plan?
MR. YOUNG:

Well,

for -- if I can respond to that and

3

then Mr. Vila can respond?

4

tenure as Finance director is only about 15 or

5

16 months right now,

6

plans about every six months, but unfortunately,

7

they don't really change that much and I do

8

afford the division managers and myself time for

9

these plans to incubate before I,

10

I

You know, because my

review -- I

review my

you know,

really make some hard assessment on them.
And as -- and as one evidence I would

11
12

point out is for the accounts division for these

13

positions, last year when I sat before you,

14

did not request for any additional positions in

15

the accounts position.

16

of projects that have been implemented within

17

the last 15 months to 24 months in Finance that,

18

you know,

19

will be in the accounts area.

20

only asking for two positions added to accounts.

21

I

22

headway.

I cannot, you know,

23

be the

they're the fix.

There have been a number

I'm still assessing what the impact
And,

again,

I'm

feel that it should be adequate to make some

24
25

I

say that they will

So from my standpoint I would say,
know,

I do review the plans periodically.
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don't know about Mr. Vila's review.

2

more tenure in his role than I have.

3
4
5
6
7

MR. VILA:

Well,

He has far
Mr. Vila?

it depends on the type of project.

For example,

a project

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

let me give you -Let's take this project to

improve operations.
MR. VILA:

To improve operations,

first off,

as far

8

as taking or expanding the services at the

9

satellite offices,

first off, it's getting the

10

training.

11

We do have a training checklist of who's trained

12

for what,

13

try to intersperse that with the minimal amount

14

of training time we have available because of

15

our staffing level.

16

I review that pretty periodically.

who's cross-trained, who's next.

We

I get my supervisors involved and I

17

monitor and I speak with them pretty much on a

18

daily basis.

19

to my office asking for things or saying how

20

things are going.

21

specific time scheduled because at any point in

22

time --

23

The supervisors are always coming

And we do meet -- there is no

For example,

like getting a service

24

representative out in the lobby.

25

while to put -- come to fruition because at one

That took a
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point I had to start with the concept getting

2

that,

3

to build the extension where they sit at this

4

point,

5

putting in the computer systems and then you

6

wait for the staff to get trained to at the

7

proper service level -- training level to be

8

able to function out there.

getting the funding or savings available

and getting MIS coordinating that,

So for that type of project,

9

I would

10

review it,

11

least.

12

projects that I go in because it's not just one

13

project at a time,

14

that's coming up,

15

have a fraudulent document recognition training

16

program that I'm about to launch hopefully

17

starting April.

18

projects.

19

long-term projects and sustained projects that

20

we need.

21

I'd say, several times a week,

It's in my list.

I have a list of

I have an imaging project
I have training projects,

I

We're starting document imaging

So there's myriads of different

We just completed -- complete travel

22

license data base rewrite statewide.

23

going into training on that now,

24

overlay all of these to get established.

25

at

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

We're

so I have to

What I was getting at,
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though,

2

people to your department.

3

years,

4

said that last year the requests for only ten

5

personnel,

6

really at the time he -- the efficiency of the

7

operation was being assessed.

it's like 21.

Over the last two

Like,

you know, Mr. Young

that was given by the Council because

And now you're corning to us and you're

8
9

is that if -- you only add ten more

asking an additional ten,

so -- but what I'm

10

trying to get at is now you have,

11

two years,

12

How do we know if we don't check

21 people who went to the DMV area.

I hope you have a plan,

13

in the last

you know,

a plan that you

go back to to see

14

can follow back

15

what you wanted to do at the start and make sure

16

that that plan is carried throughout so that you

17

achieve whatever you -- you know,

18

trying to achieve satisfying the customers that

19

you serve.

20

MR. YOUNG:

Yes, Mr.

what you're

Pontanilla, we do have a plan

21

and I think I've communicated that plan,

22

least in portions,

23

I've been before you folks.

24
25

Again,

at

to Council the times that

they're reiterating the

emphasis -- overall emphasis of the plan is to
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expand delivery of services with the primary

2

focus being on the satellite operations,

3

secondary primary focus being on to reduce the

4

amount of wait time and improve the level of

5

service delivery at the service center.

and the

In terms of the number of positions,

6
7

again,

while they are a lot,

over the last two

8

years,

I believe that they're being meted out.

9

The requests -- the requests are meted out in

10

such a fashion where it does afford us the time

11

to evaluate the impact of what these positions

12

will contribute to those service deliveries in

13

terms of achieving what the goals are of the

14

plan.

15

And so we do have an idea of,

again,

16

where these positions can benefit the most,

17

is the value added contribution for each of

18

those positions,

19

a lot of positions over two years, but they're

20

not all in the same area.

21

and that is why,

For instance, the focus

you know,

what

it's

the real

22

focus for this year,

23

priority between the two functions in Mr. Vila's

24

request is in the road examination component,

25

because in last year,

the number

the higher

the number of positions
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that were requested were primarily in the

2

service representative delivery,

3

focused at the Kahului Service Center component,

4

not at the satellites.

and it was

The satellite prospect of the plan was

5
6

rooted in the capital improvement section,

7

that's why,

8

before you in the capital improvement

9

perspective,

you know,

and

last year when I sat

I did emphasize the need to build

10

up our satellites in the areas that we have:

11

Kihei,

Lahaina, Upcountry.
So the plan -- you know,

12

it will

13

probably span even beyond my tenure as finance

14

director,

15

accomplish everything in the plan in one year.

16

You know,

17

I would like to while I am Finance director in

18

the next two years.

19

Mr. Lito

20

accordingly and the timeframes,

21

still being evaluated.

22

we cannot hope to

but it's

I'm hoping that I can accomplish what

And we do review the plans.

Vila is making the progress
you know,

I want you to be assured,

though,

23

each of these positions,

24

significant value added contributions,

25

some point,

you know,

we do believe,

I -- again,

are

that

are
and at

I hope that
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I'm not here sitting before you folks asking for

2

more DMVL positions and I hope -- and I believe

3

that this might be the limit to where we can get

4

to such a point where service delivery meets our

5

expectations.

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

Mr. Vila.

8

Chair.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you, Kalbert.

Thank you.

Thank you,
Thank you,

Director, perhaps you can

10

assist us in understanding if there is a

11

correlation between your increase and the

12

explanations that you've given and the loss of

13

four personnel under grant revenue for the same

14

positions, Service Rep lIs.

15

correlation and, if so, what impact would that

16

have on you and,

17

understanding of how that loss would impact you

18

and how it would impact this -- this request for

19

increase?

20

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Chair,

if not,

If there is a

give us an

if I could allow Mr. Vila to

21

respond?

Definitely, there's an impact for the

22

Members' benefit,

23

grant positions at the DMVL,

24

be made up from the County contribution side;

25

however,

a reduction in the number of
of course, have to

these positions that we are requesting
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are not identified specifically for the grant

2

revenue -- you know,

3

revenue positions, but for Mr. Vila to respond,

4

please.

5

replacement of those grant

I guess -- just so you understand,

CHAIR KANE:

Is there

the

6

context is the functionality.

7

relationship between the ten expansions with the

8

road examination focus with the loss of the four

9

Service Rep lIs as a result of State funding no

10
11

0.

longer being available?
MR. VILA:

Those four positions, we had requested as

12

through the grant -- the grant appropriation

13

that must be approved by this body.

14

was for the motor vehicle registration program

15

of which the motor vehicle registration grant

16

program presently funds four existing p08itions.

17

We did request for four more very aggressively

18

with the State.

19

portion of the revenue that is from the State

20

fees and assessments,

21

tried to

22

the State.

23

Last year

This is to collect the State

so we collect that.

I

I couldn't get more positions from

As I explained last year,
I

for the grant

24

appropriations,

first have to corne before this

25

body, mix it into that and then I submit it and
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2

then -I'm sorry, Mr. Vila,

CHAIR KANE:

I'm going to

3

interrupt.

4

there a relationship between the loss -- and

5

you've already responded to that.

6

DMVL.

7

question becomes with the addition of this

8

request,

9

any impact in your office as a result of the

10

My question is if there -- first,

You no longer have that.

if it is approved,

is

That was for
So now the

is there going to be

loss of those four positions?
There's not going to be any impact.

11

MR. VILA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.
I

So that's where I was going with

just wanted to understand the

13

that.

14

correlation between the two.
Any other questions for the ten -- and I

15
16

notice, Members,

17

ask,

18

about the manager positions,

19

help us how that ties into the other nine -- the

20

other nine positions.

21

be in charge of -- in the hierarchy of,

22

know,

23

person playing a role directly to the examiner

24

and the service rep positions, Mr. Young?

25

MR. YOUNG:

I mean unless anybody else will

I'll just ask -- I know we haven't talked
so perhaps you can

Is this person going to

supervisory responsibilities,

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

you

is this

My feeling is that
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this position is going to go directly for the

2

next phases of the satellite operations.
Right now,

3

the satellite operations are

4

growing very rapidly, as much as -- growing in

5

the sense that,

6

customers are attracted to the satellites.

7

are liking the services that they can receive

8

there.

9

plan is to expand these capabilities to make the

10

satellites a more valuable asset in the delivery

11

of DMVL services.

12

you know,

we're getting --

It's much more convenient.

They

Again, the

With that in mind, Mr. Vila is going to

13

need this complement of this assistant m2nager's

14

position to deliver that to fruition because the

15

satellites will become, at some point, equally

16

as valuable as the centralized service center

17

component.

18

right now is -- takes the bulk of all

19

functionality of the DMVL.

20

And we know that the service center

At some pOint we are looking that the

21

satellites will become of equal value,

22

believe we are one to two years away from seeing

23

that come to fruition.

24

in that regards, but I believe it can happen.

25

And that,

and I

I'm probably optimistic

in addition to the fact that
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there have been -- for Mr. Vila's perspective,

2

there has been a number of state and federal

3

mandates that have increased his

4

responsibilities and capabilities and

5

responsibilities,

6

to meet those requirements as well as achieve

7

the objectives that,

8

him.

11

you know,

I have set for

Mr. Vila, if you'd like to add anything

9

10

and he could use this position

else for this position?
MR. VILA:

Yes.

Given my present involvement within

12

the operation and the oversight of the various

13

projects that I have, and the mid to longer

14

range projects that we have planned for the DMV,

15

combine that with the federal mandates, one of

16

which is the real ID act that is coming to --

17

it's already signed, I believe, and it's going

18

to be kicking in some time in 2008.

19

federal motor carriers.

20

We have the

We--

There's a lot of involvement and demands

21

coming from me -- demand of my time to be in

22

association with the other counties, the other

23

government agencies, this body,

24

takes a lot of time in planning and getting

25

those, and probably it will involve some state

for one.
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law changes that I will need to work with the

2

other county jurisdictions as we delve into how

3

are we going to implement the real ID act.

4

And to be successful in this position,

5

we need for the County -- someone needs to focus

6

more at that level and not forget the operations

7

and the direction that we're going.

8

position will greatly assist me in the amount

9

of -- I guess concentration and carrying things

And this

10

out and quality and the implementation of the

11

programs, especially in terms of the satellite

12

office, the service center as a whole.

13

And bottom line, it's a lot of time

14

that's going to be devoted in the planning and

15

the carrying it out -- carrying out and

16

execution of these duties.

17

the addition of that.

18

flat organization; however, at this

19

juncture, like Mr. Pontanilla said, we have

20

increased our -- we are asking to increase our

21

position counts by another 20 personnel, combine

22

that with the grant revenues that I administer

23

for the CDL program,

24

state, a safety check program, the motor vehicle

25

registration program:

We have curtailed

We've been a relatively
at this

for the state -- for the

There's a lot of changes
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that are upon us.
We are rewriting the -- we have

2
3

rewritten the driver license program.

4

looking at the motor vehicle registration

5

program right now, where are we going with that

6

as far as phasing out the decals, it's a lot

7

of

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

MR. VILA:

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

MR. VILA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13
14
15

We are

You've responded adequately --- activity.
-- to the question.
Thank you.
Thank you very much.
Members?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. Anderson, go ahead.
Thank you for that,

Mr. Vila.

16

I just want to say that I had an

17

experience myself at the central service station

18

a couple weeks ago and I found it to be very

19

pleasant.

20

come in, makes sure you have everything,

21

you an expectation of how long you might have to

22

wait, and I waited less time than she expected I

23

would have to, which brings up a question,

24

Mr. Chair, let me -- indulge me just for this

25

question.

The person that greets you as you
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If I had left the center and gone off to

2

do some shopping or whatever and came back after

3

my number had been called, would I

4

to get service or do you lose your place if

5

you're not there when your number comes up?

6

MR. VILA:

still be able

Normally, most -- from our experience, and

7

our lobby rep has told me this,

8

leave,

9

say,

that before they

they normally check with this person and

"Oh,

I need to go to the restroom," and

10

they will -- on their queuing system,

they will

11

actually go in and they can tell them,

12

There's four more people ahead of you in this

13

line.

14

waiting time is this much.

15

come in" because it's right on their -- they

16

will give them an indication.

"Okay.

Right now the wait -- the approximate

17

What time did you

What they can also do,

too,

is, okay,

18

hold on.

If they really have to do something

19

and come back,

20

right there.

21

for example,

22

cigarette and come back later,

23

we're sorry.

24

displayed.

25

will see that number displayed and they're

they can make that determination
However,

if they just disappear,

they go outside to smoke a
our procedure is

Because the numbers are being
The people who have been waiting
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watching -- if you have a D ticket and suddenly

2

they call somebody else and they saw that person

3

there,

4

it's -- you know,

5

of that service rep in the lobby,

6

really been a great help to the public that are

7

coming in.

8

MR. YOUNG:

9

know,

"How come they're going ahead of me?"
fortunately with the addition
it has really,

They are less lost.

I guess the short of it is that,
if it's reasonable time,

you

you know,

not

10

like an hour or two hours have elapsed, you

11

know,

12

can make the calIon how to accommodate,

13

the customer can inform the lobby rep ahead of

14

time,

15

accommodated.

16

there -- it's something that the lobby rep
or if

it's usually something that can be

But I do appreciate your -- you relaying

17

your experience and,

18

with the staff down at the service center.

19

I'm glad to hear that,

20

people that enjoy their -- or found their

21

experience satisfactory, and that's what at

22

least we are striving for,

23

Ms. Anderson.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

you know, we will share it

you know,

Yeah.

And

there are

so I appreciate that,

I found it to be

pleasant even though I had to wait, but I
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expected to have to wait.

2

dealt with were very pleasant, too.
But, you know,

3

And all the people I

that brings to mind,

4

if -- because the lobby gal told me -- I said,

5

"How long is the wait?"

6

about 45 minutes," but she didn't tell me,

7

you're going to leave, you should come and check

8

with me before you leave" -- in fact,

9

said,

She said,

"Probably
"If

I think I

"Does that mean I can go out and do some

10

shopping and come back?"

11

So if I had done that,

12

number by at least 15 minutes, so she should

13

tell people also,

14

should check in with me or let me know."

15

MR. VILA:

16

you.

17

CHAIR KANE:

And she said," Yes."

I would have missed my

"If you're going to leave, you

I will let them know about that.

Thank

Thank you.

18

Thank you.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So my question, Mr. Chair --

Thank you.
is there some way you can

22

give us tie in the expansion of this department

23

with our population growth?

24

number of employees you had in 1990, then say

25

you know,

Can you give us the

I'm just trying to tie it to easily
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retrievable population figures.

2

it for 1990 and then 2000 and then again for

3

2005,

4

this department as it is reflected in the

5

percentage of growth of our population?

6
7

So if you did

so we can see the percentage of growth in

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson,

if you don't mind,

we'll

go ahead and pose that question in writing.

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

CHAIR KANE:

Right.

That way they can retrieve that

10

information and they can respond in writing to

11

you.

12
13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Oh,

them to respond now.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

yeah,

I didn't expect

Thank you.
Any further questions,

Members?

16

From Mr. Vila's section,

17

Periodic Clerk and Accountant I.

18

in the shoot, so to speak,

19

If not, Mr. Vila,

20

Appreciate your presence.

21

Mr. Yoshimi is

for questions there.
thank you very much.

Members, is there a need to have

22

Mr. Yoshimi come down?

23

in this area?

24

Okay.

25

we still have

come?

Are there any questions

Mr. Yoshimi,

if you can please

And we also want to thank Ms. Lee from
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Housing.

2

brief recess and we'll be able to accommodate

3

Ms. Lee this afternoon before we adjourn,

4

that way she doesn't have to worry about

5

rescheduling or having her deputy come in her

6

place.
Good afternoon, Mr. Yoshimi.

7
8
9

We'll be wrapping up this and taking a

so

If you can

identify yourself for the record, please?
MR. YOSHIMI:

My name is Ty Yoshimi.

I'm the

10

Accounting System Administrator for the Accounts

11

Division,

of which we have two expansion

12

requests,

a Preaudit Clerk I and an

13

Accountant I.

14

this request has gone under scrutiny from him

15

and the budget director and managing director,

16

and if the need was not there, we would not have

17

requested it.

18

CHAIR KANE:

And that's Mr. Kalbert has said,

Can you give us -- before I open it up

19

for questions, Mr. Yoshimi, if you can provide

20

just a little background as far as what role

21

these two positions will play in how it

22

integrates into the current structure of your

23

office or your division?

24
25

MR. YOSHIMI:

The Preaudit Clerk I is for my accounts

payable section, which would greatly help the
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processing of the bills.

You know,

we're paying

2

all the bills of the County and,

3

the volume count has been increasing

4

substantially and the staff has been under

5

stress trying to meet the deadlines of

6

processing.

as you can see,

And in the past, what we've done is

7

8

we've employed the services of these Maui

9

Community College Student interns.

And to the

10

extent where they're pretty much doing -- we're

11

putting them beyond the call of duty; in other

12

words,

13

we train them and doing the work,

14

they have to leave and go and get a real job

15

somewhere,

16

with things.

17

MR. YOUNG:

and enlisting their services.

And when

of course,

so it's a constant battle to keep up

And Mr. Chair,

I'll reference page 7

18

dash 6 of the budget provides some performance

19

measures in terms of the number of A/P

20

transactions that have been -- that we

21

process

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. YOUNG:

24
25

Thank you.
-- although it varies from year to year.

Right now ...
CHAIR KANE:

Your program.

Go ahead.

Go ahead.
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MR. YOUNG:

Although it varies from year to year the

2

transaction counts in this section of

3

Mr. Yoshimi's division estimate

4

130,000 transactions per year.

5

includes a number of when they cut checks, and

6

in general -- I'm not sure if anyone here is

7

aware, but when you submit items for

8

processing -- frequently when the departments

9

submit items for processing, like invoices,

is well over
This also

for

10

instance, right now we have in the past, and

11

still do,

12

for processing, which, in my experience,

13

it's actually -- that's a pretty long time to

14

move through processing, so --

15

look at about a 45-day turnaround time
is

And Mr. Yoshimi's department has not

16

has not had any increases in personnel under any

17

tenure and,

18

the former Finance director's tenure as well in

19

this area.

20

think that there are areas for improvement here

21

because where there are deficiencies in terms of

22

the times that could -- that are needed to

23

process Alp transactions, what is happening is

24

those requirements are being accommodated by

25

other staff in the Finance Department largely in

from what I understand, nor under

So although the transactions vary,
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the accounts division, but from different

2

offices,

3

clerk position.

4

CHAIR KANE:

and thus,

the need for another preaudit

Thank you.

If you can proceed with the

5

Accountant I position and then we'll go ahead

6

and open up for Q&A.

7

MR. YOSHIMI:

Mr. Yoshimi?

An additional comment about the

8

preaudit clerk.

In the past we had a preaudit

9

clerk that was on board and hired,

and through

10

promotion -- well,

11

one of our preaudit clerks became the budget

12

director at that time.

13

position got zapped from my accounts division.

14

And we've been trying to struggle along as we --

15

in the past years.

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

occur?

18

MR. YOSHIMI:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

occur,

21
22
23
24
25

it wasn't really a prGmotion,

And at that time the

Since you brought it up,

when did this

What's that?
Since you brought this up,

what did that

this movement and this zapping?

MR. YOSHIMI:

Back years when the preaudit clerk

became the budget director.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Accountant what

position?
MR. YOSHIMI:

The Accountant I would help and one of
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the reoccurring comments in the management

2

letter has been the need to reconcile our bank

3

accounts and we've been, because of workload,

4

kind of putting that aside and I guess with

5

this,

6

help us in this area.

7

train that person,

8

above their call of duty,

9

turnaround of these interns,

and even now we

10

cannot get an intern aboard,

it's been lacking

11

and we've been commented on several times.

12

MR. YOUNG:

too, we've been using our MCC intern to

Mr. Chair,

And like I said, when we

they're actually doing work
and because of the

this position will assist

13

Mr. Yoshimi in the area of financial reporting

14

and administration of the accounts of various

15

departments within the County.

16

In the area of financial reporting,

I

17

think this body can attest and recall that there

18

have been a number of instances where there

19

could be additional help in this area,

20

in the instance of the CAFR production as well

21

as the quarterly reports and reports that are

22

submitted to Council periodically,

23

capital improvement reports that assisted

24

through Mr. Ginoza's office,

25

reports which,

I believe,

such as

such as the

and the contracts

come up to you monthly
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as well as a number of the items that

2

Mr. Yoshimi mentions, where we have been relying

3

on large part on interns.
In my opinion,

4

this is not an

5

appropriate practice because where we are asking

6

for college students who have yet to receive

7

their accounting degrees to be responsible or to

8

assist on responsibilities that,

9

clearly requires some credentials and

you know,

10

qualification,

11

the need for this further assistance in

12

Mr. Yoshimi's area.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

13
14

so I think that alone exemplifies

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Director.

It's

15

unfortunate it took this long before it got to

16

us for consideration.

17
18

Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr.

Chairman.

One

19

question for Mr. Yoshimi,

and I think you

20

answered most of it in your description of the

21

two positions,

22

two positions will help speed up with the

23

processing of the bills,

24

and help with the financial reporting with

25

regards to various departments.

so just to get it straight,

the

I guess meet deadlines
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1

2

two positions, are you having to deal with

3

overtime just to get caught up or just to keep

4

getting, for example, the bills processed on

5

time?

6

MR. YOSHIMI:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

9

That is correct.
Okay.

As far as space to

accommodate these individuals -MR. YOSHIMI:

Mr. Young mentioned that with some of

10

the staff moving over to One Main, we do have

11

some extra space now.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Any further questions, Members?

Hearing none, any final comment,

15
16

Thank you.

Thank you very much, Chairman.

13
14

Okay.

Mr. Young or Mr. Yoshimi?

17

MR. YOUNG:

Mr. Chair,

I would just say that,

you

18

know,

19

the Members, and I appreciate you folks

20

deliberating on such -- again an admittedly

21

large request for expansions.

22

I've assured you and the members that,

23

we have done the diligence to examine anG are

24

very sensitive in terms of offering this

25

request.

I appreciate the questions from you and

And I hope that
you know,

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Okay.

And before you leave,

2

just one comment from myself.

Because of the

3

significance of the requests related to the

4

previous requests through the past couple of

5

years -- and I think Member Anderson has

6

mentioned it the most.

7

what -- and Mr.

8

members,

9

improvement of the quality of service is what

It's just a matter of

Pontanilla as well as the other

it's a matter of the confidence of the

10

we're trying to get from you folks with the

11

requests of so many expansions.

12

that's the crux of this whole challenge for us,

13

so,

14

convince us,

15

achieve.

16

That's

you know, hopefully you've done your job to
you know,

of what you're trying to

And I think all of us agree that we

17

we've got to provide the service and better it.

18

It's just a matter of providing us that plan

19

that I think Mr.

20

going back.

21

Pontanilla talked about in

And the reason I talk about that plan

22

and reference the plan that Mr.

23

requesting is just last year,

24

here asking us about trailers.

25

span of a year, we're talking about something

Pontanilla is

you're sitting
And within the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
Ofc: (808) 524-2090
Fax: (808) 524-2596

203
BF 3/23/06
1

that now is impacting a completely different

2

component of our County function because,

3

Ms. Anderson has talked about recently,

4

caused some displacement in another department

5

with other functions that serve the public as

6

well.

as

it's

So these are things that we need to

7
8

grapple with.

I know we're just talking about

9

EPs, but all of these things kind of tie in

10

together and we're just trying to do our best to

11

assist you,

12

if there's additional questions,

13

that we get it to you so you can help us resolve

14

some of the challenges that you have and make

15

it,

16

folks'

17
18

so please,

you know,

help us.

we'll make sure

you know, easier for you to accomplish your
tasks.
Ms. Anderson?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah,

thank you, Chair,

19

summarizing that,

20

request as it looks here,

21

eight months.

22

all of that.

23

dollar expansion of County personnel,

24

something that we'll be tied to forever.

25

And

because,

you know,

for

this

we're only looking at

We're not looking at benefits and
So we're looking at a half million
and that's

And so we need to feel some assurance
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that this is going to increase the service, not

2

just add more bodies, but increase the

3

of service, because all of us here and you guys,

4

too, have heard these complaints for many years

5

now.

6

that ...

7

MR. YOUNG:

q~ality

And so that's what we're looking for,

is

And I hope you folks have the confidence

8

in me that,

you know,

this request is going to

9

lead to improvements because,

again,

I also do

10

not like to see government expanded because this

11

is a perpetual cost.

12

employees as easily as we can bring them on

13

board,

14

folks to consider this if it wasn't absolutely

15

necessary.

so I

We can't let go of these

recognize that so I wouldn't ask you

And the proof is in the pudding.

16

You

17

know,

I asked you -- I asked you folks to

18

consider additional positions last year.

19

folks did grant them.

20

know,

21

you have witnessed them and seen them either

22

from yourselves or through your constituents,

23

because I do believe that they have added value

24

and they have contributed to significant

25

improvements in the services.

I hope you feel,

You
you

that there have been improvements and that

And I believe
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2
3

4

that these will continue to add upon that,
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

CHAIR KANE:

I

Thank you.
Mr. Young, we appreciate your presence

this afternoon.

7

MR. YOUNG:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

MR. YOSHIMI:

10

Thank you.

appreciate that.

5

6

Okay.

I do.

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you very much.
Mr. Yoshimi, thank you.
Thank you.
Members, we're just going to take a

11

ten-minute recess, if you don't mind.

We'll

12

come back at 3:15 and we'll bring up Ms. Lee.

13

Ms. Lee has a total of actually two and

14

a half positions four warm bodies, if you will,

15

but three half positions and a full position, so

16

we'll get back to Ms. Lee at 3:15.

17

committee stands in recess.

18

RECESS:

3:06 p.m.

19

RECONVENE:

3:24 p.m.

20

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

Okay.

This

(Gavel.)

Members, let's

21

reconvene.

22

the March 23rd, 2006 Budget and Finance

23

Committee for the proposed budget for Fiscal

24

Year '07.

25

Thank you for that recess.

This is

We have our final department to review,
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and that is Housing and Human Concerns.

2

the director, Ms. Alice Lee, with us this

3

afternoon, Members.

4

go ahead and allow Ms. Lee to provide some

5

opening comments.
And Ms. Lee,

6

We have

So without objection, we'll

I know you were sitting in

7

the audience earlier, it would help if you can

8

perhaps provide some level of detail to the --

9

each of the positions that are being requested

10

of,

11

MS. LEE:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

MS. LEE:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

MS. LEE:

16
17

that way we don't have to dig it out.
All right.
Thank you.

Thank you.
Go ahead.

Thank you, Mr. Chair,

and good afternoon,

Budget Committee Members.
The Department of Housing and Human

18

Concerns is asking for two and a half positions

19

all for our senior services division.

20

first one would be a half position, nutrition

21

aide for the island of Molokai,

22

be served will be Maunaloa.

23

service, which we had years ago,

24

increase in population and demand for services

25

both for the congregate meals as well as for

Now,

the

and the &rea to

We are reviving the
due to the
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Meals-On-Wheels for Maunaloa.
The next one would be for Kaunoa itself,

2

3

the location at Spreckelsville.

When the

4

Wellness Center is completed, which we expect

5

will be done in May, we would like to use the

6

cafeteria that we haven't been using for years

7

and years,

8

participants at Kaunoa,

9

have an average of about 200 people there a day,

so that we can provide the
which by the way,

we

So we're hoping that we can

10

and no lunch.

11

provide that service at Kaunoa because the

12

activities that were once held in the cafeteria

13

will be moved to the Wellness Center.

14

Then for West Maui, we actually need a

15

lot of help in West Maui.

Initially, we had

16

projected to serve 800 people in two years after

17

the opening of the senior center in West Maui.

18

Well,

19

800 people,

20

there.

21

be made full-time there for the congregate

22

program.

23

Clerk III full-time person, which will spend

24

half of her time at West Maui and the other half

25

at Kaunoa.

it hasn't been one year and we've reached
so we are terribly understaffed

We're asking that our half-time person

And we're asking for Leisure Program

So this constitutes the two and a
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half people that we're asking for,

2

we would certainly appreciate your favorable

3

consideration.

4

CHAIR KANE:

6

7

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Lee.
Members?

5

EP count, and

questions.

Ms.

The floor is open for
Johnson?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes.

Just,

you know, when I

8

looked at the additional meal costs, I was

9

thinking,

"Oh, my gosh.

That's an awful lot to

10

eat for two and a half people," but that is

11

going to serve how many people at these

12

different sites which you anticipate with the

13

additional cost for the meals?

14

MS. LEE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

How much?

16

MS. LEE:

that's not only the site,

17

18

Yes.

Like Molokai,

it's always Meals-On-Wheels.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

19

equate to in numbers to,

20

approximation?

21

MS. LEE:

So what does that
you know,

an

Well, we're not absolutely sure, but we're

22

projecting anywhere from 25 to 30 people on the

23

congregate side for the -- for Maunaloa,

24

probably an equal amount on the Meals-On-Wheels

25

side.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And then at Kaunoa,

2

because I know you mentioned you had about 200

3

people there, I guess, on a daily basis.

4

all of them be having meals at the site?

Would

For now, we're projecting 50 people.

5

MS. LEE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

7

MS. LEE:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

MS. LEE:

For 50?

50?
50.

Yeah, we want to be conservative until we

10

get a handle on exactly how many people will be

11

staying for lunch.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And is that on -- is

13

there any contribution for the meal, is it just

14

a minimal charge or is there none?

15

MS. LEE:

Well, the Kaunoa meal will be different

16

from the rest because the seniors at Kaunoa tend

17

to be younger and they prefer having salads and

18

healthy types of -- not that we serve unhealthy

19

meals, but different kinds of meals at Kaunoa.

20

Take,

21

from Hale Mahaolu for the rest of the sites, the

22

congregate sites,

23

the DOE for a lot of other our sites.

24

the people give a donation, which is,

25

just a donation.

for example, we buy a good number of meals

and we also buy meals for from
And then
yo~

know,

Some of them don't pay but
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some of them -- a lot of them do, so we sort of

2

break even,

you know, as far as the meals go.

But that's how the meals breakdown.

3

The

4

DOE charges us $3.50 a meal and Hale Mahaolu

5

charges us about 5.50, but then they provide

6

meals for diabetics and those kinds of different

7

meals.

8
9

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah.

So that they're very

specialized in terms of their nutritional
content, their salt restriction --

11

MS. LEE:

Yes.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

13

I think you're doing a great job, and we've

14

heard a lot of good comments and, of course,

15

West Maui is, as you say -- it's really grown

16

and the people really enjoy the programs.

17

MS. LEE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

Thank you.
Thank you.

Thank you.
Further questions, Members,

21

Mr. Mateo?

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

for Ms. Lee?

Chairman, perhaps you're going

23

to have to shepherd me through this one.

24

question is not specific to the existing

25

positions, but in terms of addressing the
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department's function in a whole different area

2

that would involve housing.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Mateo,

I think this committee will

4

have that opportunity at a later scheduled

5

meeting.

6

various areas so in this case we're dealing with

7

the expansion of the department.

8

go into operations of various departments at

9

some future date,

This -- we've compartmentalized

We will also

so I would ask you to reserve

10

your questions regarding operational issues to

11

when we have that particular meeting.

12

be more than happy to have staff assist you when

13

we can approximate that future meeting --

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And we'll

Okay.

-- with the director.
Okay.

That would be good and I

17

thank you very much.

18

follow up as to why it wasn't even part of the

19

original EP submission.

20
21
22
23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

And I

just wanted to

Thank you.

Any further questions for

Ms. Lee on her request?
Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you,

Chair.

Ms. Lee,

I'm going

24

to show my ignorance now.

are there

25

any like positions for the South Maui region?
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MS. LEE:

We have a congregate site at the -- at

2

the -- at the pool -- the Kihei Community

3

Center.

4

Community Center and we have our Meals-On-Wheels

5

that does deliver some meals in Kihei, but we

6

don't have our own senior center

I went blank there.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

MS. LEE:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

The Kihei

Right.

-- there.
So at the Kihei Community

10

Center, then does that mean every day at noon

11

there is a lunch program for seniors there or

12

could you describe it?

13

have that assist with that program?

14

MS. LEE:

And what staff do you

We have a half-time congregate site that we

15

call them satellites -- satellite managers now

16

at the -- at the various sites,

17

half time person.

18

day.

19

There's only two sites that -- Elua and Ekahi at

20

Hale Mahaolu in Kahului.

21

sites don't warrant five days.

22

have two days.

23

Fridays, but I'm not absolutely sure.

24

two days a week.

25

and that's a

We don't have a meal every

Very few sites have meals every day.

Most of the other
In Kihei,

we

I believe it's Tuesdays and

And in addition to that,

Anyway,

throughout the
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year,

2

month,

3

in having different activities,

4

site might buy bus travel to Pukalani or some

5

other site for lunch and activities.

6

in fact,

at least once a month or twice a

each -- each site -- the sites alternate

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So on the days that you

7

serve lunch,

8

before or after the lunch,

9

MS. LEE:

No,

so the Kihei

there are also programs that are
it's not just lunch?

it's not just lunch.

Usually we try to

10

incorporate some kind of educational element;

11

for instance, whether it's on health or

12

preventing disease or those kinds of things, as

13

well as other kinds of fun activities like bingo

14

and other kind of activities.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So you have a half-time

16

person with the congregate meal and then what

17

about Meals-On-Wheels?

18

MS. LEE:

Meals-On-Wheels are also half-time

19

personnel.

They -- the base,

20

usually Kaunoa except for the ones in Lahaina,

21

but everybody leaves from Kaunoa and then they

22

go to Wailuku and Kahului and Kihei and all the

23

various places Upcountry,

24

In fact,

25

you to join us one day.

their base is

and deliver meals.

I would like to invite all of
I think you'd like
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that.

2

where I've gone and delivered meals, and I've

3

gone with our transportation group to pick up

4

people to go to the doctor's office or shopping

5

or to the bank -- and just so that you have a

6

better feel of what's done by our county.

7

Please feel free.

8

along.

9
10

I've done it myself on several occasions

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We'll be happy to take you

Thank you for that

invitation, that's nice.
Could we request, Mr. Chair, a breakdown

11

12

of the number of seniors served and in

13

specifically to this program,

14

and I know it's in conjunction with other

15

things, but I'd like to get a feel for the

16

number of seniors that are being served in each

17

district.

18

Ms. Lee?

Is there a way you could do that,

19

MS. LEE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22
23

the meals program,

Yes, we can.
Okay.

Thank you.

And we'll make that request and send it

over to Ms. Lee.
Any further questions, Members?

24

Mr. Molina?

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No,

just more of a comment,
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Mr. Chair.

I do have questions for the

2

department but I'll go ahead and wait,

3

to whenever the appropriate day is to discuss --

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

7

As far as operations?

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Great.

Thank you.

Members, any additional questions for
EP?

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

Mr. Chairman,

I have one more,

I forgot.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

Yeah, but no questions on the

positions itself.

8
9

I guess,

Okay.
Ms. Lee, when did you expect

the Wellness Center to be done at Kaunoa?

15

MS. LEE:

In May.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so will there be any

17

this is the only expansion -- or the only

18

expansion position you need for that?

19

MS. LEE:

Yes.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

22

Members, any further questions for

23

Ms. Lee on her request for three half-time

24

personnel and the Leisure Program Clerk III,

25

which is a full-time position?
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Hearing none, Ms. Lee, any additional

1

2

comments or closing comments this afternoon?

3

MS. LEE:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

Nothing, Mr. Chair.
Thank you, Ms. Lee,

this afternoon.

We appreciate it.

Mr. Ginoza, any comments before we wrap

6
7

for being present

up the meeting for this afternoon?
Thank you.

8

MR. GINOZA:

None, Mr. Chair.

9

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Members.

Thank you very

10

much.

Again, a couple of reminders tonight for

11

all of you as well as for the public.

12

going to be at the Paia Community Center at six

13

o'clock, so leave now just -- so we can live

14

with those folks who live up there, okay?

15

that's meant half jokingly but half seriously as

16

well so -- but anyway hopefully we can all get

17

out there by six o'clock.

18

people out there.

19

We're

And

We expect a lot of

On the 28th, which is next week Tuesday,

20

I believe, we'll be at the Kihei Community and

21

Aquatic Center.

22

at the Social Hall of the Civic Center at six

23

o'clock.

24

be at Helene Hall in Hana and that will also be

25

at six o'clock.

March 29th, we'll be at Lahaina

On the 30th, which is Thursday, we'll
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And then the following week at 6:30,

1

2

we'll be at Kahului Community Center.

3

at Mitchell Pauole Center on April 4th at six

4

o'clock.

5

Lanai -- on the island of Lanai,

6

Community Center at six o'clock on April 6th.

And then finally,

So again, Members,

7

We'll be

we'll be out at
the Lanai

I'm going to do this

8

every day so the public, who has a chance to

9

watch,

knows where we're going to be so they can

10

come out and share their thoughts on the

11

proposed budget by the Mayor.

12

Finally, Members,

two notes.

Next, we

Provide you some Rand R, and

13

are off tomorrow.

14

have a nice long weekend to bone up on the stuff

15

that you have in front of you.

16

We won't be meeting on Monday because

17

Monday is Kuhio Day.

18

26th, they're going to celebrate it on Monday or

19

observe it on Monday.

20

also be dealing with EP counts for the fcur

21

departments that are listed on the schedule that

22

all of you should have,

23

with Police, Department of Personnel,

24

Works Department as well as the Planning

25

Department.

Although it's Sunday, the

And so Tuesday, we will

and we'll be dealing
the Public

Planning, did we make an adjustment
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1

on Planning because of their ability not to

2

come?

3

So Members,

Okay.

So they're going to stay in place?
Planning will also be on the 28th.

With that, Members, any closing comments

4

5

before we adjourn the meeting for this

6

afternoon?

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

8

GRH,

9
10

RC,

and CT)
ACTION:

CHAIR KANE:

DEFER pending further discussion.
Hearing none,

thank you for your

11

participation, Members.

12

meeting is adjourned.

13

(excused:

ADJOURN:

We appreciate it.
(Gavel.)

3:40 p.m.

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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